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Key Information for Shareholders

FTERREH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2023
Financial Year End
31 March 2023

Announcement of 2022/23 results
21 June 2023

Last day to register for the entitlement to attend and

vote at the 2022/23 Annual General Meeting
23 August 2023

2022/23 Annual General Meeting
30 August 2023

Last day to register for 2022/23
Final Dividends
4 September 2023

2022/23 Final Dividend expected
Payment Date
21 September 2023
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CEC /= FEXEAMAS
—E-=FXA=-+—H

EESHE_ZE-__F —=FERRE
FAEGRBEZRAXTAHS
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TR/ ZZFRRBFKE
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B /C=EEXRERE
B#&Ei A
—E-=F A AWA

ARt =2-=F “=FEXRHRE
kBB
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SHARE CAPITAL fig 7
As at
BZE
31 March 2023 30 June 2023
—E-= B =F
=B=+-—H NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) EEGB T 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued Shares BEEITRHG 505,364,800 505,364,800
MARKET CAPITALISATION m{E

As at 31 March 2023
(Closing Price: HK$1.40)
HK$707,510,720

As at 30 June 2023
(Closing Price: HK$1.14)
HK$576,115,872

BE-ZE-_=F=ZHA=+—H
(KWTE:1.40%8 T)
707,510,720 7T

BE—_Z-_=%XH=*+H
(W18 : 576,115,87238 7T)
1147 7T
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Key Information for Shareholders

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)

Main Board

2421

BOARD LOT
2,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”)

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of KRP Development Holdings
Limited (the “Company”):

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-16, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628
Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For enquiries, please contact:

Block C, 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2956 7580
Email: ir@krpd.com.hk
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Financial Highlights
B BE

Year ended 31 March

BE3A3IBLEE
2023 2022
—E-= —_FEq_- -
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT AREBETT
Revenue Ui &= 701 776
701 776
Net Profit s A 181 244
RMB cents AR5
Basic Earnings per Share BRELXER 35.8 48.2
HK Cents gl
Dividend per Share BERKRE
Final Proposed Dividend REAR B 4.0 NA
4.0 NA
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Revenue

Yz
RMB million

AR¥EET
776

591
482

FY2019/2020  FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022

20194 20204 20214
20204 20214 20224
HBEE MBEE MBEE

Total Assets
EERE
RMB million
ARBEHETR
2,201
1,975

1,721

FY2019/2020  FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022

20194 20204 20214F
2020%F 20214 20224
MBEE MBEE MBEE

701

FY2022/2023

20224
20234
MREE

1,512

FY2022/2023
20224
2023%

MBFER

Financial Highlights
MBERE

Net Profit

F s Fl
RMB million
AREEET

161
19 I

244

FY2019/2020  FY2020/2021  FY2021/2022
20194 20204 20214
20204 20214 20224

BMEE MEE M EE

Total Shareholders’ Fund
BRERELHEE

RMB million
ARBBEETR

749

430
323

FY2019/2020  FY2020/2021  FY2021/2022
2019%F 2020%F 20214F
20204 20214 20224

MBFE MBFE MBFE
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Chairman’s Statement

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group principally
engaged in:

A boutique residential property developer which mainly
engaged in the development and sales of residential
properties in the fast-developing residential markets in
Dongguan, Huizhou and Foshan.

(1) BUSINESS REVIEW
I.  Results

(@ For the year ended 31 March 2023,
the revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB700,751,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2022: RMB775,555,000), which
decreased by approximately 10% when
compared with the corresponding period
last year. Our gross profit margin amounted
to 74% (for the year ended 31 March 2022:
76%). Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB180,846,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2022: RMB243,660,000).

(b) As at 31 March 2023, the Group had land
bank of approximately 253,594 square
meters (“sq.m.”). (as at 31 March 2022:
196,018 sq.m.), which mainly included the
land parcel located at Hecheng Sub-district,
Gaoming District, Foshan (the “Foshan
Project”), Phases 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas,
Dongguan and Louvre Mansion, Huizhou.
In addition, the Group also has a potential
land reserve located in Yantian Village,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, with a total
land areas of approximately 23,862 square
meters. The application process to change
the land use for this parcel has already been
initiated progressively.

FTEXEBREE
BE-E-_=F=ZHA=Z1+—HILEE -
AEBFERSE:

BRmEETHERRD  TB2HRE
BN R b 1L AR R B R B (X £ T 55 B B
MIHEME -

(=) 2% EE
. XBFE

@ BHE-_Z-_=%=A
=+ —HLEHFE &K
SEZ2HRABARKE
700,751,000 (B E-ZF
—H=ZA=+—HIF
€: A R #775,555,000
TR EFRBRE DL
10% ° & F & B74% (&
E-T-F=H=4—
HIEFE:76%) ° XA
RSB AEIE G T
& AN R 180,846,000
THEHEZZE-ZZ-_F=A
=+—HLEFE: AR
243,660,0007T) °

by N-ZB-_=F=A=+—
A AXEEHNLHWHERE
#45253,594F F K (R=
T _H#=A=+—8:
196,018 7 K)  FEB
BFERFILEAREA
Eib sk ((ERILEE]) - &
ESRERESM - AH
KB IZNEE © Eoh -
AEEWAE—RBEE L
HEE - LR RETA
EBEREEN LHEE
#923,862F 77 oK © 3% b
REEERMNE L
REMmBRFERERF o
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This year has been a remarkable year.
Due to the pandemic, the Russia-Ukraine
conflict, rising inflation and interest
rate hikes by the US Federal Reserve,
the economy of Mainland China has
been negatively affected, especially the
unprecedented crisis in China’s real estate
sector. Furthermore, economic growth of
China has also slowed down to 3.0%, with
per capita income gradually decreasing
as well. Under such circumstances,
consumers have become more cautious
and conservative in purchasing properties,
and the sales of properties in Mainland
China have inevitably declined at a rate
rarely seen in recent years. Despite this,
the Group was able to maintain profit and
the decline in total sales was less than that
of many real estate developers in Mainland
China resulting from the concerted efforts
of our staff, lean management with financial
stability in mind and cost saving as to
maintain profit. We continued to create
value for our shareholders.

(0)

KEETITFELB—F o
MREBRE - BE®
28 - IR FHR & E B
MEETRETE Wit
KEERAEXIAER
YE LERREEH
ETEFABETRAM
FENEERHE ML
PELEERBER
3.0% - AW AL &
T - FERFEET - BB
EEEEMNEERST
Wb 55 i EE K S E BT
AR R - TIRIEE
HRAFER - #RW
it AN EE D EE R I
B M EBE N REE
ML RZEAEREARD
PRETIEL  APHKIE
RAEFEMNBERERER
BAEMEMB BHEA
R BEEE -



However, with the relaxation of the
pandemic control policy in the beginning
of this year and the reopening of borders,
China’s economy is regaining momentum
and the economy is expected to recover.
It is believed that the real estate market
has bottomed out and came to a turning
point. The government has also started to
introduce supportive measures and has
relaxed its property market control policies.
It has implemented a series of property
market stabilization policies and financial
credit optimization policies, with purchase
restriction lifted, financing channels for
developers re-opened and restrictions on
real estate development loans loosened in
certain cities. Meanwhile, mortgage rates
have also been lowered. These measures
can boost real estate investment and
demand and stabilize sales of residential
properties. It is expected that government
policies will remain accommodative to
support a moderate economic rebound and
ensure the steady growth of the real estate
market.

ARBERNFVRIFEHE
WERBOSEME T
HEEBERE N &
En 2R FHAEM
GHEEEREERDA &
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(e) Facing severe challenges, the Group has

adopted the following measures:

(i)

The Group strives to establish its
brand and provide high-quality,
standardized properties that meet the
demands of different people in the
market. The “Villas” series provides
sufficient public space and facilities
(including clubhouses and landscaped
garden) for middle income and move-
up homebuyers, while the “Mansion”
series is designed with comfortable life
in mind and is suitable for first-time
homebuyers and retirees. Furthermore,
the Group employs qualified and
reputable constructors and maintains
tight control on the construction and
acceptance of the project to ensure the
quality of properties.

On top of maintaining the quality of
properties, the Group also established
an efficient operating system and
procedure. The development progress
and costs are monitored in budgeting,
planning, tender, construction,
acceptance and marketing phases, so
as to control the construction costs
and labor expenses and avoid cost
overruns due to construction delays.
With improved control on project
development, the operation of the
Group becomes more cost-effective.
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(iii) We focus on the development of

(iv)

residential projects in Dongguan,
Huizhou and Foshan and increase
our investment on city planning and
improving urban building designs. In
terms of site selection of its projects,
the Group supports the urban renewal
and rural development policies of
local governments, allowing it to
establish good working relationship
with local governments and secure
redevelopment sites in a more timely
and cost-effective manner.

The management of the Group has vast
experience in real estate development,
especially in places like Dongguan,
Huizhou and Foshan. Meanwhile, the
Group is also recruiting professional
talents in different areas including
property development, project
management, planning, design, finance
and sales and marketing to build a
workforce of long-term cooperation.
The Group has also enhanced its
training to meet the future demand for
sustainable development of the Group.
Their diverse professional knowledge,
work efficiency and passion enhance
the overall operation efficiency and
results of the Group.

(iii)

(iv)
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(f)

e

SO R N |

(v) The Group has net cash inflow from
operations and has maintained healthy
financial position. The Group also fully
settled its bank borrowings during
the year. This reduced its finance
costs and accelerated return of funds,
which improved the Company’s risk
tolerance and boosted the confidence
of potential customers and investors.

A Three-Old Renewal residential project,
Phase 3 of Castfast Villas, Dongguan
recorded and recognized revenue of
RMB14,758,000 during the year. A total of
5 units were delivered during the year, with
a total area of approximately 616 sq.m. and
an average selling price of approximately
RMB26,100 per sq.m..

Another Three-Old Renewal residential
project, Phase 4 of Castfast Villas,
Dongguan delivered 71 units and recorded
revenue of RMB198,248,000 during the
year, with a total area of approximately
7,300 sq.m. and an average selling price of
approximately RMB29,600 per sg.m..

B
z
]
-4

Chairman’s Statement
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Phases 4, 5 of Castfast Villas
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Chairman’s Statement
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Furthermore, a Three-Old Renewal
residential project, Phase 5 of Castfast
Villas, Dongguan delivered 121 units and
recorded revenue of RMB472,102,000
during the year, with a total area of
approximately 16,300 sq.m. and an average
selling price of approximately RMB31,600
per sg.m..

Meanwhile, Louvre Mansion, Huizhou,
has been completed, with a total saleable
residential area of approximately 30,300
sg.m. and total of 26 units were delivered
during the year. Revenue of RMB15,643,000
was recorded, with a total area of
approximately 2,387 sq.m. and an average
selling price of approximately RMB7,100 per
sq.m..

18

Louvre Mansion, Huizhou

EMNEFDE

In April 2022, we entered into a contract
for the grant of state-owned land use right
for Foshan Project. Its design and planning
procedures have commenced.

(h)

B ZBEHREEEE
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(k On 23 March 2023, the Company
distributed in specie to shareholders of
Karrie International Holdings Limited
(“KIHL") by way of distributing one share
of the Company for every four Karrie
International shares to such shareholders
(the “Distribution”). Upon completion of
the Distribution, the shares of the Company
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange by way of introduction (the
“Spin-off”). The Spin-off established an
individual platform for the Group, such that
the Company will (i) have a more defined
business focus and efficient resource
allocation; (ii) clarify the equity story and
create or unlock value for shareholders
by better identifying and establishing the
value of the Group; and (iii) enhance access
to capital markets and improve financing
flexibility.

Event after the reporting period
There was no material event after reporting period up
to the date of this annual report.

Conclusion

Not only is the successful Spin-off of the Group an
important milestone of our development, but it also
marks a brand new beginning. As an ancient Chinese
philosopher says, “a terrace nine stories high rises
from a shovel-full of earth”, the success of a company
requires long-term planning, vision and perseverance.
To succeed in future sustainable development, we
must maintain our core competitive advantages and
keenly grasp opportunities when the moment is right,
so as to ensure our continued prosperous and stable
development.
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Any distribution of dividends is subject to various
factors, including but not limited to operating results,
capital demands, cash flows, future business
development requirements of the Group and any
other factors which the Directors may consider
relevant. The Directors will, at their discretion and
based on actual circumstances, cautiously evaluate
such distributions to ensure that they are in the
interest of the Company and shareholders.

After due consideration of the above factors and
maintaining to distribute dividends every year, the
Board proposes to distribute a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per share to all shareholders whose names
appear on the Company’s registers of members as at 6
September 2023.

Since the relaxation of pandemic prevention measures
at the beginning of this year, China’s economy has
started to recover. Strengthened policy regulations,
proactive fiscal policies and stability monetary
policies also boost market confidence and facilitate
recovery of the real estate market. With the steady
recovery of the economy, the government stepped up
its localized policies. Key policies such as housing
preservation have stabilized market sentiment;
meanwhile, policy support on the demand side has
been strengthened. GDP of the Mainland China grew
by 4.5% year-on-year in the first quarter, which was
better than expected and was expected to gradually
drive the real estate market.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on the sales of
Phases 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas, Dongguan. We are
always proud of our strong financial position. We
firmly believe in our prudent financial management
and cost-reduction oriented operation principles,
adopting our usual balanced policies to achieve stable
and substantial investment return. Furthermore, we
will put effort into optimizing our internal
organization structure to reduce operating cost and
secure positive cash flow. We believe that a strong
financial base is essential for us to face new
challenges and explore new opportunities.
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However, government policies will not see results
overnight. It takes time for recovery and it is believed
that the recovery rate would be moderate. Rapid
growth in the real estate market has come to an end
and the market has entered a period of consolidation.
Facing the unstable economy and market, change in
government regulations and fluctuating interest rates,
the Group still firmly treats the Greater Bay Area as its
development focus. While actively promoting sales of
real estate projects, we also proactively conform to
urban renewal policies of the government and
respond to the full implementation of rural
revitalization policies of China in long-term. We will
actively look for partners that meet our strategic
needs, and jointly utilize our respective resources
advantages to carry out forward-looking strategic
plans and develop projects with potentials, so as to
stimulate the economic prosperity of the development
region and further enhance the value of assets in such
region. The Group will also continue to actively
create diversified business models to improve the
development of the Company and its unique
advantages.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy
in managing the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure
that the Group is well-placed to capture future growth
opportunities.

Net Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023, net gearing ratio
(calculated based on total bank borrowing and lease
liabilities less cash and bank deposits and pledged deposits
divided by total equity at the end of the year multiplied by
100%) was not applicable as we were at a net cash
position.

Resources Available

Currently, the Group is confident that with the cash in
hand and bank deposits of approximately
RMB267,835,000, it is able to meet its current operational
and committed capital expenditure requirements and to
make strategic investments when opportunities arise.
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Chairman’s Statement

Exchange Rate Exposure

The Group operates primarily in the PRC and most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB. Currency risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. Management
considers that the Group is mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk with respect to HK$. Management will
continue to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will
take measures to minimise the currency translation risk.
The conversion rate of RMB to foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.

Contingent Liabilities/ Financial Guarantees

The Group has provided guarantees to banks to secure the
mortgage arrangements of certain property buyers. As at
31 March 2023, the outstanding guarantees to the banks
amounted to RMB515,657,000 which will be released upon
the completion of the transfer procedures with the
property buyers in respect of the legal title of the
properties.

The Directors do not consider the Group will sustain a loss
under these guarantees as the bank has the rights to sell
the property and recovers the outstanding loan balance
from the sale proceeds if the property buyers have default
payment. The Group has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of these guarantees as its fair value is
considered to be insignificant.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

EXRER

AEBETEEFEHEE AERKHOE
BRS BERAGHUAREE -
EBRARKAENFFERIGEEENE
B ENRERS CHRIABENAE
AR BINETFH)FIRE - BEERS -
AEBTZ2EEGRETEBNINER
R EREREBEREIIERR X
HREERHEBRERREERE -
AR HMNE ) [ 2= 52 o B AT 78 4 B
SN B R B K BRI H R e

RAREE HMBEER
AREBDMBPITBELER  UERE
tEEE B LHE RZT_=F=
A=1+—H MREEZRITERESR
A AR¥515,657,0007T © BETKEF
ERBELZEHBeLERCEETER
i Bx o

EERR/AEEK T ERELERM
SXBEX ARARTAERLEZYE -
WHAMRBEEREHNMN - BIAAR
HERZEPWERERE 2 ERBRE - B
RERAFELIFEE AL AEEL
A ELERBERTMELTKA-

R-E-_=F=FA=+—H0 &£BLE
EAKARAELE -

18 KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| E# E#ZER AR A 7



The Group had approximately 60 employees on average
during the year. The Group enter into individual
employment contracts with our employees to cover matters
such as wages, salaries, benefits and terms for termination.
We generally formulate our employees’
package to include a salary and bonus. We determine

remuneration

salary levels based on each employee’s qualification,
position, seniority and periodic performance reviews. In
our performance reviews, we mainly assess the value that
the employee has created for our Group during the
performance period and any other meaningful
contributions that the employee has made to our Group.
As required by PRC regulations, we make contributions to
mandatory social security funds for the benefit of our PRC
employees that provide for pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, personal injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing funds.

In addition,
Mainland and the actual need for talent-retaining, the
Group establishes a “Cooperative Home” to encourage and

to cope with domestic development in

finance potential elites settled down locally in buying a flat
as a means to retain talents who may otherwise be lost in
the competitive labour market.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system and
objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will now receive more bonus
than before the new system was implemented. The Group
has also adopted a share option scheme as a share
incentive scheme to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions which the eligible participants have made or
will make to the Group or invested entity. Please refer to
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further
details.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK4.0 cents per share to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 6 September 2023. The final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company to be held on 30 August 2023.
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Chairman’s Statement

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee currently
made up of three independent non-executive Directors
whose duties include resolving issues in relation to audit
such as reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal control systems. The audit
committee and the management have reviewed the
accounting principles and major policies adopted by the
Group and have discussed the auditing, internal control
and financial reporting in the current year with the external
auditors. The audit committee has reviewed the
consolidated annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

APPRECIATION

| would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.
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The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”) the Group
has applied the principles of the recently promulgated
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and complied with the code provision
(the “Code Provisions”) of the CG Code.

The Company will continue to review its practices
from time to time to achieve high standard of corporate
governance.

The Shares were listed on the main board on 23 March
2023 (the “Listing Date”), the Board is pleased to report
to the Shareholders on the corporate governance of the
Company from the Listing Date to 31 March 2023 (the
“Listing Period”).

1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2023, the Board consisted
of eight Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Man
Chung (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Ho
Wai Hon, Brian, Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung and Mr.
Zhu Nianhua as executive Directors; Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman of the Board) as a
non-executive Director and Mr. Choi Wai
Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong and Dr. Lo Yung Fong
as the independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has the collective responsibility
for the leadership and promotion of the
success of the Group’s business by directing
and supervising the Group's affairs.
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1.3

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products
and services. The Board is collectively
responsible for formulating the overall
objective and strategy of the Group;
monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance and reviews
the standard of corporate governance of
the Group. It also makes decisions on
matters such as approving the annual
results, interim and quarterly results,
connected transactions, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors, declaring
dividends and adopting accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the
management.

The Board shall conduct regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

Since the Shares were listed on 23 March 2023,
the Company did not hold any board meeting
and convene any general meeting during the
Listing Period.

A list of Directors and their role and function was

posted on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.

12

1.3
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1.4 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee, a
nomination committee and a remuneration
committee. Detailed descriptions of each
of these committees are set out below.
All of these committees adopt, as far as
practicable, the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Board in relation to
the scheduling and proceeding of meetings,
notice of meetings and inclusion of agenda
items, records and availability of minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written terms
of reference setting out its duties, responsibilities,
powers and functions which include the
following:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations
to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

e reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

e developing reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report in its Annual Report.
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8

Board Composition

2.1 As at 31 March 2023, the Board comprises
eight Directors: four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, is the father of Mr.
Ho Wai Hon, Brian, an executive Director
of the Company.

2.2 The attributes, skills and expertise among
the existing Directors are considered
appropriate so as to effectively lead,
supervise and manage the Group, taking
into account the scope and nature of the
operations. The Directors have a mix of core
competencies in areas such as accounting
and finance, business and management,
property industry knowledge and marketing
strategies. Details of the experience and
qualifications of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section
headed “Senior Management Profile” in this
annual report.

Board Diversity

Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity criteria, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the Year, the Board reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board
and was of the opinion that the Board is
well balanced and diversified, and with the
appropriate structure, size and necessary
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives required for the business of the
Group. The Board also reviewed and evaluated
the board diversity policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises 2 female Directors and 6 male
Directors. The Board considers that the gender
diversity in respect of the Board is satisfactory
and will continue to maintain a diverse Board.

As at 31 March 2023, the ratio of women to men
in the workforce (excluding Directors) was 42:58.
For details of gender distribution, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2023.

The Board adopted a separate Nomination Policy,
which provides the key selection criteria and
principles of the Board in making decisions in the
appointment and reappointment of directors and
succession planning of directors, to emphasise
our commitment on transparent nomination
process.
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4.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

4.1

4.2

4.3

at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.

A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which
he retires. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include (so far as necessary
to ascertain the number of directors to
retire by rotation) any Director who wishes
to retire and not to offer himself for re-
election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject
to retirement by rotation who have been
longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment and so that as between
persons who became or were last re-elected
Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot.

As at 31 March 2023, the non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai)
including the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not
exceeding three years and all non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirements
of retirement by rotation and re-election
by Shareholders at the AGM in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for
election or re-election at the forthcoming
AGM will be set out in the circular to
Shareholders to assist Shareholders in
making an informed decision on their
elections.
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Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
arising from the group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an
annual basis.

Directors’ Continuous Professional
Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given
an induction. As part of the ongoing process
of directors’ training, the Company Secretary
continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements.
All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant
topics which may count towards continuous
professional development training.

As the period for the Shares being listing on the
Stock Exchange is relatively short, the Company
has not organized training session conducted
by qualified professionals or legal advisers for
Directors during the Listing Period. The Company
will arrange training session for Directors and
provide reading material on relevant topics where
appropriate.
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Reading materials

(including corporate
governance, directors
responsibilities, Listing Rules
or other relelvent laws and
regulations)

ﬁaﬁﬂ
(BELEER
EZER - LT j?,
A8 B8 % 6l R R Al)
Executive Directors # _§$
Mr. HO Man Chung (Chief Executive Officer) X BEE(THESR) v
Mr. HO Wai Hon, Brian ] T& /J—rf‘ii v
Ms. YIU Yuet Fung tkAR/NME v
Mr. ZHU Nianhua MELE 4
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. HO Cheuk Fai (Chairman of the Board) MEBELEE(EEFLTE) 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. CHOI Wai Hin BRHELE 4
Mr. HO Lai Hong MEREE v
Dr. LO Yung Fong BA¥EL v

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 & i 27



Corporate Governance Report

28

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive adequate, clear, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner.

The Chairman should:

e ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in
a timely manner;

e ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;

e encourage Directors with different views
to voice their concerns, allow sufficient
time for discussion of issues and ensure
that board decisions fairly reflect board
consensus;

e ensure that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole; and

e promote a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of
non-executive directors in particular and
ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer should be
responsible for managing the Group’s business
including the implementation of strategy and
initiatives with the support of executive Directors
and senior management and within those
authorities delegated by the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors and one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the number of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of
its independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

If any re-election of an independent
non-executive director who has served the board
for more than nine years, his further appointment
should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Independent View Mechanism

The Company adopted the director’s nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”). The
nomination process of Directors, including
Independent Non-executive Directors, is
included in the Nomination Policy.

The Board should include at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company has served less than 9 years on the
Board. At least one of the Independent Non-
executive Directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The
Company must appoint Independent Non-
executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board. The Company shall appoint a
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive
Directors to meet the minimum number required
above within three months after failing to meet
the requirement(s).
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The Board committees should comprise
a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Directors should disclose to the Company at
the time of their appointments, and in a timely
manner for any changes, the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments.
The identity of the public companies or
organisations should also be disclosed.

When selecting Independent Non-executive
Directors, the candidates’ availability should
be considered as sitting on a Board involves a
significant time commitment. Independent Non-
executive Directors must dedicate time to reading
materials prior to Board meetings in order to
make the hours spent in meetings effective. They
also have to learn to understand the Company’s
complex business and operational details, market
forces and future perspectives.

The Nomination Committee should be aware of
the factors which may affect an individual’s time
commitment to the Company.

Upon reasonable request, Directors may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All
Directors should have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary to ensure that
Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules
and regulations, are followed.

The Board was satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of the Independent view
Mechanism for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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1.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

1.1

1.2

RC is chaired by Dr. Lo Yung Fong and
comprises three other members, namely
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian, Mr. Choi Wai Hin
and Mr. Ho Lai Hong. All RC members,
with the exception of Mr. Ho Wai Hon,
Brian (executive Director), are independent
non-executive Directors. The quorum
necessary for the transaction of business
by the RC is two. The terms of reference
of RC shall be updated from time to time
to comply with the new requirements set
out in the CG Code and were posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of RC are as
follows:

e to formulate remuneration policy
of the Group, review and make
recommendations to the Board in
respect of the remuneration policy;

e to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

e to conform to any requirement,
direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the
Board or contained in the constitution
of the Company or imposed by the
Listing Rules or any applicable law;

e to determine the remuneration, terms
of service contracts and incentive
scheme of the executive Directors and
the senior management; and

e to review and/or approve matters
relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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1.3 Since the Company’s Shares were listed on
23 March 2023, the RC did not hold any
meeting during the year ended 31 March
2023.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in note 9 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the Year is set out below:
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Number of
Remuneration bands (RMB) persons
FEAER (AR A
1 to 1,000,000 121,000,000 2
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001% 2,000,000 3
2. Audit Committee (“AC”) 2. EREBRS
2.1 The AC’s membership comprised the 21 HE-_T-_=%=H
independent non-executive Directors as at =t+—B BRZLE®
31 March 2023: BVRBYIFATESH
[
Mr. Choi Wai Hin BIBE LA
(Chairman of AC) (BEERZESFE)
Mr. Ho Lai Hong o] B BE 5 &
Dr. Lo Yung Fong BEFBL

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.
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2.2 The terms of reference had been adopted for
the operations of the AC. The updated terms
of reference of the Audit Committee were
posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The main duties of the
AC include:

to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process including
the review of quarterly, interim and
annual results of the Group;

to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

to review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable
standards;

to examine the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control which involves
regular review in various corporate
structures and business process;

to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such reviews
includes finance, operations, regulatory
compliance, internal control systems
and risk management; and
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2.3

e to discuss the risk management

and internal control
with management to ensure that

management has performed its duties

systems

to have effective systems.

Since the Company's Shares were listed on
23 March 2023, the AC did not hold any
meeting during the year ended 31 March
2023.

3. Nomination Committee

3.1

3.2

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8| Eh EZR AR 2 7

The nomination committee was established
with terms of reference, which comprises
three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong
and Dr. Lo Yung Fong and one executive
Director Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian. Mr. Ho
Lai Hong, the independent non-executive
director was appointed as the chairman of
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee are
as follows:

e To review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy;
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e To identify, and assess the suitability
and qualification of, candidates to
become Board members and select or
make recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

e To assess the independence of INEDs;
and

¢ To make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief
executive of the Company.

3.3 The Board has adopted the nomination
policy, which set out the selection criteria
in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate as Director. Such criteria include
but not limit to:

e Reputation and integrity;

e Accomplishment, experience and
reputation in the relevant industries/
sectors;

e Commitment in respect of sufficient
time, interest and attention to the
Company’s business;

e Diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age,
cultural/educational and professional
background, skills, knowledge and
experience;
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The ability to assist and support
management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s
success;

Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.10A and 3.13 of the Listing Rules
for the appointment of an independent
non-executive director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Board from time to
time.

3.4 The nomination procedures are as follows:

The Chairman of the board shall
nominate suitable candidates to the
Board and therefore shall convene a
meeting, and invite Board members,
for consideration by the Board.
The Board members may also
nominate candidates for the Board’s
consideration.

In the context of appointment of any
candidate to the Board, the Board shall
undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make
approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Board shall consider for the candidates
to stand for re-election at a general
meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director”, which is
available on the Company’s website,
for procedures for Shareholders’
nomination of any proposed candidate
for election as a director.
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1.1

1.2

e The Board shall have the final decision
on all matters relating to candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

3.5 The nomination committee will review the
board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and
discuss may revisions that may be required
and recommended any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

3.6 Since the Company’s Shares were listed on
23 March 2023, the NC did not hold any
meeting during the year ended 31 March
2023.

The Company has adopted a Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Group (the
“Company’s Model Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out
in Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors,
they have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in both the
Company’s Model Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

1.1

1.2
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT D.
e

Financial Reporting

1.1 The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable.

1.2 The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.

1.3 The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage of
such information to include annual, interim
and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports
to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s
system of internal controls and is committed
to managing business risks and maintaining
sound and effective internal control systems to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets.
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During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the
Audit Committee, has reviewed and reported
on the adequacy of effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of
the Group, covering financial, operational,
compliance and risk management control
functions annually. Based on the results of the
review, the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are still effective and adequate.

The Board adopted the risk management
policy and internal risk management audit
plan, including structure and system of risk
management of the Group. Internal Audit
Department together with the Audit Committee
will review the adequacy of the effectiveness of
the risk management at least once a year.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage instead of eliminating risks of failure
in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the
Audit Committee. The responsible Department
Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies
noted for rectification. For the Year, the Internal
Audit Department mainly conducted operational
management audit over process of project
tendering and bidding, budgeting, on-site
certification, testing and acceptance materials
and equipments etc and other items with higher
risk index. The audit results have been presented
to the senior management, the Audit Committee
and the Board.
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For the purpose of handling and disseminating
inside information pursuant to Rules 13.09 and
13.10 of the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has taken various procedures and measures,
including arousing the awareness to preserve
confidentiality of inside information within the
Group, signing of confidentiality agreement,
sending blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions notifications to the Directors and
relevant employees regularly, disseminating
information to specified persons on a need-to-
know basis and observing the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012
stringently.

Risk Management

I.  Risk Management
Risks can be viewed as the combination of
the probability of an event and the impact
of its consequences. Events with a negative
impact represent risk that can prevent value
creation or erode existing value. In order to
deliver value to our shareholders, we must
understand the types of risks faced by our
corporation and address them appropriately.

Generally, risks to the Group’s success
can be grouped into four categories: (1)
Strategic, (2) Operational, (3) Compliance
and (4) Financial & Reporting. Specific
examples of each type of risks are included
in the table below.
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Strategic

Operational

Compliance

Financial &
Reporting

Reduction in business vitality Eagi
(due to change in business

strategy, customer spending

pattens, product discovery

& development, changing

technology, etc.)

Loss of intellectual property &
trade secrets

Competition for talent
Negative impact to reputation

il
A

Disruption to product supply
Counterfeiting

Inefficient use of resources/
increase cost of materials

Physical property/damage/
disruption

Discontinuation of global data
flows

Violation of laws or governing R
areas such as

Environmental

Employee health & safety

Protection of personal data

Local tax and statutory laws

Currency exchange, funding

Financial misstatement

1 %5 K2

and cash flow, credit risk wmE
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Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”)

ERM is a common framework applied by
business management and other personnel
to identify potential events that may affect
the enterprise, manage the associated risks
and opportunities and provide reasonable
assurance that our Company’s objectives
will be achieved.

Through this approach to risk management,
we can:

e  Ensure prompt resolution of internally
identified risk to compliance with
laws and regulations to maintain
the provision of quality products,
protect stakeholder safety and
ensure appropriate relationships with
customers and suppliers.

e Support “simplification” strategies
to ensure effective use of resources,
enable an optimized approach to
auditing and identification/remediation
of compliance issues and promote
reporting and monitoring across
compliance functions

e Enable improved decision making,
planning and prioritization through
a structured understanding of
opportunities and threats.

e  Support value creation by enabling
management to deal effectively with
future events that create uncertainty,
pose a significant risk or opportunity
and to respond in a prompt, efficient
and effective manner.
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e Support our growth drivers of creating
value through innovation, extending
our global reach with local focus,
executing with excellence and leading
with purpose.

ERM shall provide KRP Development
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“the Group”) with both the structures and
mechanism to effectively manage existing
and emerging risks as well as enhance
its ability to take on additional risks
accompanying new growth opportunities.

e ERM shall provide a leading-edge,
strategic business process and function
that will ensure that all business risks
are identified, measured and managed
effectively and continuously within
a structured, robust, integrated, and
proactive framework.

e This risk management framework
is intended to enhance the Group’s
shareholder value by sustaining its
competitive advantage, optimizing risk
management costs, and enabling it to
pursue strategic growth opportunities
with efficiencies that surpass industry
standards.
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Enterprise Risk Management Process

The ERM process is scheduled to be
performed at least annually and definitely
in event of significant changes in internal

or external business environment or
whenever strategic/non-routine activities are
undertaken by the Group. The following are

key sub-processes in the ERM process.

1. Risk identification, evaluation and
reporting:

A

Identification of risk events across
Line of Business (LoB) through risk
assessment

Risk identification shall identify
source of risk, areas of impacts,
events and their causes, and
their potential consequences.
The aim of this process is to
generate a comprehensive list of
risks based on those events that
might enhance, prevent, degrade,
or delay the achievement of the
objectives. It is also important to
identify the risks associated with
not pursuing an opportunity.

For each risk identified, the
risk identification process shall
include:

e Event: the event or
circumstances which may
have a material impact on
the business objectives (e.g.

high staff turnover);
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e  Causes: the cause or source
of the risk (e.g. staff job
dissatisfaction); and

e Impacts: the nature of that
impact (i.e. inability to
achieve strategic objectives.)

Analysing and evaluating risk

Risk analysis involves assessment
of their positive and negative
consequences and the likelihood
that those consequences can
occur after taking into account
the causes and sources of risk and
the presence (or absence) and
effectiveness of existing controls.
The likelihood and consequences
are then combined to determine
the level of risk.

For each risk identified, the risk
analysis process shall include the
following:

e Existing Control: the
adequacy of existing risk
controls
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Likelihood: the likelihood
of occurrence of each
consequence associated with
the risk. Such likelihood
estimation is based on the
realistic, worst case of a
potential exposure over a
12-month-period.

Consequence: the potential
impact or consequence
if risk does occur. Such
consequence analysis is
based on a realistic but worst
case of a potential exposure
over a 12-month-period.

Level of risk: the ranking of
risk after considering the
effect of controls/counter
measures that are currently
in place in order to reduce
the possible impact of risk
(i.e. the net impact).
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Risks shall be ranked by assigning
scores (i.e, an alphabet ranging
from A to E for likelihood and
a number ranging from 1 to 6
for consequence) to the two
dimensions of each risk category
based on the judgemental view of
Risk Owners.

Level of risks shall subsequently
be assessed in the most suitable
terms for that type of risk and in
the form that aids risk evaluation.
In some instance, a risk can
be expressed as a likelihood
distribution over a range of
consequences. It shall then be
mapped against the risk criteria to
determine the significance of the
level and type of risk.

Risk evaluation shall involve
comparing estimated levels of risk
with the established risk criteria
when the context was established
to determine the significance of
the level and type of risk.
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Factors affecting decision may
include but not limited to,
whether a risk needs treatment,
priority for treatment, whether
an activity should be undertaken
and which of a number of paths
should be followed. If the level of
the risk established is low, then
risk mat fall into an acceptable
category and treatment mat not be
required.

Documenting the risks

The risk assessment process shall
be documented together with
the results of the assessment.
Risk should be expressed in
understandable terms, and the
units in which the level of risk is
expressed should be clear. The
documentation shall include, but
not limited to the following:

e Obijective and scope

o External and internal context
and how it is related to the
risks being assessed

o Risk criteria and their
justification
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o Limitations, assumptions, and
justification of hypotheses

e Description of relevant parts
of the system

D  Reporting
Reporting risk events collated
and prioritized to the Risk
management organization
structure, including LoB/function
Heads and the Board.

IV. Risk Monitoring and Assurance

A.

Reporting to the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) on the risk profile and
effectiveness of implementation of
mitigation plans.

Annual Risk Management Reporting
Scheme

There shall be annual, bottom-up risk
assessments by LoB and the corporate
functions. The annual risk register shall
be submitted by all LoBs concomitantly
with the submission of the business
plan and budget for the ensuing
years. The presentation of an updated
to key risk profile shall be formally
included into the Annual Business Plan
Presentation by all LoBs.
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The completed Risks Register is then
consolidated at the Group level to
develop a Group Risk Profile so as to
provide an overview and an ongoing
monitoring tool to assist the Board in
forming an opinion as to whether there
is a systematic process for identifying
and addressing the Group’s key risks.

Monitoring the ERM process activities
to ensure their timely and appropriate
execution. Risks and controls shall be
monitored and reviewed on a regular
basis to verify that:

e Assumptions about risks remain
valid

e Assumptions on which risk the
assessment is based, in particular,
the external and internal context,
remain valid
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Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to KPMG, the
Group’s external auditor RMB2,122,000 for audit
services and IPO related services of the Group
and for non-audit related services approximately
RMB45,000, representing mainly taxation
services and other non-audit service fees.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey to Shareholders
pertinent information in a clear, detailed, timely
manner and on a regular basis and to take into
consideration their views and inputs, and to
address the Shareholders’ concerned. Their views
are communicated to the Board comprehensively.

The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The purpose of this policy is to ensure the
Shareholders are provided with prompt and
equal access to information about the Company
(including but not limited to its financial
performance, corporate goals and strategies,
significant developments, corporate governance
and risk exposure), in order to enable the
Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall
performance, exercise their rights in an informed
manner and engage actively with the Company.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders
through the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, circulars, results announcements and
releases. All communications to Shareholders
are also available on the Company’s website at
www.krpd.com.hk.

E. £
1.
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We had provided sufficient notice for
Shareholders at all general meetings. The AGM
provides a useful platform for Shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The Chairman
of the Board and the Board members will make
an effort to attend to answer Shareholders’
questions. External auditor is also available at the
annual general meeting to address shareholders’
queries about the conduct of the audit.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll according to the
Listing Rules. The chairman of the meeting will
therefore demand a poll for every resolution put
to the vote of the AGM pursuant to Articles of
Association 66 of the Articles of Association.

Results announcement

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new
investors.

Annual reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. The Company can still
provide the Shareholders and investors with an
adequate degree of transparency and information
of the financial position of the Company.
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Communication of media, analysts and
investors

The Group endeavours to enhance the
transparency. We have close communication
with media, analysts and both institutional and
individual investors after the release of the
interim and final results by way of presentation,
luncheons, meetings or telephone conferences
etc. according to circumstances from time to
time in order to share the performances of the
Group during the Relevant period results and
to report the new development and strategy
of the Group’s business. There is also ample
opportunity for all parties to ask questions and to
communicate with each other. Furthermore, the
Group shall reply and handle rapidly, as we have
received enquiries from media and individual
Shareholders.

Website

The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and the
latest news of the Group’s developments on its
Company’s website. The public are welcome to
give their comments and make their enquiries
through the Company’s website, the management
will give their prompt response.

Shareholder Communication Policy

The Board has reviewed the Shareholders
Communication Policy and its effectiveness for
the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company
has provided appropriate communication
channels to the Shareholders in accordance
with the Shareholders Communication Policy
and therefore the existing Shareholders
Communication Policy in appropriate to the
Company.
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G. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles,
extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the written requisition of one
or more members deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist(s), provided that such
requisitionist(s) hold, as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company.

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing at the
Company’s head office and principal place of
business or the Company’s website.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting
There are no provisions in the Articles or the
Cayman Islands Companies Law for Shareholders
to move new resolutions at general meetings.
The Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a director of
the Company, please refer to the “Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as
a Director” of the Company which is posted on
the Company’s website.

G. BRR#EF
1. BRREMRRBEIAEZRE
F

1R A48 R 5815 - AR R4 R
A& IFAl AR RME—H3K
ZEMRNEBMBRAEH - B
BEAKIARNEZENE
ARABRBNEMERER
ARRIRNEBNIEREZR -
HZEBRARERERZ
BABAARARNIPRTDZ
—HEARRBRRRERE
R B BBR

MEFSRHIEANER

B ST BE B LA A B R A )
GHEEREBELHER
ARFBUBEERELS
o

BRRBRRAELREZR
ZREF
AMAUSRERESRRELE
FIARRRATE B R A& LR
2EMFRBENKEX B
ERERBENBREAR L
BREREFERANRAEH
BERRXEg -FHREBAESZ
BARPEZNER - F2H
BENARB B[R RR
REEANENRRF]-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 & i 55



Corporate Governance Report

56

(@) to give to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them
any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

Any enquires or suggestions by Shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at our head office and principal place
of business or email to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group’s affairs and assists the Board in functionary
effectively. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. During
the Year, the Company Secretary has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8| Eh EZR AR 2 7

@ MAREERKRT—E
BERFARBEL R
s AN ZAR LA
THEADERED S
TRER R

(b) [A1E R RTAAE
AEBREZREEBT
FB 381,000 Z PR & -
NEMRZAELERE
ZRBEAMAEE B
BRI ZEIH -

WREMAEARRE T
HAAATBRERR LS
EEBSTEEE N AN
EREBEAAF -

REAME

RAMERANAFEE  BHAKHE
WMEEERBEMABLHHESTS
BEMEE - 2REFHIBER
AWEREREER LIRS - F
N ARWECKRER  EET
TAORINEHEBEEREI -

ERXH
AABERXHERFARETWH



Executive Directors

Mr. HO Man Chung, aged 66, was appointed as our
Director on 2 September 2020 and is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of our Company. He is
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Ho Man Chung joined our Group on 1 April 2017. He is
responsible for overall management and daily operation of
our Group.

Mr. Ho Man Chung has over 20 years of experience in
management and the property development industry. He
was a general manager of Castfast Properties Development
Company Limited, one of our Controlling Shareholders
as further detailed in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” in this listing document,
from January 2002 to June 2010 and a general manager of
Yangshuo Resort Hotel (F5 ¥ Z & & /&) from January 2011
to March 2011. Mr. Ho Man Chung was a general manager
(Properties Development) of Karrie Industrial Company
Limited, a subsidiary of Karrie International, from June
2011 to March 2017. He then became a general manager
of Karrie Properties Management Limited, a member of
our Group, since April 2017. Mr. Ho Man Chung graduated
from St. Luke’s Co-educational College, Hong Kong in June
1975.

Mr. HO Wai Hon, Brian, aged 33, was appointed as
our Director on 2 September 2020 and is an executive
Director of our Company. He is also the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho Wai Hon,
Brian joined our Group on 1 September 2020. He is
responsible for overall corporate strategies and planning,
business development and corporate relation functions of
our Group. Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian is a member of our
remuneration committee and nomination committee.
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Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian graduated with a Bachelor of
Science with Honours in Economics from University
of York, United Kingdom in July 2011 and obtained a
Master of Science (MSc) in Investment Analysis in Aston
Business School, United Kingdom in March 2013. Mr.
Ho Wai Hon, Brian has over ten years of experience
in finance, management and the property industry. He
started his career as an assistant to the general manager of
Karrie Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of Karrie
International, from November 2012 to June 2014. He has
been an assistant to the chairman of Karrie Industrial
Company Limited since July 2014 and head of finance
and accounting department of the same company since
November 2017. Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian is son of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, our non-executive Director and chairman of the
Board.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 58, was appointed as our
Director on 8 March 2022 and is an executive Director
of our Company. She is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Yiu joined our Group on 1
September 2020. She is responsible for overall operation of
human resources and administration of our Group.

Ms. Yiu has over 23 years of experience in managing the
production process of manufacturing industries and 9
years of experience in overall personnel and administration
management. Ms. Yiu joined Karrie Industrial Company
Limited, a subsidiary of Karrie International, in August 1984
as a team leader of production line. She was promoted to
the director of central production management department
and the assistant general manager of central production
management department in March 1999 and August 2000,
respectively. She has become general manager of human
resources and administration department (PRC) since
September 2012. Ms. Yiu graduated from The Y.W.C.A.
Hioe Tjo Yoeng College, Hong Kong in July 1983.

Mr. ZHU Nianhua, aged 55, was appointed as our Director
on 8 March 2022 and is an executive Director of our
Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined our Group on 10 November
1996. He is responsible for overall operation of accounting,
compliance, risk management and service management of
our Group.
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Mr. Zhu graduated from Anhui University of Finance and
(Z B & KE) (formerly known as Anhui
Finance and Trade Vocational College (% & 8 & £ ft))

in Accounting in June 1994 and obtained a Bachelor in
Accounting from South China Normal University (% g
R &5 K2 ) in July 2006 through online education. Mr.
Zhu obtained a Qualification Certificate of Specialty

Economics

and Technology in Accountancy (Corporate) issued by
the Ministry of Personnel, PRC in May 1996. In August
2005, he obtained the qualification of a Certified Public
Accountant issued by The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Zhu is a non-practising member of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 2020. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience
in accounting and finance. Mr. Zhu was a general ledger
accountant in Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited, a
subsidiary of our Company, from November 1996 to March
2000. He has become an Assistant Financial Controller of

EMERBRA

el

Dongguan City Jiaxuntong (5 5¢ 1 32 5. 38
a]) from December 2002 to July 2020.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 77, was appointed as our Director
on 8 March 2022 and is a non-executive Director of
our Company and chairman of the Board. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai joined our Group on 8 March 2022. He is responsible
for developing corporate strategies of our Group.

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai has over 40 years of experience in
business management. He founded Karrie International
Group in the 1980s and has been a chairman, executive
director and chief executive officer since the shares of
Karrie International have been listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 16 December 1996. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Karrie International
and is responsible for its overall corporate strategies and
objectives. In March 2017, he has become the honorary
chairman of Guangdong Cui Feng Robotics Technology
Co., Limited (ERZBEHK SIS ARNERHOGER A A

a company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations (Stock Code: 871244).
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Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai was appointed a member of the 10th
Guangdong Provincial Committee of Political Consultative
Conference (EXEFETEHHZEZE) in December 2007
and was reappointed as a member of the 11th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan
City, Guangdong Province (BER& R 5™ %+ — EHIK
Z 8) in December 2006. He was also awarded as the
Honorable Citizen of Dongguan City ( %%ﬁéﬁéﬁmﬁ
and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City (EH M & &M E) in
October 1996 and October 2008, respectively. The solid
business knowledge and working experience gained by Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai throughout the years are recognised by the
industries. He was awarded the Honorary Fellowship of the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in
December 2021. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is father of Mr. Ho Wai
Hon, Brian, our executive Director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Wai Hin, aged 43, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2023.
He is responsible for providing independent opinion
and judgement to our Board. He is also the chairman of
the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee.

Mr. Choi graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy in
November 2002. Mr. Choi has over 20 years of experience
in financial management, accounting and auditing. He
joined KPMG, a multinational accounting organisation, in
March 2004, and became a senior manager in October
2009 until August 2014. Mr. Choi then served as the chief
financial officer at Karrie International from August 2014
to December 2019, and the chief financial officer of Weiye
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1570), from December
2019 to November 2022. He is the chief financial officer of
Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited, the issued
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2298), since November 2022. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Sterling
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1825), since July
2022. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since July 2015.
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Mr. HO Lai Hong, aged 65, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2023, responsible for providing independent opinion
and judgement to our Board. He is also the chairman of
the nomination committee and a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong graduated with a Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 1993. Mr. Ho Lai Hong has over
35 years of banking, corporate finance and management
experiences. He joined the Hong Kong Branch, Mizuho
Bank Limited from July 1987 to March 2018, with his
last positions as the General Manager in Hong Kong
Corporate Banking Department, and the Alternative Chief
Executive of the branch. During which, he was also a SFC
licensed representative of Mizuho Securities Asia Limited,
a company principally engaging in investment banking
business, from August 2013 to June 2015. Mr. Ho Lai Hong
was an independent non-executive director of Foshan
Water and Environmental Protection Co., Ltd., a company
principally engaging in water supply services, from
October 2018 to August 2020. He was an independent
non-executive director of Leo Paper Group (Hong Kong)
Ltd from April 2019 to March 2023. He has been serving
as an independent non-executive director of Yue Yuen
Industrial (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 551) since May
2019, and Texwinca Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 321)
since August 2022.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong is a fellow of The Chartered Governance
Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute since September 2019. He is also a fellow and
council member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
since February 2020 and July 2020, respectively, and
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute since September 2021.

Dr. LO Yung Fong, aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2023.
She is responsible for providing independent opinion
and judgement to our Board. She is the chairman of the
remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee.

ABEEE  R+tAR: R-T_=F
“ACt+ - BEZAERBIUFATE
F AFRNESERHBIER LA
B - RASREZEENEIRRELE
EekHmMEEEKE -

MBEREEER—NMNAZ=ZF+— 8%
REBEBEIKRSE EEIBEREEE
TEu - MBREEEERA=THF
WIRTT  PEREREELR - BR
—NWNtEFEtAZEZZE—N\F= AT
FIHERITERARBTBDIT  &ER
NABBLERTHIBALERZDT
MR AITBUB R - FEULHAR - IR
E-=—FEN\AEZ-ZE-AENAELEE
MELHTMNABRRQAR(CRIERESR
RITEBHNRARNEESRERE -
MBEEAEE T \E+AE-_ZTZ
TEFENAETHLKRKBRERBROER
RAMBYIERITES - ZARETER
EHKRE  REZZTE-AFNAZEZ
T F-AEENRERER(FES)
ERABINBILERITES - K —&H
EABTIE(EB)BRAAMKRMK
Bos5N)(B-_ZE—AFRAR)MEXK
FEEEERAAERHARE 3208
TFNARNBIIERTES -

MERAEE-_ZE—NFNLABRAER
B ABASRBBRRIAELATEAR
28 FNHOFET_TF_ARK=
T_TEFLARNABEAEETESE
rEEREBEEKE WA T-_—F
NABRKAEBEBELFREEEGER
g8 -
BERFELT ST RZTEZ=%F
AT HEZARBIUIENITE
E-HKEBERNESFERERHBYERERRK
Fl - RATHEESN TR REZ
ZESKIEEEZEEHWKE -



Dr. Lo graduated with a Bachelor of Arts in General
Sociology from the University of Waterloo in May 1976
and a Bachelor of Commerce in Honours Business
Administration from University of Windsor in October
1977. She then obtained a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration from Brunel University in May 1998. She
was awarded a Doctor of Business Administration from
University of South Australia in December 2001.

Dr. Lo has over 38 years of experience in education.
She started her career at Hong Kong Baptist University
as an assistant lecturer at the Secretarial Management
Department in September 1983 to August 2018, with
her last position as the director of Community Relations,
Department of Management. During which, she was an
associate director of Institute for Enterprise Development
and Management Research in September 2006 and
promoted to a director in September 2007 to June 2008.
She was then an associate director of Institute of Enterprise
Development and Wing Lung International Institute for
Business Development from July 2008 to June 2009. She
has been a manager of English Wise Learning Centre, a
school principally engaging in English education programs,
since May 2020.

Dr. Lo obtained a Certificate in Personnel in Industrial
Relations issued by the Council of Canadian Personnel
Association in September 1977. She published “Business
Succession: 11 outstanding Enterprise Leaders Concerning
Management & Succession” (FrXEE+ - A EEEE
EM A E 1R B {E ) through Hong Kong Economic Times
Limited in January 2019.

Mr. WONG Ho Kwan, aged 47, is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of our Group and is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the finance and
accounting, taxation and treasury of our Group.
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Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Accountancy from The City University of Hong Kong
in November 1998 and obtained a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing University, PRC in
March 2012. Mr. Wong obtained the qualification of a
Certified Public Accountant issued by Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in January 2002 and
Certified Internal Auditor issued by the Institute of internal
Auditors in May 2004.

Mr. Wong has over 21 years of experience in accountancy
and finance. He started his career in September 1998
acting key positions in accounting and finance aspects. His
recent main positions were a vice president of Treasury
in ECO Environmental Investment Limited (5 S &R %
EHBMR AR, a subsidiary of The Hong Kong and China
Gas Company Limited, an energy supplier in Hong Kong
and the PRC whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3), in September 2012 to
April 2020. He was a director and general manager of ECO
Zhuoxin (Shanghai) Financial Leasing Company Limited (5
mEMLESBRERERRAR)
engaging in professional leasing service, from August 2019
to April 2020. He joined Karrie International and our Group
as a Chief Financial Officer in April 2020 and September
2020 respectively.

, a company principally

Ms. YANG Xiuchun, aged 36, is the manager of human
resources and administration of our Group and is
responsible for the overall management of human resources
and administration of our Group. Ms. Yang graduated with
a Bachelor Degree in Modern Corporate Management
from South China Normal University (¥ A0 & K2 in
January 2015. She obtained an Occupational Qualification
Certificate of a First Level Senior Technician in corporate
human resource management issued by Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security, PRC in February 2020.
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Ms. Yang has over ten years of experience in human
resources and administration. Ms. Yang started her career
as an Administration and human resources manager in
Shenzhen Runtong Financial Guarantee Company Limited
(RYITHBEEERARALQR), a company engages in
financial guarantee services, from May 2010 to June 2013.
Prior to joining our Group in March 2017 as a Manager
of Human resource and administration, she worked as a
manager of the Comprehensive administration department
in Shenzhen Huanuo Planning Research Institute Company
Limited (R Y| ZE 55 32 2| B B B BR 2 7)), a building design
company, from June 2013 to February 2017.

Mr. GUO Laifu, aged 47, is the assistant internal audit
director of our Group and is responsible for the overall
internal control and risk management of our Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from Hubei College of Finance and
Economics (LB & & F HE R 2 in Foreign accounting
(% 9 & &) in July 1997 and Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics ( B 4k Bf #&& X £ ) in Finance
Management through distance learning in January 2008.
Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of a Certified Internal
Auditor issued by The Institute of Internal Auditors in
November 2011 and the Qualification of Real Estate
Agent Professional issued by China Institute of Real Estate

Appraisers and Agents in October 2018.

Mr. Guo has over 18 years of experience in audit. He was
an internal auditor of Dongguan Fenggang Jiahui Plastic
Hardware Company Limited (RZEBEEZBZRBAEH
fR 2 7A]), a subsidiary of Karrie International, in February
2004 and promoted to the assistant internal audit director
in March 2021.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in

— A boutique residential property developer which
mainly engaged in development and sales of
residential properties in the fast-developing residential
markets in Dongguan, Huizhou and Foshan.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on pages
8 to 20, in Report of the Directors in pages 65 to 84 and
Financial Highlights on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group is contained in Corporate Governance Report on
pages 21 to 56 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend
of HK4 cents per share to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
6 September 2023. The final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company to be held on 30 August 2023.
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Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 136 to 137
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves
of approximately RMB354,242,000 were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to RMB12,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the
year.
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The Group has realized the importance of good utilization
of resources long time ago and not to exploit the rights
of using resources for the next generation. The Group
adheres to the concept of our Chairman, Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai, with heartfelt dedication in all details, and saves
resources for the next generation. As such, the Group’s
production adheres to the concept of reducing energy or
material consumption from the sources with the adoption
of various environmental friendly measures and addition of
energy-saving equipment. With the concept of green and
cleaner production implemented in practice, the Group
continues to formulate policies for green production and
energy-saving policies, while introducing different kinds of
environmentally friendly equipment to attain the objectives
of cleaner production and environmental protection and
to comply with relevant environmental regulations. It is of
paramount importance to have effective communication
and understanding between the Group and its stakeholders
including shareholders, partners, employees, suppliers,
regulators and the public in coming up with benchmarks
and regarding key issues.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report Guide contained in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the sustainability report
contains in this annual report from page 85 to 125.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance
with such requirements. The Group has been implementing
system and allocating staff resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China
while the Company itself was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our establishment and
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, Cayman Islands and the
PRC. The Group had complied with all relevant laws and
regulations.
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Report of the Directors

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated
and it regularly reviews and improves its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training, occupational health
and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers.
A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive, analyse and study complaints and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-up
approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories
and indicators of risks. The followings are the key part of
the risks and uncertainties identified by the Group:

(1)  We are susceptible to adverse movements in the
PRC and real estate market, particularly in regions
and cities where property development projects are
located;

(2) We generated all of our revenue from business in
Dongguan and Huizhou and any significant decline
in economic conditions of the property markets of
this area could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition and business
prospects;

(3) Our operations are subject to extensive government
policies and regulations, and in particular, we are
susceptible to adverse changes in policies relating to
our PRC property sector and in local policies in the
regions in where we operate;
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The timing of our property sales and progress of our
property development projects may cause our results
and operations to fluctuate from period to period,
making it difficult to predict our future financial
performance;

To mitigate the risk of the new business, the Group has

adopted the following initiatives in response:

To better handle the opportunities and challenges
posed by policy changes, the Group has established
a professional team to maintain close communication
with the relevant authorities and thoroughly study
policy trends so as to adopt a more flexible approach
to sales in response to such changes;

To reduce costs, deliver quality properties at lower
costs and compete effectively in the market, the
professional management team closely monitors
the quality, progress, safety and materials of the
development projects;

The Group will focus on the sales of Phases 4 and
5 of Castfast Villas, Dongguan and development
in Greater Bay Area. We always seek financial
stability and firmly believe in our prudent financial
management and cost-reduction oriented operation
principles, adopting our usual balanced policies to
achieve stable and substantial investment return.
Furthermore, we will put effort into optimizing our
internal organization structure to reduce operating
cost and secure positive cash flow. We believe that
a strong financial base is essential for us to face new
challenges and explore new opportunities.

(4)
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The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 26 August
2022 (the “Share Option Scheme”) and no share option
has been granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
during the year. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
summarized as below:

(i)

(if)

(a)

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the eligible
participants have made or will make to the
Group or invested entity (as defined in Share
Option Scheme).

The Share Option Scheme will provide the
eligible participants with an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company with a view to
motivating the eligible participants to utilise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group or invested entity; and attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group or invested entity.

The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(a)

any director (whether executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director),
employee (whether full time or part time
employee), consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, joint venture partner or advisers of or
contractor to the Group or invested entity; and

any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director (whether executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or part
time employee), consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, joint venture partner or adviser of
or contractor to the Group or invested entity.
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(iii) The overall limit on the number of Shares which may

(iv)

be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
for the time being of the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed such number of Shares equaling
to 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
No option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme of the
Company if it will result in the above-mentioned 30%
limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the
Shareholders (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

(@) Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any
eligible participant which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted or to be granted to such eligible
participant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such new grant
exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of such new grant.

(iii)

(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)

(b) Any grant of options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company
or its subsidiaries or any of their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme
must be subject to the prior approval of the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is a
grantee of the relevant options).

(c) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their
respective associates would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
Shares in issue, and

(2) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to the
approval by Shareholders at a general meeting
taken on a poll.

The period within which the options must be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant, but shall expire no later than 10 years
from the relevant date of grant.

At the time of grant of the options, the Company may
specify any minimum period(s) for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised. The Share
Option Scheme does not contain any such minimum
period.

(viii) At the time of the grant of the options, the Company

may specify any performance target(s) which must
be achieved before the options can be exercised.
The Share Option Scheme does not contain any
performance targets.

(vi)
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(ix)

(xi)

A non-refundable remittance of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is refunded
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option shall be at
the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall not
be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of a share as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant (which must be a business day) in
respect of such option;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of grant in respect of
such option; and

(¢) the nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme by resolutions
of the Company passed on 26 August 2022.
Accordingly, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately 9 years. The number of
options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was 50,532,730 Shares and 50,532,730
Shares as at 26 August 2022 (adoption date of
the Share Option Scheme) and 31 March 2023,
respectively.

As at 31 March 2023, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 50,532,730 Shares, representing approximately
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

(ix)

(xi)
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the shares in the Company.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page
252 to 253 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against any actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses as a result of any act or failure to

act in carrying out their functions.

The Company has arranged directors” and officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the
Directors during the year.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD BY THE GROUP
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not hold any
significant investment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not pledge any assets.
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SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2023 are set out in Notes 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Man Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian

Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung

Mr. Zhu Nianhua

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wai Hin
Mr. Ho Lai Hong
Dr. Lo Yung Fong

Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong and Dr. Lo Yung Fong
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of one year subject to extension by mutual agreement
and retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company as and when required
under the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 83(3) and 84 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. Mr. Ho Man Chung, Mr. Ho Wai
Hon, Brian, Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong and Dr.
Lo Yung Fong will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All such Directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Year, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which any of the Group companies was
a party and in which a Director was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, for the year
ended 31 March 2023, there were no such rights to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of Shares or debentures of
the Company granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were any
such rights exercised by them. There was no arrangement
to which the Company and any of its subsidiaries is a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other corporation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Group did not enter into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
that are not exempted from annual reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements are fully exempt connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 March 2023

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as
follows:
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(A) Interests in the Company (long position)

Report of the Directors

(F) REQAzERE(FR)

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

SREBIONETZEERYE
Personal Family Corporate/ % of issued
interests interests Other interests  Total interests  share capital
EEER
AR FERE AE4ER A ERE  BRASH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai B 69,678,000 27,587,500 269,402,000 366,667,500 72.56
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
Hit-) Wit~ Wiz=)
Mr. Ho Man Chung X BEE 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 0.20
(Note 3)
Wi#=)
Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian  fI[{& T %4 538,500 = = 538,500 0.11
(Note 4)
Him)
Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung kAR 930,000 = — 930,000 0.18
(Note 5)
Witn)
Mr. Choi Wai Hin EEsrd 52,500 - — 52,500 0.01
(Note 6)
(W)
Notes: W
1. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of — fiilEEEEZEAARERBRE

69,678,000 Shares. He is deemed to be interested in
27,587,500 Shares held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as

beneficial owner.

69,678,000% B% 13 o {A] /% 18 55 HE 4
BEBEERBRNERLLES
BB AFHE 227,587,500 %
17

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 % #§ 77



The 269,402,000 Shares comprised (i) 121,902,000
Shares held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New
Sense”); and (ii) 82,500,000 Shares held by Castfast
Properties Development Co., Limited (“Castfast
Properties”), 87% of the issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Honford Investments Limited
(“Honford Investments”). New Sense and Honford
Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF (BVI)
Limited (“TMF”) as trustee for a discretionary trust, the
family trust of which Mr. Ho Check Fai is the settlor and
beneficiary (“The Ho Family Trust”), and (iii) 65,000,000
Shares held by The Wedding City Co., Limited (“The
Wedding City”), 90% and 10% of the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
is deemed to be interested in the 204,402,000 Shares
in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in
65,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms.
Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the discretionary
objects of The Ho Family Trust and are thus deemed
to be interested in the 204,402,000 Shares held under
The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
204,402,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Man Chung comprise
1,000,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian
comprise 538,500 Shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Yiu Yuet Fung comprise
930,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Mr. Choi Wai Hin comprise
52,500 Shares.

269,402,000 /% A% £ B 4% (i) 1 New
Sense Enterprises Limited ([New
Sense]) ¥ H 2121,902,000% &
=R EwERREBRRAF
((ZEEH#E ] HFHF 282,500,000
BB HBEEITRAEZ87%
Jy i Honford Investments Limited
([Honford Investments]) B =%
# A ° New Sense X Honford
Investments B TMF (BVI) Limited
(ITMF)) £ & % # {5 5 The Ho
Family TrustZ A2 EH G M
EEAERREESZKIER
%z A([The Ho Family Trust])
(NEWMABR LR (1B 8 )
265,000,000 B 1 - HEATAR
R Z290% K 10% 5 5l 63 ol 4 18 55 A
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% HYE B The Ho Family Trust.Z £l
A AR R % $5204,402,000
P& B 1 o A (i) B (i) R (i) 48 &0 980
265,000,0000% A% 17 < # %5  {A]
B+ RAIE8H% 4% BThe Ho
Family TrustZ 28 X @ A 8
R The Ho Family Trusti B 2
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As at 31 March 2023, none of Directors were interested
in any business apart from the Company’s business, which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The power to make material business decisions for the
Group is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board
considers that there may be a conflict of interest between
the Group and any Director, such Director will be required
to abstain from voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of
carrying on the Group’s business independently of, and at
arm’s length, from the business of Directors.

The Company has entered into the deed of non-
competition dated 21 February 2023 (“Deed of Non-
competition”) with the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu,
New Sense, Honford Investments, Castfast Properties and
The Wedding City, pursuant to which each of them has,
among other matters, irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken to the Company on a joint and several basis,
each of them would, and would procure their respective
associates (other than the Group) not to, whether directly
or indirectly, either on its own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, carry
on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or
hold any activity or business which competes or is likely
to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The Company has received annual declaration from each
of the controlling shareholders confirming their compliance
with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The independent non-
executive Directors have also review the annual declaration
and are of the view that the controlling shareholders have
complied with the Deed of Non-completion during the
year ended 31 March 2023.
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2023

The interests or short positions of the persons in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO are as follows:

FERRK
N-E—-=

£=A=+—H

AR AT IR T A8 B AR 15 =0 98 18 A
AFVER(ES 1551 F336f
MRS RAR

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

GREZE

SREENETZEERHA
Personal Family Corporate/ Shareholding
interests interests ~ Other interests  Total interests percentage
Name of ZEER
Shareholder e AR REER o H A 5 Rt ER BREAN
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai EEEE 69,678,000 27,587,500 269,402,000 366,667,500 72.56%
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(Hit—) (Hit—) (Bt =
Ms. Ho Po Chu WERZ L 27,587,500 134,678,000 204,402,000 366,667,500 72.56%
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hit=) (Hi=) (=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming feEmEs 2,850,000 204,402,000 207,252,000 41.01%
(Note 4) (Note 3)
(i) (=
New Sense 121,902,000 — 121,902,000 24.12%
(Note 5)
(Wi 7)
Castfast Properties BEEHE 82,500,000 - 82,500,000 16.33%
(Note 6)
(Witr)
The Wedding City LR 65,000,000 = 65,000,000 12.86%
(Note 7)
(Wit
Honford Investments = 82,500,000 82,500,000 16.33%
(Note 6)
(i)
T™MF — 204,402,000 204,402,000 40.45%
(Note 8)
(W)
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Notes:

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of 69,678,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 27,587,500 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise 27,587,500
Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be interested in (a)
69,678,000 Shares held and 65,000,000 Shares deemed to be
held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, and (b) 204,402,000
Shares referred to in Note 2 below.

The 269,402,000 Shares comprised (i) 121,902,000 Shares
held by New Sense; and (ii) 82,500,000 Shares held by
Castfast Properties, 87% of the issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Honford Investments. New Sense
and Honford Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF as
trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust, and (iii)
65,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding City, 90% and 10%
of the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in the 204,402,000
Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in
65,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms. Ho
Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the discretionary objects
of The Ho Family Trust and are thus deemed to be interested
in the 204,402,000 Shares held under The Ho Family Trust.
Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 204,402,000 Shares duplicate
with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
2,850,000 Shares.

The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by
TMF as trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by TMF as
trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The
interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of the
Castfast Properties.

# it

fa] 42 98 5E A A #E 2= B $569,678,000
Rl m - iEBEEHERAFEER
BRNERLZTEAREREBARBEZ
27,587,500 8% f& 15 o
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Report of the Directors

7. 65,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding
City. 90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu,
respectively. The interests of The Wedding City therefore
duplicate with those of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note 2
below.

8.  TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New
Sense, Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue of
acting as the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares”
above, had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS” INFORMATION UNDER RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no change
in information of directors since the Listing Period.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF

THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual reports, the Company does
not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.21
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group were approximately 70%
of the total purchases of the Group, and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 33% of the Group’s total
purchases. The aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group was less than
30% of the total turnover of the Group.
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None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM, for the purposes
of ascertaining the entitlement to the final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 5 September 2023 to Wednesday, 6 September
2023 (both dates inclusive) during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 September
2023. It is expected that the final dividend will be payable
and issued to those entitled on or around Thursday, 21
September 2023.

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on 30 August 2023, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
24 August 2023 to Wednesday, 30 August 2023 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 August 2023.
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Report of the Directors

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the section
of “Share Option Scheme” in this section, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
KPMG who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

The Company has not changed the auditor of the Company
in the past three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Wai Hon, Brian
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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This Report is prepared in accordance with the Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide” of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, disclosing sustainability information of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

The scope of this Report covers the major operating entities
of the Group, including the offices and sales centres
located in Mainland China, as well as the completed real
estate projects of Phases 3, 4, 5 of Castfast Villas and
Louvre Mansion. The reporting period is the fiscal year
from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023, and the current
period data is presented alongside historical data if
available.

In accordance with the “ESG Reporting Guide”, this Report
has complied with the following reporting principles:

e Materiality: The content in this Report has been
determined based on the significance of the Group’s
sustainability impact, together with stakeholders’
opinions obtained by different departments from daily
work. Please refer to the section “SUSTAINABILITY
MANAGEMENT” in this Report for relevant
information.

e Quantitative: This Report discloses key performance
indicators for material topics in compliance with the
reporting standards mentioned above. Please refer
to the section “KEY PERFORMANCE DATA” in this
Report for relevant information.

e  Balance: This Report provides an unbiased picture of
the Group’s sustainability performance. Regardless
of whether the performance is positive or not, the
information has been disclosed in according with
guidelines.

e Consistency: This Report adopts consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of
the data over time.
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This Report has been approved by the Board and verified
by the independent third-party. Relevant content can be
referred to the section “VERIFICATION STATEMENT”.

KRP upholds the spirit of craftsmanship to create safe and
comfortable ideal homes for customers. In the process
of project development and operation, we take the
management responsibility for relevant sustainability topics.

Through rigorous design, construction, and supervision
processes, the Group ensures that the quality and safety
level of the houses delivered to customers meets regulatory
requirements or above. To provide customers with a
comfortable living environment, the Group has set clear
requirements for property management companies which
shall maintain facilities and equipment within the project,
listen to customer opinions and respond promptly. To
ensure the integrity and confidentiality of customer data,
the Group has established the documentary management
system and allocated reasonable access rights to the
employees.

As the impact of climate change deepens, stakeholders’
demand for green buildings is increasing. The residential
projects developed by the Group have implemented wind-
resistant, flood-resistant, and energy-saving designs. In
accordance with the requirements of the local regulatory
authorities, the Group has set a green building target for
future projects. The Group has formulated internal policies
to manage environmental work in its offices and sales
centres and has listed detailed environmental protection
requirements for contractors and property management
companies.

During business cooperation, the Group strictly prohibits
anyone to take advantage of the situation for personal
benefits. Through internal education and external
supervision, the Group ensures that all cooperation is
based on product quality, service performance, and
recognition of environmental protection, employment,
and safety. The Group has established the management
system to evaluate suppliers and service contractors and
requires all business partners to be aware of the integrity
requirements of the Group before cooperation can
commence.
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The Group has formulated relevant systems to ensure
the safety of the working environment and training
and development opportunities for employees, and
continuously monitors the implementation of related
measures. The health and safety of contractor workers is
also protected by the Group’s regulations, and contractors
are required to implement safety measures that are not
lower than the Group’s standards.

The Group values building good community relationships,
with real estate project customers and residents in
surrounding areas as the main service targets. Through
organising interesting and beneficial community activities,
we enhance community vitality and culture. On the other
hand, the Group also provides support to vulnerable
communities in the surrounding areas.

Under the supervision and authorisation of the Board, the
General Manager leads the relevant departments of the
Group to implement improvements in the daily operation
and reports relevant goals and work progress to the Board
through regular meetings. During the daily communication
process with stakeholders, each department collects their
ideas and needs, and responds promptly. Combining
stakeholder opinions and the impact of the Group’s
business, the Board reviews issues that have a significant
impact on the Group and continuously monitors relevant
work performance to balance stakeholder interests and
jointly build a sustainable future.

The Board is responsible for formulating the sustainability
policy of the Group, overseeing related works, and
reviewing targets and progress. The Board has authorised
the General Manager to lead the relevant departments to
implement the sustainability policy and report to the Board
regularly. The Construction Management Department,
Design Department, Procurement Department, Marketing
Department, Human Resources and Administration
Department, and Internal Audit Department are responsible
for executing specific works and reporting relevant results
to the General Manager regularly.

The Group incorporates the spirit of craftsmanship into
the real estate project development process, building good
homes for customers and creating sustainable communities.
The Group links the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals, establishes a sustainability framework,
and is committed to creating long-term value for all
stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

For Customers:

BEF

Integrating the craftsmanship spirit to build a better home and
property service

[T AT 3EE Y 5 B IR

Protecting customers’ privacy and information security

REEFEALR

For Communities:

BHE: 11, ATER B Th Medt [

For Environment:

BRE:

Creating harmonious and comfortable public spaces, maintaining
good neighborhood relations

TEME  FEARKZR #ERIFBERBE

13 foo

Protecting the Iocal ecology
R FE A RBIRIR

Pursuing the high standards of green building 15 i
EBRFBFEENEBREE

Promoting environmental protection knowledge

= BERR AN

ON LAND

7. £ A E S 2 BER
13. RIE1TE
15. BEs A ¥

For Partners:

BEERHE:

For Stakeholders:

Adhering to the code of business ethics and integrity
BrEmEgsrmassral

Grasping the safety requirements
EEZZHIRE

Working together to build a community through sustainable @
approach

BFAE UTHEHRERLE

1 PARTNERSHIPS

FOR THE GOALS

177 REBSERNBHBER

BEFGE:

Establishing appropriate channels for engagement
BUYBERBEFNDERTER

For E mPI oyees: DECENT WORK AND
e ECONOMIC GROWTH
BET.

88

Providing a safe, inclusive, and caring work environment
Rtz B BEENTERR
Establishing training mechanisms and career development paths
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The various departments of the Group have established —ANEEXEFIEMBRERFO ERILZ LA
diverse communication channels with relevant stakeholders ~ #®R:E @ BRREHETRABMHEER
to listen to and record the feedback from different WEBTFTHIEFEZERMBLER
stakeholders. Through regular meetings, they report to the %%Aﬁiﬁ AEBZEEBTRFFN
General Manager and the information is finally reported EFZE  FENGEAFEZEIIE -

to the Board. The Group generally considers the needs

of different stakeholders and continuously improves its

sustainable development performance.

Shareholders

B R

e Annual General Meeting
BRARE

® Press Release
s

e Circulars, Announcements, Annual and Interim Reports
B DNE E2FRPHEERS

* Information on the Company’s Website and on the Internet
NEME - EBEEA

e Shareholders’” Communication Policies

P BRE AR B R

Employees

BT

e Corporate Events
NCIDER)

e Internal Memos
W_LB /_\/_“:

e Suggestion Box
BERAE

e Workshops
TEH

e Monthly Publication
AT

Customers

EF

e Onsite Visit and Communication
BI528BRERM

e Information on the Company’s Website and on the Internet
NEME - EEEEA

e Telephone and Onsite Interviews
E i MR G EH #A

e Questionnaires

BRAT



Suppliers

HER
e Supplier Onsite Audits
P 8 A
e Supplier Training
R F 5
Regulators and Industrial Organisations
EERBRITXAR

e Visit and Examine Real Estate Projects
28 EERMERHA

e Corporate Events

NEEE

e Seminars and Workshops
gk Iy

Local Communities

Kip it &

e  Community Events
RS

e Volunteering
BHIIE

e Charitable Projects
BELRY

The process to identify material topics for the Group
was based on the impact on its business model and
the opinions gathered from daily communication with
stakeholders across various departments. The Group
adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited “Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide”,
sustainability topics. The Group analysed the importance
of various relevant topics in the real estate industry based
on the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB),
the Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB),
MSCI, S&P Global, and the material topics of the major
real estate peers in China, as well as the opinions of the
Group’s stakeholders, and prioritised the topics related
to the Group’s business. After approval by the Board, the
Group’s high material ESG topics include the following
eight items.

as the list of
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Concerns/Expectation

Order Topic of the Stakeholders Relevant Index Disclosure (Chapter)
FF E 3= HHERE HE BEER REEH
1 Ensuring housing quality ~ Customers: To provide HKEX B6 CRAFTSMANSHIP
and safety good housing quality Product Responsibility BUILDING
EREEEER BF FEEERY HKEX B6 g 5E
Regulators: To fully comply Em&EF
with building-related
regulatory requirements
EERE: 2ENSREMN
BA M E K
2 Business ethics and Suppliers: To maintain HKEX B7 SINCERE
integrity a fair and cooperative Anti-Corruption COOPERATION
BEBRERE environment HKEX B7 R
HER: BB RAFAERE RES
Employees: To comply
with relevant laws and
regulations
BT : B THBERER
B3k
3 Occupational health and ~ Employees: The company ~ HKEX B2 COHESIVE TALENT
safety provides a safe working Health and Safety 3 YN
BEREETs environment HKEX BZ
BI:RARHRLZE2TIHER @EER
5
Contractors and
suppliers: To support the
implementation of safety
measures
AR HER RHE
EELZETERER
4 Conserving local Regulators: HKEX A3 HARMONIOUS

ecology

RE & i 4 BE

The construction process
meets environmental
impact assessment
requirements

BERE  RRRRNA
REFEEXK
Shareholders: To ensure
investment projects are
compliant and beneficial
R RIREEBES R
WA A M=

The Environmental

and Natural
Resources

HKEX A3
BRREERABIR

ENVIRONMENT
MR IRIE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 & 91



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Concerns/Expectation

Order Topic of the Stakeholders Relevant Index Disclosure (Chapter)
7 E 4= BOERE/HE HEER REEMH
5 Protecting customer Customers: Personal HKEX B6 CONSIDERATE
rights information is protected Product SERVICE
RETFPHER BEP - EAEEXRE  Responsibility 8k 0 AR 75
Employees: To maintain  HKEX B6
good customer EmEE
relationships
BT #RFRERFERRE
6 Developing green Regulators: HKEX A3 HARMONIOUS
buildings New real estate projects The Environmental ENVIRONMENT
TEEeREE meet national green and Natural MEEIRIE
building targets Resources
EEWRE %ﬁﬁi%ﬂﬂ?lﬁ HKEX A3
BERNAERSERER RERRARER
=
Customers: To provide
comfortable housing and
surrounding environment
BEF FEFRRABRESF
il
7 Addressing climate Shareholders, Industry ~ HKEX A4 HARMONIOUS
change Organisations: To Climate Change ENVIRONMENT
JE ¥ Rz 2 1L cooperate with global HKEX A4 MEEIRIE
trends to implement 53-21e

measures to address
climate change

IR~ 1TEARK e
HBYEERERYRIRE
:okpii

Customers: The house
can withstand extreme
weather conditions

BP : EEEHE L i
RRIER
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Concerns/Expectation

Order Topic of the Stakeholders

7 E 3= BRERET/HE

8 Supporting charitable Customers: To foster
programs good neighborhood

EB A mIER relationships

Relevant Index

Disclosure (Chapter)

B Bt 15 R BEEH
HKEX B8 CARING
Community COMMUNITY
Investment MiEd

BF  EERIMERAE HKEX B8
Community: To enhance ft[&1% &

community vitality and
take care of community

needs
MR EmtR)E S - B
BaEFEE

The Group conducts an enterprise risk assessment at least
once a vyear, covering ESG-related risks, including talent
competition, supply chain interruption, property damage,
as well as environmental protection, safety, personal
information protection, anti-corruption, and other risks.
The Internal Audit Department of the Group organises
various departments to conduct risk identification,
likelihood and impact assessment, develop mitigation
measures, and monitor their implementation every vyear.
After review by the Group’s CEO and CFO, the risk
management result is submitted to the Group’s Audit
Committee and the Board.

The Group has established the management system
for different design stages. The Design Department
has developed Design Technical Standards Guidelines
covering architecture, structure, water supply and drainage,
electricity, air conditioning, decoration, and landscape
areas. All design companies are required to conduct
standardised design according to these guidelines to ensure
compliance with relevant national regulations, including
but not limited to the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Urban and Rural Planning, the Construction Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Project Code for
Residential Building, the Management Measures for Safety
Facilities of Construction Projects and the Fire Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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Quality control during the construction process begins
with selecting high-quality building contractors and
suppliers. The Group has developed detailed agreements
to ensure that construction performance and material
quality meet our standards. The Group has established a
set of standardised technical and quality control guidelines,
providing detailed requirements for quality standards and
specifications during the construction process.

The Group controls the construction quality in advance,
with the implementation of construction examples
guidance as well as material and equipment examples
management. It establishes the examples of construction,
material and equipment to guide subsequent onsite
material and equipment checking and construction
processes. Multiple inspections will be conducted during
the construction process.
by contractors and acceptance checks by third-party
certified construction supervision companies and the

In addition to self-inspection

Group’s Construction Management Department, the Group
also together with relevant departments,
supervision companies and chief engineers, implements

construction

internal combined acceptance checks for projects and
records the process with photos and documents on a cloud
platform.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group carries out testing and certification of the materials
and equipment quality for the main structure, building
roofing, water supply and drainage, and
heating in stages. The Group has established detailed rules

decoration,

for “Unit Acceptance Checks”.
the Group organised internal relevant
designers,

According to regulatory
requirements,
departments, supervision, and construction
companies to conduct “Unit Acceptance Checks” before
the implementation of the overall completion acceptance

of the project.

The Group provides building structural quality assurance to
the owners in accordance with applicable laws and specific
quality assurance for certain applicable equipment and
fixed installations for a specified period. During the quality
assurance period, the construction contractor is responsible
for the cost of relevant maintenance.
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The Marketing Department of the Group is responsible for
coordinating the sale of properties, and the process strictly
adheres to relevant regulations, including but not limited
to the Rules on Sales of Commodity Housing at Clearly
Marked Prices, the Administrative Measures for the Pre-sale
of Urban Commodity Housing, and the Regulations on
Administration of Pre-sale of Commodity Housing of
Guangdong Province.

The Group has developed internal guidelines requiring all
salespersons and staff for house delivery to receive basic
information training and conduct sales and house delivery
exercises before the project is publicly sold. This ensures
that accurate and consistent information of the projects is
provided to all customers. Before delivering the property
to the owner, the Property Service Centre must conduct
a house acceptance inspection together with the Group’s
Construction Management Department, and repair any
problems within a specified period. During the house
delivery process, the Property Service Centre introduces
in detail the use instructions for the house and attached
facilities and equipment, answers owners’ questions, and
provides relevant information for owners’ record.

To provide customers with a high-quality living
environment continuously, the Group has developed the
property management plan and provided detailed service
management requirements for the property management
company. The Property Service Centre must conduct
inspections regularly, maintain all buildings and facilities in
good condition, complete repair for damages or residents’
maintenance needs found during the inspections within
a limited time frame, and conduct 100% follow-up visits.
The Property Service Centre must also visit residents
regularly and provide complaint channels for customers. All
customer complaints received must be handled within the
specified time limit. For complaints related to the Group,
the Property Service Centre must report them to the Group
promptly for follow-up.
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The Group has developed the file management system
and set user access permissions to ensure the integrity
and confidentiality of customers’ information. The Group
has established an independent central file room to
manage the documents and data, including customers’
personal information. No individual is allowed to
retain these documents without permission. According
to the job functions of employees, the Group has set
corresponding access permissions and conducts regular
inspections. During the year, the Group did not receive any
complaints regarding the disclosure of customers’ personal
information.

The Group has developed transparency management guide
to ensure that customer complaints related to sales are
reasonably and effectively addressed. The Administration
Department is responsible for reviewing complaints every
month and evaluating the performance of the Marketing
Department. During the year, the Group received two
sales-related complaints. After communication and
coordination with customers, they eventually appealed to
the local Market Supervision and Management Bureau and
the Court. However, the relevant regulators did not support
the customers’ refund claims, and their applications were
rejected.

The Group has developed internal guidelines for assessing
the location of new projects before considering investment
and development, including consideration of environmental
conservation around the site. The Group complies with
local environmental protection laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment. Before the project starts, an independent third
party is appointed to carry out the environmental impact
assessment, develop the mitigation plan, and supervise
the implementation of environmental protection measures
during the project’s construction and operation.
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The Group considers environmentally friendly design
schemes in the first phase of the project, including
optimisation of building orientation, facade appearance,
unit layout, building materials, etc. The Phases 4 and 5
of Castfast Villas, and Louvre Mansion developed by the
Group have adopted appropriate environmentally friendly
designs, such as south-facing layouts, low-radiation glass
and insulated external walls, to enhance natural ventilation
and lighting, improve thermal insulation performance
and energy efficiency. To mitigate the impact of extreme
weather caused by climate change, the Group designs the
projects’” wind-resistant and flood-resistant capabilities that
meet the standards according to the geographical location.

In accordance with the requirements of the 14th Five-Year
Plan for Building Energy Conservation and Green
Buildings Development of the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group has set a green building target that all
new projects will achieve the basic level or above of
the green building standard by 2025 or earlier. At that
time, all new projects must meet the design requirements
related to energy saving, water saving, material saving and
indoor environmental quality in the standard, and improve
building insulation capacities, heating and refrigeration
equipment performance, lighting density according to the
General Code for Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy
Application in Buildings of the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the People’s Republic of
China.

During the construction process, the contractor must
manage environmental protection matters at the
construction site in accordance with the Group’s Onsite
Safety and Civilised Construction Standards or higher
requirements, including controlling dust, wastewater,
and waste discharge. After the project is completed, the
Group also requires the property management company to
develop environmental management regulations, including
recording of the energy consumption and water use of the
facilities and equipment in the project and regular check

up.
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For the daily operations, the Group has specified energy
and resource management requirements in the Employee
Handbook, including turning off unnecessary lighting and
electrical equipment, conserving water, and encouraging
double-sided printing or reusing single-sided paper. During
the year, the total energy consumption of the offices, sales
centres, and unsold housing units managed by the Group
was 559,262 kWh, including electricity consumption
of 495,540 kWh, petrol consumption of 6,575 litres
(equivalent to 63,722 kWh), and the water consumption
was 24,417 m3. The electricity and water resources used by
the Group are provided by municipal companies, and there
are no issues in obtaining these resources.

Domestic sewage generated during operations is connected
to the municipal sewage pipeline in accordance with the
local regulations and transferred to the municipal sewage
plant for treatment and discharge. The Group has several
vehicles for employees’ business trips transportation and
commuting, which will produce a small amount of air
pollutants during fuel combustion. All vehicles owned
by the Group undergo regular inspections as required
by the local government to ensure that their exhaust
emissions comply with relevant regulations. Referring to
the calculation guidelines based on the fuel consumption
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Group’s vehicles
emitted 3.22 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.10 kg of sulfur oxides,
and 0.24 kg of particulate matter during the year.

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions mainly come
from energy use, including vehicle fuel and electricity
consumption. During the year, the direct greenhouse gas
emissions (Scope 1) of the Group were 17.54 tCO,e, and
the indirect energy-related greenhouse gas emissions

(Scope 2) were 282.61 tCOZe.
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The Group continues to collaborate with various external
partners to provide necessary services for different stages
of its projects. During the construction and development
phase, the Group only selects reliable and reputable design
companies, building contractors, and material suppliers
to provide services and raw materials for project design
and construction. The selection process is usually carried
out through a tendering procedure, taking into account
factors such as suppliers’ qualifications, track records, work
quality, delivery schedule, and cost.

The Group has established the procedures and
management methods for selecting contractors and
suppliers, including the “Construction Tendering
Management Measures” and the “General Procurement
Management Measures”. All contractors and suppliers must
provide qualification certificates related to environmental
protection and safety, undergo a qualification review, and
follow the Group’s requirements for on-site inspections.
Only contractors and suppliers who have passed the review
and inspection can participate in tendering or accept
procurement invitations. When selecting suppliers, the
Group values their environmental and safety qualifications
and on-site inspection results. Suppliers with good
performance will receive bonus points and increase the
cooperation opportunities. The Group has established the
list of qualified suppliers and conducts reviews and internal
evaluations at least every six months, reassessing and
revisiting suppliers in batches. During the year, the Group
collaborated with 25 major contractors and suppliers, all
located in China.

AEBEREEBETARUNINEE
HEIE RIEBTRBEBREMRAEZR
BeoRBZERERER AEEREE
A BEERINR AR BEAR
B MREERSRAER kG TEE
RERBMREME - LB BAFBER
Fi#ETT  HAaZEHEE - HEmix
TEFEE  RIMNKHRERKAFAE -

REBCHTERADREER Y
REMEERMNE  BIE(IEREZEE
HEY (—MERBEEWEE - 1E
AEEEHERTRECSEERNER
R -LZEEFEANELEEE  #TER
BE TEAASEERETELE
R AFBBEENRERZEADE R
JER - HEEREBR SR BETHBEEE -
RRBEHERR  AEEBEHRERR
HT2EEUANEMEREN  EAR
FRFAZHEBEEMNS WL INE 1
e AEBRUAKREBEFIRE I
ELOBEFETRITRAITE - St
HHERETEFTEREG - NEE
RAFEEIEZ EEFAB R R REREE
5K HEHMURFE -



The Group identifies the main environmental and social
risks of suppliers by analysing their business models. As
contractors have a large number of workers and safety
and environmental pollution risks exist in their workplace,
the Group requires them to strictly comply with the
labour and safety-related laws and regulations, establish
management systems for construction site safety and
environmental issues, and protect the legitimate rights of
workers. The Group has established the Onsite Safety and
Civilised Construction Standards, implemented the safety
hazard inspection system,
safety measures that contractors must follow during site
management, and monitored contractors’ practices by the

specified environmental and

Construction Management Department and construction
supervision companies.

During the collaboration process, the Group upholds the
principles of integrity and honesty. Referring to relevant
laws and regulations in the operation area, the Group has
developed and released the “Employee Code of Ethics” to
all employees. All new employees must receive integrity
training and all employees will receive regular corporate
reminders. At the same time, the Group issues the “Peers’
Belief” letter to all business partners, which clearly states
the Group’s integrity requirements, provides whistleblowing
channels, urges partners not to provide benefits to the
employees of the Group and to report any violations. All
business partners must sign the document to acknowledge
the Group’s requirement and make their commitments
before collaboration.

The Group has developed and implemented
anti-corruption and anti-bribery systems. Under the
authorisation of the management, the Internal Audit
Department implements daily anti-corruption and
including handling complaints,
ensuring the protection of whistleblowers, conducting

anti-fraud measures,

internal investigations, and reporting to the Board. For any
discovered corrupt or fraudulent behavior, the Group takes
remedial measures and preventive methods to avoid similar
incidents in the future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group regularly provides anti-corruption compliance
training to senior management and employees, enhancing
their understanding of relevant laws and regulations.
Relevant policies and explicit prohibiting provisions
have incorporated into the Employee Handbook and
the Employee Code of Ethics. During the year, all new
employees have received anti-corruption compliance
training; all board members have received director
responsibility training, including supervising the Group’s
anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters.

The Group complies with the relevant provisions of the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China related to
non-state-owned companies and enterprise employees’
criminal clauses and prohibitions on commercial bribery, as
well as relevant applicable laws and regulations. During the
year, the Group did not occur any related violations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HERERRSE

COHESIVE TALENT BEBAT

The job functions of the Group’s employees include A&EEEEBEFZFEEE BHE
management, real estate development and design, F#EREFT TREEE  &KE HE -
construction management, procurement, sales, finance, 7% - A NERRITHERE - REBER
human resources and administration. During the year, ZAFEAFHEEBAZEABIA EF S
the monthly average number of employees in the Group  Z 14 5496 : 4 o F i #H A LA30ZE505%
was 63, with a gender ratio of approximately 6:4 between HAtFHAEEE  WAFE AREHKS -
males and females. The age group is primarily composed

of young adults aged 30 to 50, and opportunities are also

provided for the youth.
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The Group strictly adheres to local laws and regulations
when hiring employees, including but not limited to
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Regulations on Management of Housing
Provident Fund. According to Chinese regulations, the
Group signs written labour contracts with all employees
in China, complies with the local minimum wage standard
and employment age requirement, and provides welfare
programs covering endowment insurance, unemployment
insurance, maternity insurance, work-related injury
insurance, medical insurance, and housing provident
fund. In addition, the Group establishes a “Cooperative
Home” to encourage and finance potential elites to settle
down and work locally, effectively retaining talents in the
competitive talent market. The Group provides employees
with the employment guide that outlines their benefits and
job requirements, allowing employees to understand their
rights and job requirements.

The Group strictly prohibits any use of child labour or
forced labour. The Human Resources Department verifies
the age and identity information of each new employee
before employment. Employees only need to submit
their original personal documents and certificates for
inspection, the Human Resources Department will keep a
copy for filing, and the original will be promptly returned
to the employee, ensuring that all employees enjoy
employment freedom. During the Year, the Group did
not violate any employment-related laws and regulations,
did not encounter any significant problems in recruiting
or retaining employees, and did not suffer any significant
interference due to labour disputes or strikes.
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The workplaces of the Group’s employees are offices
or sales centres, with relatively low safety risks. New
employees will receive orientation and fire-related
education. The Group complies with relevant regulations
such as the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, implements fire protection measures in the office
and conducts regular inspections. During the year, the
Group did not occur any work-related injuries among the
employees and did not have any violations of relevant laws
and regulations related to occupational safety and health.
The Group also provided appropriate support to employees
during the COVID-19 pandemic in the past three years,
including providing prevention materials such as masks
and rapid testing kits, and providing more flexible working
arrangements to minimise the risk of infection.

The Group also sets detailed requirements for the
safety management work of contractors and property
management companies, ensuring the safety of
construction workers and property management staff in the
Group’s real estate projects, and ensuring that contractors
comply with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Work Safety, the Law of the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Safety Facilities of Construction
Project “Three Simultaneous” Interim Measures for The
Supervision and Management and other relevant laws and
regulations. The Group requires contractors and property
management companies to buy accident insurance in
accordance with regulations, and to provide regular
physical examinations and training for workers at risk of
occupational injuries.

The Group arranges for all new employees to receive the
orientation and develops annual training plans to provide
continuous training courses for in-service employees,
including professional skills and safety information. During
the year, the average training hours per employee of
the Group reached 8.6 hours, and the training coverage
rate was 91.5%. The Group offered professional courses
such as bidding and procurement, cost control, project
management, property management, marketing planning,
and tax processing, continuously improving employees’
professional levels in important aspects of the Group’s
business.
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Average Training Hours

(By Gender) Average Training Hours (by Categories)
(Unit: Hours) (Unit: Hours)
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9.5 0 103
7.9
6.4

Male Female Management Middle Level Entry Level
el ZE EEAB PEXE HEEST

Training Percentage

(by Gender) Training Percentage (by Categories)
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The Group regularly organises training to enhance the ability of employees
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING COMMUNITY

The Group values the community’s culture development
of real estate projects and has formulated guidelines for
community building. The Group has collaborated with
the property management company to create a lively
and vibrant community. During the year, the Group has
organised multiple community activities in the Phases 3,
4 and 5 of Castfast Villas,
event, a Mid-Autumn Festival celebration, a National Day
carnival, and grassland stargazing camping. These activities
have attracted more than 1,200 participants and promoted
communication among community residents.

including a summer-themed

The Group also collaborates with local charitable
organisations to provide support to vulnerable groups in
the community. During the year, the Group donated to
the Shaoguan Charity Federation. In past years, the Group
has participated in support activities for the Dongguan
Fenggang Disability Federation and the “Ten Thousand
Enterprises Help Ten Thousand Villages” national charitable
project. The Group was paired with Maoling Village,
Tongjing Tujia People Town, Dejiang County, Guizhou
Province, to provide support to disabled and low-income
groups in poor areas.
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The Group regularly organises community activities to promote local culture
and vitality in the community
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KEY PERFORMANCE DATA BREENHE

Environmental RIE
UTREHBEEREAEEMNEZEHE
IWMAE  HEBBIZEHEPLEEE
AEBEEREBZEEEN -

The following environmental data covers the Group’s
office located in Fenggang, Dongguan, sales centres for
properties currently on sale, and residential units directly
managed by the Group.

Item Unit
HEE Bfy 2022/23 2021/22
Electricity Consumption kWh 495,540 743,030
RAEE TR E
Petrol Consumption Litre 6,575 1,498
AHFERE ~H

equivalent to kWh 63,722 14,513

WERTEE
Total Energy Consumption kWh 559,262 757,543
ReeRERE T EL
Energy Intensity (by Delivered Area) kWh/m? 21.00 27.00
BERERE(BRIXNEETE FREFHK
Water Consumption m3 24,417 85,239
BAKE SR
Water Intensity (by Delivered Area) m3/m? 0.92 3.04
AxgERINEETE SR EF K
Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions ! tCO e 17.54 4.00
BEE(EENDAERBIHERE" WS E e e
Indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions ' tCO e 282.61 431.70
A (EE2)AEREBHEKRE WS E e e
Scopes 1 and 2 GHG Emissions tCOe 300.15 435.70
HENRBEDRERBHRAE WE LIk E 8
GHG Emissions Intensity (by Delivered Area) tCO e/m* 0.011 0.016
BERBHRAR(RINERE) B_REBREE FHK
! The types of GHG include: carbon dioxide (CO,), methane / Zf: REMmENEERE: Z 49

(CH,), nitrous oxide (N,O), hydro-fluorocarbons (HFCs), - B (CH,) \%mgﬁfﬁ(r\]zo) |
per-fluorocarbons (PFCs) and sulfur hexafluoride (SF ). ﬁﬁr{l:'ff% HFCs) ~ 2 &AL (PFCs) A /<

Emission factors and global warming potential (GWP) data
sources and calculations methods are derived from
the How to Prepare an ESG Report by HKEX, and the
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines for
Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises for Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revision) and the Notice
on Doing a Good Job in 2023-2025 Reporting and
Management of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Power
Generation Enterprises by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of PRC, and the Fifth Climate Change Assessment
Report (AR5) by IPCC.

BALT(SF) - BEMAFR 2B ES
(GWP) m%ﬂfﬂziﬁﬁééiﬂéﬁ/\ﬁﬁm<ﬁu
4w ERE ?iA&€/6$&¢> EP%/\
REMBAERBEH(DEREREH
BEEREEREER *f”'“*“m(zozz
F A aThR)) ~ B 7 472023-2025 4F 2
ETECEREREENBREEERHS
TEMBAEBFEREZELEME
Be(ERANAREBTHRE) -
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Item Unit
BER g 2022/23 2021/22
NOx (Corporate Vehicle Exhaust) 2 k 3.22 5.63
L 1) (23 A B 1 2 ) ¥ 5
SOx (Corporate Vehicle Exhaust) 2 k 0.10 0.02
malty(RFERHER)?
Particulate Matters (Corporate Vehicle Exhaust) 2 k 0.24 0.54
% B ) (2 A8 1 2 ) 5
Social Ttg
Employment Overview & & % 2022/23
The Group’s Average Number of Employees REBHANFHET AR

during The Year * 63
By District R E
Mainland B 56
Hong Kong HE 7
By Gender gLl
Male % 37
Female z 26
By Age Group & F i 48 Bl
Below 30 3058 A T 9
30-50 30-505% 48
Above 50 505% A £ 6
By Employment Type rZERER
Full-time a1 63
Part-time ¥ 5B 0
Number and Rate of Employee Turnover BFPHEIRAAH
(Monthly Average) 4 R b 2R 2022/23
By District 7 it e 63
Mainland Al Hb 1.83 (3.3%)
Hong Kong EB 0.08 (1.2%)
By Gender 1% Bl
Male = 1.42 (3.8%)
Female 58 0.50 (1.9%)
By Age Group 75 e 4 Bl
Below 30 305% A T 0.42 (4.6%)
30-50 30-507% 1.33 (2.8%)
Above 50 508% LA £ 0.17 (2.8%)
2 The emissions of NOx, SOx and Particulates were calculated NOx ~ SOxA R BRI ¥ 2 & T0 &

108

based on the amount of fossil fuels that used by the Group;
relevant calculations and data sources are derived from
EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission Calculation by the H.K.
Environmental Protection Department, Vehicle Emission
Modeling Software — MOBILE6.T by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, and EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant Emission
Inventory Guidebook — 2019 by European Environmental
Agency.

The monthly average number of employees during the year
Monthly turnover rate of a specific type of employee = monthly
average number of that type of employees turned over/monthly
average number of that type of employees

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z £l E# EE R E R 2 7

RASERBEREFENRS  H@EH
W R E B E B R IE R % F EMFAC-HK
Vehicle Emission Calculation /5 B 3 %
FFERA - X EIR B R EEFE A Vehicle
Emission Modeling Software 5 B # i 1%
RE M — MOBILE6.1 » BUMNIR IR B %
5 B CEMEP/EEA Air Pollutant Emission
Inventory Guidebook — 2019) ©
EHRFE ETAHMATHE
A¥ERALEAE—BANEIZE
AR RAANE ZENZEAFHA
2
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Occupational Health and Safety BERERZ2 2022/23
Number and Rate (%) of Occupational Fatalities TAHT AZ XL E %) 0
Number of Lost Day AITEmEX 2 IER 0
Employee Training 8T 2022/23
Total Training Hours 78 35 7)1 B B 539/)NBF hours
Average Training Hours per Employee and 8 T ¥ 1955 ol i 8% L s

Coverage Percentage’ 8.6 (91.5%)
By Gender B B
Male EE) 7.9 (91.2%)
Female pegis 9.5 (92.0%)
By Category RETEHR
Management EEAEB 6.4 (75.0%)
Middle Level TEEE 9.4 (100%)
Entry Level EEET 10.3 (100%)

Number and Rate of Major Suppliers

Distribution by Location TEHERHEIMBERLE 2022/23
China EP 25 (100%)
Others H b it [@ 0 (0%)
Social Responsibility HEEMHR 2022/23
Charitable Donation (RMB) REBREB(ARE) 12,000

A

5 Training percentage = number of employees getting training  ° BIA = E—ERNE TEARFEE

during the year (only counting the employees still on job at the REIN 2 AB(RFAEFREBRAEL) /
year of the year)/total number of employees at the end of the ZHERE T 2 FERER AR
year
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Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Locations of Disclosure or

RE FEHER BEH —REBKRHERBERERER) Remarks

WEME B

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements 3& #l i & 18 &€

Governance Structure

BIARE

Reporting Principles
F % R R

Reporting Boundary
e

A statement from the board containing the following BOARD STATEMENT
elements: EXRH
SUSTAINABILITY
(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG MANAGEMENT
issues AREERER

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets with an
explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

HEFERHOBR  ERHETIAR:
() REEFEURE HEREAFEMEE:

(i) EFENRE HENEREENTHIERR B
BEE BAHIKEEEENRE HEK
BERANBEEEREBEUZETARENRR BB
=

(i) EFEMERERE HEREAEBESERS
EE UHMECPHOAEZFTAEZHEHE -
A description of, or an explanation on, the application ABOUT THIS REPORT
of the Reporting Principles (Materiality, Quantitative [ 77 %
and Consistency) in the preparation of the ESG report.
HAABEBERRBRE HeMERBRE RN ER
ERRANEZN M- -
A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ABOUT THIS REPORT
ESG report and describing the process used to identify B R 7N &
which entities or operations are included in the ESG
report.
BRRR dHelkEaRENERDE  RELHKE
MLERXXBAARE HENELRRENBRE -



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

‘Comply or explain’ Provisions [7 & <F 5t f# 18 | & X
Aspect Al: Emissions & EA1: HE ¥

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI AT.1
B8 R IR IR AL

KPI A1.2
B R MIERAL2

[nformation on:

(@ the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

FRBRMEERBHN RAKRLHEOHS BAF
FEEBRRNNELESN:

(@) BR:R

b) BTHETABEATZENHBELIZIAMD
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B ER REB R

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions and, where appropriate,
intensity.

EF(@EEDRERBE(HRE)REREHIEM
MR R(MER)ZERE(WNEBEEEN BARIE

) -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

KEVE B

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
MAE R

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

MR R

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
FAREERE
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

MRS

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
ARABRE



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

KPI A1.3
B EMIEREALS

KPI AT.4
BB IRIRALS

KPI A1.5
R EMIER ALS

KPI A1.6
FSEMIRE AL

Total hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FELRZREENMEE NEAE) R(En) BE (I
NEBEEEN  BEREAE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FELEERENLEE CAEE) R (ER)BE (1
DEEREL  SEREHE) -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

WP M EE R R AERELBFMERD
g

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

WA EEEEREETRERMNT L  REAMETLH
BMEBRLAEINELERMRMNTRE -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

REVE B

All the operating locations

of the Group are offices and
sales centres, and there is no
significant waste generation. The
non-hazardous waste generated
is collected and transferred

for treatment by the municipal
sanitation organisation.
According to the Directory of
National Hazardous Wastes
(Version 2021), the office waste
does not need to be managed as
hazardous waste.
AEEEEHI/MRERE
HPL  WEBEERMES
FRELMEERERY)  AMBUR
sk YEBRE - RIBPE
ARAMBKBRZREREZDA
FQONFRNDHTE  HEEY
BEERERBERMER
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

MEEIR R

The Group’s daily operations do
not involve significant pollution
or waste emissions, and we
have set green building target to
reduce emissions during project
construction and operation in
future.
ARBRAREETNFERBES
AR BEEWMBN - YCFLARE
REBRRLRERT 2ES
BB -



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources BEA2 : R A

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI A2.1
B8R IR A2

KPI A2.2
BRI WIETR A2.2

KPI A2.3
B8 88 AR SR 1R A2.3

KPI A2.4
BB ARIE 1R A2.4

KPI A2.5
BB AR IE 1R A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.
BERERER(BIEEIR - KREMEME) &
K o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.
REAMEASNEER /IR ERR(WNE - [Ih) &
REUTETREAR)RERE (WNSEEEM
BRMEEE)

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKERZRE(MABEEEN - BRARENE)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

W FRI B RER Y AR S ETEL
BIRFTERERE 5 8F o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

f st SR EGE AR LRI B ERIFEE - A KR PTET
VAR EERE R AEDE LB RARRA
e

Total packaging material used for finished
products, and if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.
HEmAAEEMHNEE CAEE) X (E
RIBEEEMUGE -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

WEVE B

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
MR R

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

MAERE

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
FARBERE
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

GEEE)

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
BAREEHR
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT

&R

The Group’s daily operations
consume limited energy and
water resources, and we have
set green building target to
reduce energy and water
consumption during project
construction and operation
in future.
REBRBKEEMBERERLIR
FOKERBIR - BRI 4%
EEEARRLEART
EEBREZER  KERHE
FE o

The Group is a real estate
developer, and this KPI is not
applicable.
AEBREWERRRD  Z
EENER -



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

Locations of Disclosure or

Remarks

REVE B

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources BHA3 : BER XA ER

General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

— AR R impact on the environment and natural
resources.
BEBTAHREMNRAERENBEAFZER
PSR e

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities

#8245 IE 1R A3.1 on the environment and natural resources and
actions taken to manage them.
R EREBHHREREIRAAERNEAZER
EXREEBHEYENTY -

Aspect A4: Climate Change B EH A4 : R1R &1t

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of

— R E significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
A REHEEER ﬁé’;%ﬁé‘ﬁj\ﬁi%%ﬁ”]
EARRHBEENERE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related

#8245 IE R A4 issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to
manage them.
WABEERAEHETAELEFENEAR
REBEEE  MEYHTH -

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
GRS

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
ﬂ:u *kb

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
a8 IR R

HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
%D =kt i j:E



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

Aspect B1: Employment /& EB1 : {& {8

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B1.1
8 B8 AR AR AR 1R B1.

KPI B1.2
8 # 48 5 12 B1.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

FRFMEERE BEREN THERE R

. FE#e 2l RESAREMFE

&R OR

@ BR: K&

by BTHETABEAZENHBZIZLR
{5 1) & %}

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age

group and geographical region.

R EEBEL(NEBGRE)  Ficdn

K&l EE B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

IR FERANMMESONEERRLEE -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

WEVE B

COHESIVE TALENT
BEBEANT

COHESIVE TALENT
BEBEAL

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
BRHEERE

COHESIVE TALENT
REBEANT

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
BARHEERE



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Locations of Disclosure or

RE TEER BEH —REENERAREREER) Remarks

BRENE B
Aspect B2: Health and Safety EHIB2 : R EEHZ 2
General Disclosure Information on: COHESIVE TALENT
—MRIXE (@) the policies; and BB AL

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

FHRAZE2THEREMREREE 2B ET

fo & a:
@ BR: MK
by BTHETABEARZENRBEEIRZER
B ) o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities The Group’s daily operations
78 8 42 BIE 12 B2.1  occurred in each of the past three years including are conducted in offices and
the reporting year. sales centres, with relatively
BEZFRREERFRE)SFAITHA AL low health and safety risks.
R bp 2 o In the past three years, there
is no work-related fatalities.
AEEAREEHAMAE
REHTPL  BEZZ2ER
RE BE=-FIEEWE
THERITH -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
MEENEEB2 AIBGHEAI(EFRR- FARBERE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety COHESIVE TALENT

78 8 45 BIE 12 B2.3  measures adopted, how they are implemented %t % A7
and monitored.
PR B R 2 R e 245 6 - A NAEREE
HITMERTIE -



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

Aspect B3: Development and Training fE B3 : & E & 1Z 7l

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B3.1
8 # 48 5 12 B3.1

KPI B3.2
8 88 45 45 1R B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.
FHRAEERITIEBRENMRE MM
R HAFIED o

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category.

R REBER (e REEE
FAoMXIEEEDL -

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
RUERNEEERE D  BREE KN
TR -

CFRRERRE)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards /& E B4 : 8 T % 8|

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B4.1
B8 B8 IR A 1R B4.T

KPI B4.2
8 88 AR AR IE 1R B4.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRADTIEE T kb4 T

@ HBE: &

by BTHETAGEAZENHBEERER
{5 1) & #}

Description of measures to review employment

practices to avoid child and forced labour.

1t i 5 RS B I 0 15 5 AR R B T N 98 ) 55

To

Description of steps taken to eliminate child and

forced labour practices when discovered.

R ER B ERBREHR A BB AR

g

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

KEVE B

COHESIVE TALENT
BBEANT

COHESIVE TALENT
BEBEANT

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
FAREIERE

COHESIVE TALENT
BREBAA

KEY PERFORMANCE DATA
FAREERE

COHESIVE TALENT
BBANT

COHESIVE TALENT
BEBEANT

COHESIVE TALENT
BEANT



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [ B5 : { fE i & 12

General Disclosure

— R E
KPI B5.1
38§ 45 3R 45 1R B5.1

KPI B5.2
78§ AR X 4R 1R B5.2

KPI B5.3
B8 §& 4R SN 4R 1R B5.3

KPI B5.4
B8 88 SR SR HE 1R B5 .4

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
EEHERENRENMESRREEK -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

milm s D R R EE o

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Wi EREEREREENED  HERNTEBE
DI ERHEE  ARMEBRITRERTA -
Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

T 7B BE A B R S B E R B VIR IR At &
REIED - ARBEATRERTE -
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

W ERERERFREZBRRE R RS
MIED - ARMBBRATRERTE -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

REVE B

SINCERE COOPERATION
A 1

SINCERE COOPERATION
B A 1
KEY PERFORMANCE DATA

FAREERE
SINCERE COOPERATION

0.4 1

SINCERE COOPERATION
WA

SINCERE COOPERATION
B EE
HARMONIOUS
ENVIRONMENT
MEBIRIR



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHE - -BE

- REBERBRERERE(EEF)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility /B EB6 : & @ &

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1
8 # 48 2 5 12 B6.1

KPI B6.2
8 8¢ 48 W 15 1% B6.2

KPI B6.3
B8 8 48 5 12 B6.3

Information on:
(@
(b)

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

FHMRHtEMVRBENREERLE  ES -
T8 ML = E DA M R

@ xR
(b)

{5 1) & #4

BTHETABEARENHEBAENS

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

BEREERESR

AR BF DL

METPRL2EERIEAM

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with.
EEBERNEMERGHORFEENAREE X

Description of practices relating to observing and

protecting intellectual property rights.
W EGENRENHEEGRNED -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

WEVE B

CRAFTSMANSHIP
BUILDING

Ve
CONSIDERATE SERVICE
B AR

All of the Group's properties
undergo regulatory
inspections before being
delivered to homeowners,
and there are no cases where
the properties need to be
recalled due to safety and
health reasons.
AEEMERERRXNEE
R RERETRE  ~F
EFRZEREFEHMARD
WIB M e

CONSIDERATE SERVICE

B0 AR 1%

The Group mainly focuses
on developing residential
projects, with lower risks
regarding building design
patents. We review exterior
design plans to avoid
infringement.
AEETFZ2HREITIER
EEERFAENRRERE -
AEEERINBERTR
#wRIRERRE



Requirements, Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE FRHER BH —REBEKRHEBERERER)

KPI B6.4
8 58 45 3R 45 1R B6.4

KPI B6.5
B8 # 48 5 12 B6.5

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
WiiEEREBENERBKRERF -
Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

WEBEEERRERLEBRE - A REBEH
TRERTE -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption EEB7 : K &S5

General Disclosure
—REE

KPI B7.1
8§ 48 W5 1R B7.1

KPI B7.2
B8 2 AR X 4R 1R B7.2

KPI B7.3
B8 88 iR SN IE 1R B7.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRMLEE $x%  BRFRAREMN:

@ BR: K

by BTHETABEARZENHBELIRZER
I & #Y -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

REFRMAHETAXKEBERIICELN

BESFRRHENBARFRER -

Description of preventive measures and

whistleblowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

st M ERIEF AREBEATRE

BHIA o

Description of anti-corruption training provided

to directors and staff.

WRmEER BT RHENREITHEI -

Locations of Disclosure or
Remarks

BELE R
CRAFTSMANSHIP
BUILDING

b 56 1
CONSIDERATE SERVICE
B0 AR 75

SINCERE COOPERATION
AN

SINCERE COOPERATION
1B fE

SINCERE COOPERATION
BRA 1

SINCERE COOPERATION
BB 1E



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HERERRS

Aspect B8: Community Investment EHB8 : #+ B &R &

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1
8 2 45 W IE 12 B8.1

KPI B8.2
8 # 48 M 5 12 B8.2

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
takes into consideration communities’ interests.
FANMEL2HERTHREEMTLRTEMER
HEBEIHGERMRNEMNBE -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

ErEREBE(WHE BREFH BIFK:
fEEE b - BBA) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EZIEBMBAER(NESERER) -

CARING COMMUNITY
B AL

CARING COMMUNITY
AR AL

CARING COMMUNITY
R AL
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A TUVRheinland®

Precisely Right.

Independent Assurance Statement

Introduction

TUV Rheinland (Guangdong) Ltd., member of TUV Rheinland Group, Germany (hereinafter “TUV
Rheinland”, “We") has been entrusted by the management of KRP Development Holdings Limited
(hereinafter "KRP”, “the Company”) to conduct independent assurance of the KRP ESG Report
2022/2023 (hereinafter “the Report”). All contractual contents for this assurance engagement rest
entirely within the responsibility of the KRP. Our task was to give a fair and adequate judgment on the
Report.

The intended users of this assurance statement are stakeholders who have relevance to the KRP's
overall ESG performance and impacts of its business activities during the year 2022/2023 (1 April 2022 ~
31 March 2023).

TUV Rheinland is a global service provider of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability
Services in over 65 countries, having qualified professionals in the field of Corporate Sustainability
Assurance, Environment, Social and Stakeholder Engagement. We have maintained complete
impartiality and independence during the assurance engagement, and we were not involved in the
preparation of the Report contents.

Assurance Standard

TUV Rheinland undertook the assurance work in accordance with the AA100o Assurance Standard v3
(AA1000AS v3), Moderate level of assurance.

Scope & Type of Assurance

Our assurance engagement was carried out in accordance with the AA1000AS v3, Type 1 Moderate
level on KRP’s ESG performance in the Report. The following assurance criteria were used in
performing the assurance work:
e In accordance with ESG Reporting Guidelines (ESG Reporting Guidelines) in Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Rules issued by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX).
e Adherence to the AA100oo AccountAbility Principles of Inclusivity, Materiality, Responsiveness
and Impact.

Assurance Methodology

Our assurance activities included:

e Reviewed management practices, processes and performance to assess KRP's ESG
management system, which includes stakeholder engagement, identification of material
topics, and risk assessment.

e Interviewed management responsible for ESG-based performance and data collection.

e Reviewed and analyzed ESG-based performance information and data on a sample basis, to
test accuracy of information and data by using analytical procedures.

e Collected and assessed documentary evidence and management representations that support
adherence to the AccountAbility Principles.
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Limitations

TUV Rheinland performed the assurance based on the scope of defined engagement agreement, and
on a moderate level of assurance under the AA1000AS for engagement. Information and performance
data subject to assurance is limited to the contents of the Report.

Our assurance work did not cover financial data and other information not related to ESG.

Conclusions

Based on our methodology and activities performed within the scope of this assessment, we can reach
a conclusion that no instances or information came to our attention that would be to the contrary of the
statement made as below:

e KRP ESG Report 2022/2023 and its contents adhere to the AccountAbility Principles.

e KRP has implemented processes to collect and aggregate quantized key performance data in
relation to high-importance topics within the reporting boundary.

e Environmental data of key performance indicators (KPIs) disclosed in the Report are assessed,
and they are accurate and consistent for comparability with historical data, to follow HKEX ESG
Reporting Guidelines.

e Information and performance data of ESG disclosed in the Report are assessed and they are
supported by documentary evidence.

e TUV Rheinland shall not bear any liability or responsibility to a third party for perception and
decision on KRP based on this Assurance Statement.

Adherence to the AA1000 AccountAbility Principles
Inclusivity

KRP has commitment to be accountable to its key stakeholders covering shareholders, employees,
customers, suppliers, regulators and industrial organizations, and local communities, to create
sustainability values. The Company listened to stakeholders and recorded their opinions for continued
improvements in sustainable development work. It is recommended that KRP should establish metrics
to measure the outcomes of engagement, and understand associated stakeholder engagement risks.

Materiality

In considering the nature of its business, stakeholders’ opinions, industrial peers, and referring to
internationally recognized standards associated with sustainability, KRP determined 8 high-importance
material topics for reporting. It is recommended that KRP should develop targets and metrics in
relation to materiality topics.

Responsiveness

KRP communicated with stakeholders and responded their concerns of ESG topics via multiple
channels, which included conferences, corporate website, supplier audits, employee trainings,
customer survey, and social events, etc. The Company disclosed ESG-based information and key
performance indicators (KPIs) in the Report against HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines.

Impact

KRP conducted a process to identify and evaluate ESG-based risks, with control measures and actions.

It is recommended that KRP should take impact assessment into account in the materiality assessment
process and goal setting associated with ESG.

Domrfe

Daniel Pan

Corporate Sustainability Service Technical Manager
TUOV Rheinland (Guangdong) Ltd
Shanghai, China, 30 June 2023

AA1000

Licensed Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KRP Development Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
KRP Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 136 to 251,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2023 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland

China

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policy note 2(p).

The key audit matter
BREREE

Independent Auditor’s Report

FAEETEE
ARBFASHIOBREBEEFZIEXZHE -
RRABARPEAEMBRR BT R
EBZEH UWFEHKLEBFE
ERGAMBRRANEAERRETT
RE - BETEHELTHREHRES
ZER -

FEIR i G EB ([ B E R ) &
&
BRI EIREN TR & i B F
Bt iE2(p) °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEEZSIE

LAT in Mainland China is one of the main
components of the Group’s taxation charge.
REAEN LT HMIEENREAEEHREI LN ETE
HRED -

LAT is levied on sales of properties at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value in accordance with the requirements
set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations.
REEBETARARNORE T EEH R L
BEM30%E60%NRER K - MEVRH SR
THIRER -

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for
LAT in Mainland China included the following:
BAEATATEAEFEFEREAL L1
¥ Tt B A

assessing the design and implementation of
key internal controls over the calculation of
the estimated LAT provision;

A SR IR ER R BT R AR &
P HB A% i) B0 SR 5T AN E i

obtaining understanding of relevant tax
rules and regulations of LAT and assessing
the appropriateness of the Group’s
methodology on the calculations with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
THRIHMEERNEERBOER  L2E
RiTesBAMERFHEAKEFEL A
=
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland

China (continued)

The key audit matter
BRERER

RREESASHE)

®(#&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNATREEZEE

The Group estimates the provision for LAT based
on its understanding and interpretation of the
relevant tax rules and regulations and the total
sales of properties less estimated total deductible
expenditure. The estimated total deductible
expenditure includes cost of land use right,
property development costs and borrowing costs
that might consist of uncertainties on whether
those costs are deductible in accordance with the
relevant tax rules and regulations. When the LAT
is subsequently determined, the actual payments
charged to the Group may be different from the
estimate.
AEBERBEESHBERUVOEROIEEMERE - LA
EYRHEEBBEREBTAHNGLAE KW
MELHIBETERS - REEBRUOER - B
AR AEBELMERERE  FihER
BRARERKAA - MZERXARTAMG - F&
THEEE BREAETCLHEETRS AEEE
BR W B RO 3K TR A] BE R AR FT TR o

We identified provision for LAT in Mainland
China as a key audit matter because the estimated
provision for LAT is based on management’s
judgement and interpretation of the relevant tax
laws, regulations and practices and because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
BMETFBRAREN T IEERBERRN RERE
AMER ARLHEENMNGEFERGEEENERE
BYMBB L SRR MEG e HEMEERE - L&
HUASEAHMBEHRERNERN -
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e involving our internal taxation specialists
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
deductibility of property development

expenditure in the Group’s calculation

based on our experience, knowledge
and understanding of the practices of the
application of the relevant tax laws by the

various local tax bureaus; and

s BRMOAMRBERRBEMANER

MBEMHAZH TR RERABEEEZNE
BHEE FEAKEEFEFSMERR

SHBMBE ENAEN R

e comparing, on a sample basis, the amount
of provision for LAT recorded by the Group
with our calculations performed by our

internal taxation specialist.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements & 2]

and the accounting policy note 2(i).

The key audit matter
BRELEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

BEREFEE(E)
FEEETERFE

Bire BRI TISRE
RMFE2(0) °

2 a1

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEREZSEE

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate carrying
value of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale and properties under development (together
“inventories”) totalled RMB1,051,026,000.
R2023F3A31H  AREREFENERINE
MERTYXGREIFENEIEEST /AR
#1,051,026 T JC °

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The calculation of the net
realisable value for each category of property
held in the property development projects at
the financial reporting date is performed by
management.
FERKRAEASEFEMEPREEA K - &
BERYBEREAAEDNERAEZEETSIENY
%E}jj— """"" IE/?TE

The calculation of the net realisable value of
inventories involves significant management
judgement and estimation on the costs to
completion and assessing the expected future net
selling prices for each category of property held in
the property development project, with reference
to recent sales transactions in nearby locations, the
estimated future selling costs and the relevant taxes
and other expenses

méﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ M&%ﬁ%ﬁ ﬁ%%%%
BHMAKFEEE 2EMOHAENTRHEERS
ﬁ%*%%%&ﬁu&ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@%%°

We identified assessing the net realisable value
of inventories of the Group as a key audit matter
because of the inherent risks involved in estimating
net realisable values on the inventories.

HR G FE R :EEETEIHH » T API S RE
HAEEFEAERFERESERENTIE -

Our audit procedures to assess the net
realisable value of inventories included the
following:

BAHERTATEFRBFEFAEFERIERF

&

assessing the design and implementation
of key internal controls over the
preparation and monitoring of management
budgets and forecasts of each property
development project;

B EBMAERZEEBEEMBREIEN
EEMEE  FEA BB RBES
RETAE B

evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
S2ERTEAEANER
TR EE N

A FERMGE

challenging the reasonableness of the
expected future selling prices by comparing
expected future selling prices to recent
transacted prices for similar properties and
the prices of comparable properties located
in the nearby vicinity of each category of
property held;

BERAERRKEELBALUYENOHR
%ﬁﬂu&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%iﬁ%%%ﬁ%
ALY M EREITL R BREHRK
EENAEN:

comparing the costs incurred for each
development project up to 31 March 2023
with budgets made as at 31 March 2022
to assess the accuracy of management’s
forecasting and budgeting process;

& £2023F3 8310 S E M ZH BB KA
BB E2022F3A3THM AT EITLE - A
AEEEEEAMEERIZOERM
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessing the net realisable value of inventories
(continued)

The key audit matter
BEELEE

RREBESASHE)
AMEFETRRFEGE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEBZEE

e evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimated costs to completion and the
estimated future selling costs for each
category of property held by comparing
those with the Group’s latest budget and
market available data, on a sample basis, to
assess the reliability of the data used by the

management; and

s URASEMR HEBESHAENMISA
RABBELEEBREERA T IEZRAAR
AREERANGEYE  FHEEREMA

BEOAISEE R

e considering the sensitivity analyses
prepared by management to determine
the extent of changes in key estimates
and assumptions that, either individually
or collectively, adopted in assessing net
realisable value, may result in material
misstatements in inventories and whether
there was any indication of management

bias.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yuen Man Ching.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

21 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 _=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”) (JA A R#517R)
2023 2022
—E-= =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TrT ARETT
Revenue W A 4 700,751 775,555
Cost of revenue NN (183,819) (188,554)
Gross profit E A 516,932 587,001
Other net (losses)/gains Hih (E18), Wz 55 6 (4,353) Lol
Selling expenses 84 & 5 2 (16,217) (10,533)
General and administrative — MR ERITEAX
expenses (46,852) (29,600)
Operating profit gegnr 449,510 549,415
Finance income B 7% U A 7() 6,034 12,764
Finance costs B 75 B AN 7(a) (6,419) (4,018)
Finance (costs)/income, net  BA# (%) "WA - %&® (385 8,746
Profit before taxation BR B Al % 7 449,125 558,161
Income tax charge FTiSfi X 8(a) (268,279) (314,501)
Profit for the year FREF 180,846 243,660
Earnings per share — Tl s —
Basic and diluted (RMB Cents) EAXFM#ERE(ARK D) 11 35.8 48.2

parad

The notes on pages 144 to 251 form part of these financial ~ S144E 2518 Z i E R AM B RKR 2 —

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity

z

o o BRAFE R FZENANRRE

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for & # B A 2 B8 & 511 M &£ 25(e)

the year are set out in note 25(e).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ—Z_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R¥EFIITR)

2023 2022
—E=-= T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARWTR AR®BTT
Profit for the year FERA 180,846 243,660
Other comprehensive income  ZRFH 2 EU A
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified T8 ZE3 7 ZEzm 2 HE -
to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of provision for KHEIFREEEHE 2 BN 2
long service payments 160 105
Items that may be reclassified ~ R {EAJGEEF FFEE B 2
subsequently to profit or loss: A
Exchange differences on MERBAIIEB M REK
translation of financial FEAZHBER
statement of operations outside
Mainland China (36,126) 13,674
Other comprehensive income FEHt2EK A
for the year (35,966) 13,779
Total comprehensive income FEZEABALSE
for the year 144,880 257,439

The notes on pages 144 to 251 form part of these financial ~ 5144%
statements B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 F #&

51BN E R AT B RR 2 —

137



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A RE7I7R)

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
—E-=fF —ZET—-=
=H=+—-8B ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®FR AREBTT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% ' i E K& & 12 3,857 4,284
Investment properties BREME 13 77,850 77,300
Deferred tax assets RIERHSEE 22(b) 95,670 148,235
177,377 229,819
Current assets REEE
Inventories and other contract T & &k EAth & A KA
costs 15 1,055,162 1,029,885
Prepayments, deposits and BNRIE - #e R EM
other receivables JFE W BR X 16 12,121 86,599
Amounts due from related JiE Y 8 38 A 7] BR X
companies 28(d) — 35,819
Prepaid taxes SR T 22(a) — 247
Pledged deposits EEAFRK 17 — 68,731
Cash and bank deposits e RIRITHER 18(a) 267,835 524,099
1,335,118 1,745,380
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 — 236,479
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H th & BR 5K 20 84,020 164,972
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 500 514
Contract liabilities aHaE 21 121,671 407,227
Current tax payable JE < BN A 752 1] 22(a) 456,594 396,056
662,785 1,205,248
Net current assets REBEEFE 672,333 540,132
Total assets less current EEHERARBARE
liabilities 849,710 769,951
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A REEFIITR)

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

—E-=F —_E2=-=
ZA=+—-H ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i AR¥TR ARETET

Non-current liabilities k(RBEME
Provision for long service payable & Hi ik 7% & # ## 81 146
Lease liabilities MHEBE 23 1,462 1,859
Deferred tax liabilities EXEMIEAE 22(b) 19,613 19,272
21,156 21,277
NET ASSETS EERE 828,554 748,674
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 25
Share capital AR A 4,394 —
Reserves & 1 824,160 748,674
TOTAL EQUITY WEER 828,554 748,674
* The balance represents an amount less than RMB500. * ZERE LR ARBES00TTH S EE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-_ZT - =FA-+—HAHAES=<

on 21 June 2023. HEREERAT -
Ho Wai Hon, Brian Ho Man Chung
& 7F 7] 32 8
Director Director
EF EFE

The notes on pages 144 to 251 form part of these financial — #144Z2 2518 2 Wi s B ARM B MwEK 2 —
statements. 2 o
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in

EREE2FHX

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZEZ=Z

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R#517R)

—CEZACtT—HALEE

Equity

Share Share Exchange fatutory Merger Retained
capital premium reserve  surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
Bx  RfEE  EREE ERESEE  AKEE  REEN it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARET:
(note 25(b)  (note 25(c)(i))  (note 25(c)(il)  (note 25(c)iii))  (hote 25(c)iv))
(Hitose)  (WEnson) (Wi (B  (HEs0m)
Balance at 1 April 2021 ZZ=-%HA-H
2k 51,134 40 3116 27,956 - 348,042 430,268
Changes in equity for the ~ BZ=%==%
year ended 31 March 2022: ZA=t-ALEE
Fi23:
Profit for the year EhaH - - - - — 243,660 243,660
Other comprehensive income 2 2 EI4 A - - 13,674 - - 105 13,779
Total comprehensive income 2 A 25 = = 13,674 = = 243,765 257,439
Issuance of shares BATR I3 (K EE25(00)
(note 25(b)(i) — 374,400 - — - - 374,400
Appropriation of statutory  EERHHEEER
surplus reserve = = = 24,608 = (24,608 =
Effect arising from the EHELNDE
Reorganisation (P 250))
(note 25(c)(iv)) (51,134) (40) — - (262,279) — (313,453)
Balance at 31 March 2022 =%==%
ZR=t-B2&H = 374,400 16,790 52,564 (262,279) 567,199 748,674

* The balance represents an amount less than RMB500.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BlZ_Z_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (A A RE7II7R)

Share Share Exchange Statutory Merger Retained
capital premium reserve ~ surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
Bx  RHEE  EARE EREBEE  AHEE  RERA it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR  AR®TR ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR  AR¥TR
(note 25(h)  (note 25(c)(i))  (note 25(c)(ii) (note 25(c)(iii)  (note 25(c)(iv))
(Wasb) (WEsE0) (WEBE6) W56 (HESM)
Balance at 1 April 202~ ZZ=Z%QA-H
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ShB T A 670 SIS QR 1 THEM
Changes in equity for the ~ BE=F==%
year ended 31 March 2023: ZA=t-ALEE
Ei2y:
Profit for the year ERgT - - — — — 180,846 180,846
Other comprehensive income E £ 2 EIU A = = (36,126) = = 160 (35,966)
el e - - B - LU L
Issuance of shares BB (M 250)0)
(note 25(h() 439 (4,3%) - - - - -
Appropriation of statutory  EERHHEER
surplus reserve - - - 22,295 - (22,295) -
Distribution (note 25(¢) 7 & (& 25(e)) — (8,000 — — - (57,000) (65,000)
Balance at 31 March 2023 ZE==%
ZREt-RAZER 4,39 362,006 (19,336) 74,859 (262,279) 668,910 828,554
* The balance represents an amount less than RMB500. * REBRELRARKES00TH SRR o

The notes on pages 144 to 251 form part of these financial ~ #144E 2518 2 i sE AARM MK 2 —
statements. B o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ—Z_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (JA A R¥E51I7R)
2023 2022
—E-= T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARWTR AR®BTE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEETH

Cash generated from operations R&FERE 18(b) 113,877 919,503
Income tax paid BERATER (203,356) (436,115)
Income tax refunded BEEREMRER 80,015 —

Net cash (used in)/generated REEH (M)’

from operating activities BE&FEE (9,464) 483,388
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Payment for the addition of NEME BENERME

property, plant and equipment &) 5% (889) (1,583)
Proceed from disposal of HEME  WMERKRME

property, plant and equipment 2 FT 15 5k 100 —
Interest received 2 & 6,034 12,764
Net cash generated from RETHFBREFE

investing activities 5,245 11,181
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Proceeds from new bank RITIBEEMBRIA

borrowings 18(c) — 9,661
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE 18(c) (243,549) (139,569)
Interest paid 2fF A8 18(c) (10,159) (19,062)
Decrease in amounts due to JE 1<) 8 3 A = BR BORL A

related parties 18(c) (2,821) (162,487)
Capital element of lease rentals BEfTH&HE AL D

paid 18(c) @11 —
Interest element of lease rentals E 1 & & F| 8 25

paid 18(c) 99 —
Payment for the acquisition W % %2 7148 M Kar Info

of Jiaxuntong and Kar Info International B9 1~ X

International 18(d) — (37,175)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged B 7F ZUpk 2 (3g )

deposits 68,731 (68,731)
Distribution paid B 5k 25(e) (65,000) —

Net cash used in financing METHAZERSE
activities (253,308) (417,363)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ—Z_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A R#51I7R)

2023 2022
—E=-= —E_—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARWTR AR®BTT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BEE&RELEEY
and cash equivalents GRL 2) /1 o (257,527) 77,206
Cash and cash equivalents at the F IR & RE S ZEY
beginning of the year 18(a) 524,099 446,860
Effect of foreign exchange rate N EZXEEHHNTE
changes 1,263 33
Cash and cash equivalents at the F RR &€ RREEEY
end of the year 18(a) 267,835 524,099

The notes on pages 144 to 251 form part of these financial ~ $144ZF 2518 2 M T R ARM G wEK 2 —
statements. B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

1

144

GENERAL INFORMATION

KRP Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 2
September 2020 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 23 March 2023, after the successful spin-off
of the Company from the previous ultimate holding
company, Karrie International Holdings Limited
(“KIHL”) which is incorporated in Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The details of
the immediate and ultimate controlling party of the
Company after the spin-off are disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”)
are principally engaged in development and sales
of residential properties in Dongguan, Huizhou and
Foshan. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.

To rationalise the corporate structure in preparation
of the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange, the Group underwent a group
reorganisation (“the Reorganisation”) and therefore,
the Company became the holding company of
the Group on 22 March 2022. The Reorganisation
involves the major procedures as disclosed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIITR)

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

As part of the Reorganisation, the Company acquired
Dongguan City Jiaxuntong Computer Products
Limited (“Jiaxuntong”) and Kar Info International
Property Limited (“Kar Info International”), the
companies which shared control with KIHL over the
development and sales of the residential units of
Phase 3 of Castfast Villas (the “Property Development
Project”) with a total net cash consideration of
RMB37,175,000 (“Acquisitions”). Prior to the
Reorganisation, Jiaxuntong completed a corporate
division (“Corporate Division”) such that only the
assets and liabilities in connection with the Property
Development Project was retained by Jiaxuntong,
whereas all other businesses, assets and liabilities
unrelated to the Property Development Project were
transferred toFR 5552 & X R AR A7 (“Dongguan
Jiale”), a new entity outside of the Group. As far as
the financial information of Jiaxuntong and Kar Info
International are concerned, the financial statements
only include those assets, liabilities, results of
operations and cash flows attributable to the Property
Development Project during the years to reflect the
substance of the Group’s principal activities.

More details are fully explained in the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure”
in the listing document issued by the Company on 3
March 2023 (the “Listing Document”).

1

—RER(E)
EREHEMN —IR AQRIIKE
REmEMAEKEMBER AR
(T& &) & Kar Info International
Property Limited ([Kar Info
International]) 3% M fHl & 7] B £
MR AT EREE=8(Y
¥RREBHNDEZEEMRBER
HEMEZEGE RERBERFHE
BFtAR37,175,0007T ([ EE ) -
REHR  BABTKAADIF
([AEIZH)  BEamBERB A
MEERIBEEHENEERARE -
mEEYEERIEEEBAN — I HM
% -EERBEHEES —ME
AEENINFEBRERLEDLE
ERBEBRARI(REEZEHR] - B 5%
#1138 K& Kar Info International ) 84 7%
BEME  WBHREREBERER
REVMEZRBENEE « 8F -
KEEBRREMUARBREAEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

1

146

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The companies now comprising the Group were
under common control by the same controlling
shareholder before and after the Reorganisation. The
control is not transitionary and, consequently, there
was a continuation of the risks and benefits to the
controlling shareholder. Therefore, the Reorganisation
is a business combination of entities under common
control. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared using the merger basis of accounting
as if the companies now comprising the Group have
been consolidated at 1 April 2021.
liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group

The assets and

are consolidated using the historical carrying amounts
from the perspective of the controlling shareholder.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss, the
consolidated statements of profits or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statements
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statements of the Group include the consolidated
results of operations of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been
in existence since throughout the year, or since
their respective dates of incorporation, where there
is a shorter period. The consolidated statements of
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023
and 2022 have been prepared to present the state
of affairs including the assets and liabilities of the
companies now comprising the Group at the carrying
amounts shown in the financial statements of the
group entities as if the current group structure upon
the completion of the Reorganization had been in
existence at those dates taking into account their
respective dates of incorporation, where applicable.
The intra-group balances, transactions and
unrealised gains/losses on intra-group transactions
were eliminated in full in preparing these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

2 EESHEXE

(@

& ) 2 B

W BHRRTDRIEMEEMA
ZERBMBHRELER ([EERM
BHEEQ ) R WERES
B Ae (BEREFHAA
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ARG )2 B FE L E w3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

2

148

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries. The measurement basis used
in the preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and employee benefit liabilities which
have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies
The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

e Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant
and Equipment: Proceeds Before Intended
Use

e Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds Before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting
the proceeds from selling items produced before that
asset is available for use from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment. Instead, the sales
proceeds and the related costs should be included
in profit or loss. The amendments do not have a
material impact on these financial statements as the
Group does not sell items produced before an item of
property, plant and equipment is available for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

2

150

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of
fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only incremental costs
when determining whether a contract was onerous. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the new accounting policy to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1
April 2022, and has concluded that none of them is
onerous.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is included in the
financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances,
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from

transactions and cash

intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Business combination involving entities under
common control

The financial statements consolidate the financial
results and the financial position of the entities
or business which are acquired through business
combination under common control as if
they had been consolidated from the earliest
date presented or since the date when these
consolidating entities or business first came
under the control of the controlling party, where
there is a shorter period.

The assets and liabilities of the consolidating
entities or business are consolidated using
the existing book values from the controlling
shareholder’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or
excess of the acquirers’ interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling shareholder’s
interest.

2 EESHBEE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Business combination involving entities under
common control (continued)

The consolidated statements of profit or loss,
and consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income include the results
of each of the consolidating entities or business
from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the consolidating entities or business first
came under the common control, where there
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted
by those entities.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)). Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any replaced parts are derecognised
accordingly. All other repairs and maintenance
are expensed in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

— Fixtures and leasehold improvements

—RERMERE

— Furniture, tools and computer equipment
— B R ERER A

— Motor vehicles

— "8

— Properties leased for own use

— HEFERNY X

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(g)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

2 EESTEREGE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(g

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting
period and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(r)(ii).

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEESIHHERGE)

(g) Leased assets (continued) (g HEEEE)
(i) As alessee (i) 1EREFEA
Where the contract contains lease & &85 HE A8 K
component(s) and non-lease component(s), DN IEHEHAKILY
the Group has elected not to separate AEBEREERITDRIE
non-lease components and accounts for HEEKE D LHE
each lease component and any associated & 78 & 48 AX &8 5 S AE 1A
non-lease components as a single lease MR 2 IEHEBBER S
component for all leases. ER—RE—HEHEK

MoETEETRE -

At the lease commencement date, the REERBH - NEB
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a REMEEELRTEE
lease liability, except for short-term leases & - WERBA12MEAIA
that have a lease term of 12 months or less TZREEE MEEE
and leases of low-value assets. When the BEZHEERI - 2R
Group enters into a lease in respect of a SE—EREESE
low-value asset, the Group decides whether RIVEER KEER
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease ERAUNBZEBEERE
basis. The lease payments associated with BEHHEHEEARL - ER
those leases which are not capitalised are ERfbzHERBzME
recognised as an expense on a systematic ENFEHEHERARNFR
basis over the lease term. MMHERRER -
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease HHEEWERNE - BIAE
liability is initially recognised at the present SERBENHESHRNEN
value of the lease payments payable HENRZBREETY
over the lease term, discounted using the MR WEMAZEMR
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that =AM UE S/ ey
rate cannot be readily determined, using RASHXRELZEHE
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. o RIERERACIESE
After initial recognition, the lease liability ERN R o PIIRTERIR
is measured at amortised cost and interest HE B E A # R ARE
expense is calculated using the effective 2 BN EXHAREE
interest method. BRA KL E -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(e) and 2(h)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(if)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consolidation for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In the case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective rate of
the modification.

In the consolidated statements of financial
position, The Group presents right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition of
investment property in “property, plant and
equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately. The current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(r)(ii).

2 EE®

5K ()

(g HEEBEEHE)

(i)

(if)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank deposits, amounts
pledged
deposits and

due from related companies,
deposits and prepayments,
other receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair value are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present values of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, other
receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the

For all other financial instruments,

financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held) or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractual due
dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to
the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(r)(iii) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

2

164

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

At each reporting date, the Groups assess
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following

observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that property,
plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets (other than property carried at
revalued amounts) may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESHHE(E)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h CEBBREEZREGE)
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued) (iiy EEEZREE)
—  Reversals of impairment losses — REEE 2B
An impairment loss is reversed if fied 4% LA 788 € AJ Wy [m]
there has been a favourable change BEZGFTEED
in the estimates used to determine the BEMNZ 21 Al
recoverable amount. WE BB e WM
B o
A reversal of an impairment loss is AR B 18 2 @ B R
limited to the asset’s carrying amount TeBEBREZE
that would have been determined had EEFRKREHE
no impairment loss been recognised RO EEBEMEE
in prior years. Reversals of impairment ZERHEE - RES
losses are credited to profit or loss 18 2 [ £ 7 2R
in the year in which the reversals are B % Z FE NEEA
recognised. B
(i) Inventories and contract costs (i) FEREERA
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in FEHEREEKEBET S
the ordinary course of business, in the process EMHFENEE  REEMRN
of production for such sale or in the form of HEBRETRENEE =
materials or supplies to be consumed in the FEAEEGBRETAME S MHE
production process. MmN HRENE E -
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and A B 7R Ko ] 82 35 75 (B M & 2 B
net realisable value as follows: BEARZEFEEWT:
(i) Property development (i) MERRE
—  Property under development for sale — FERROYE
The cost of properties under HERRDYE S
development for sale comprises B 7K 61 ¥ O B BE i
specifically identified cost, including Bl R A B+
the acquisition cost of interests in 3 A RE 25 H Uk B
leasehold land, aggregate cost of WA R AR

development, materials and supplies,

HEm TER
wages and other direct expenses and B AR IE =

an appropriate proportion of overheads ﬂﬂ}ﬂi$\)§f§ﬁﬂ§§£
and borrowing costs capitalised Eﬂ% Rks J?H@JZ
(see note 2(1). Net realisable value fe] Tﬁ ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ{t
represents the estimated selling price f& & B AN (R B &F
less estimated costs of completion 2(t) » AIRIRRER
and costs to be incurred in selling the st & ERE T T
property. TRARRELD
FEMEELZKAR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories and contract costs (continued)
Property development (continued)

(i)

(i)

Completed property held for sale

The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location
and condition.

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group which
comprise of multiple units which are
sold individually, the cost of each unit
is determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that
development project to each unit on a
per square meter basis, unless another
basis is more representative of the
cost of the specific unit. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling
price less costs to be incurred in selling
the property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Inventories and contract costs (continued)

(i)

Property development (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 2(i)(i)) or
property, plant and equipment (see note
2(e)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain
a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained (for example, an incremental sales
commission). Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Inventories and contract costs (continued)

(if)

Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods
or services in the future; and are expected
to be recovered. Costs that relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract (for example, payments
to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet

been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 2(r).

2

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

EEg
(i)

B ()

ﬁ
(i)

IREHNRE(E)
Hib & QRA(E)
HETTA K 2 KA EIR
BB E A &R 1R
HEWEZRHEB EL
HIEBRKRARER-S
a3 R 2 R BETAS
U mE - RIS EEARL -
EIRA A AN E A E 5
BHANEZRRHE K
AAgEBERERAL H
BME - KAD R
B R & P WCER 2 R A
MRERANEERLAHM
A 2 B AR (I [
BRENR) - BITEHOZ
HRANCRIERTFE
W - R E MR A E
MEEENMOEELR
AAAER e

B &b E LKA IR K
AR, R ET 5 OB E B
BIER - -EEHKAE
EFEEBRAONAES
EEHARKREENRE
B ook AR 7w oA W ER 2
R 1B &R 58 R (i) 14 K HE 7R
AR cEEEEHRZ
ZEEMEAREAERE
AR Az FRER - BR
WAEEE -

E BRI E KB A # 55
P 3R & B A B W A By
RERAER - AR
R BT R EH M 5T
2(r) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured
at their transaction price. Receivables that
contain a significant financing component and
other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(r)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 2(j)).

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 2(r)).
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2

172

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

(m)

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expenses is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(t)).

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statements. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(h)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)
(i)

(ii)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined
contribution plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(o)

(iii)

(iv)

Retirement plan — Long service
payments

The contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged as an expense
in the year as the related services are
provided by employees.

The Group’s net obligation under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance in respect
of long service payments on cessation of
employment under certain circumstances is
the estimated discounted amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated
annually using the projected unit credit
method, taking into account offsetable
accrued benefits related to the Group’s
Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme
contributions.

Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’
compensations are recorded as a liability
and charged to profit or loss when the
Group is contractually obliged or when
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation and the associated
services are rendered by the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year/period, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p

Income tax (continued)

Apart from differences which arise on initial
recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(f), the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(q@) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts (continued)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
Group has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the
contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract
includes both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property
is accepted by the customer, or deemed
as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statements of financial position
under contract liabilities (see note 2(k)).

If any advance payments received from
the buyers are regarded as providing a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
interest expense arising from the adjustment
of time value of money will be accrued
by the Group during the period between
the payment date and the date of delivery
property. This accrual increases the balance
of the contract liability during the period of
construction, and therefore increases the
amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to
the customer. The interest is expensed as
accrued unless it is eligible to be capitalised
under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in
accordance with the policies set out in note
2(1).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Rental income

Rental income is recognised in profit or
loss in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(h)(i)).

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s presentation currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the

fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional
currency other than RMB are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statements of financial
position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@ A person,
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

or a close member of that

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent,
subsidiary is related to the others).

subsidiary and fellow

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

v)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part,
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

provides key

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting
Operating segments,
each segment item reported in the financial

and the amounts of
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

The Group manages its business as a whole
as property development is the only reporting
segment. The financial statements are presented
in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported retaining to the Group’s
senior executive management for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates may be different from the actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in future years are
discussed below.

(@ People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
As explained in note 8(a), LAT is levied on
properties developed by the Group for sale, at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less estimated
deductible expenditures including cost of land
use rights, property development costs and
borrowing costs. Given the uncertainties of the
calculation basis of land appreciation tax to be
interpreted by the local tax bureau and the actual
appreciation of land value may be different from
the original estimates, the actual outcomes may
be higher or lower than that estimated at the end
of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease
in estimates would affect the amount recognised
in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

(0

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and
other deductible temporary differences carried
forward are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets,
expected taxable profits are estimated which
involves a number of assumptions relating to the
operating environment of the Group and require
a significant level of judgement exercised by the
directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgement would affect the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets to be recognised.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 13, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by an independent firm of
professional surveyors.

In determining the fair value of investment
properties, the valuers have used the director
comparison method and the replacement cost
method, which involves, inter alia, certain
estimates including adjustment factors on the
timing, location and other individual factors for
its comparable transactions. In relying on the
valuation report, management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.

3 ERtHERMAEE)

(b)

(o)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B AN - IAAREHIR)
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3 EFfHAERMEEE)

(continued)

(d) Write-down of inventories d) EFE MR
Inventories are written down to the net realisable RIB 77 & &R Z 5 14 WOR
value based on an assessment of the realisability 75 Zﬁ::—f """"" AR EE o —BEH
of inventories. Write-downs on inventories BENBANEETEER
are recorded where events or changes in 5 F] A ﬂiﬁbm‘fﬁﬁ—r?\ﬁﬁrf
circumstances indicate that the balances may not WORL o #F RO B Z 1E B
be realised. The identification of write-downs Kbt - ETEH 2 SRR
requires the use of judgement and estimates. RERFAAEEZRR ZER
Where the expectation is different from the REEFachkEBEANME
original estimate, such difference will impact the Z OB

carrying value and write-downs of inventories.

REVENUE 4 WA
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®TTE
Recognised at a point in time BEEEVEHREER
under HKFRS 15: 5SRO AE B B R R -
Sale of properties MEHE 700,751 TTEp593
The principal activities of the Group are property AREBNIREHREXNERD
sales and development in Dongguan, Huizhou and 5 BMNREEILE YR E M
Foshan. J& o
Revenue represents the income from sale of WATBEEMRHEERARDE
properties, net of sales related taxes and discounts He4am BHEESEHEERRA
allowed. N Fréa T e

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

REVENUE (continued)

As at 31 March 2023,
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts are RMB211,353,000 (2022:
RMB742,342,000). These amounts represent revenue
expected to be recognised in the future from
pre-completion sales contracts. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when the
properties are accepted by the customer, or deemed

the aggregated amount of

as accepted according to the contract, whichever is
earlier.

For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
the Group’s customer base is diversified and does
not have a customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group'’s revenue.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports that the Group’s most senior executive
management reviews regularly in allocating resources
to segments and in assessing their performances.
The Group’s most senior executive management
makes resources allocation decisions based on
internal management functions and asses the Group’s
business instead of by separate business lines or
geographical regions. Accordingly, the Group has only
one operating segment and therefore, no segment
information is presented.

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China and
accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

4

WA ()
R-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—H8 &%
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#211,353,000C (ZFEZZ=F : A
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

6
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OTHER NET (LOSSES)/GAINS 6 Hi(EE) WEFE
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTFRT AREFTTT
Rental income e WA 1,539 1,404
Valuation gain on investment REMEEERDFE
properties (note 13) (BT 5E13) 550 900
Net exchange (loss)/gain X (B8, W F8 (7,182) 24
Others H A 740 219
4,353) 2,547

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z8|EhEZRE R 2D A



PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

7 BRBiA SR

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRB AR M BB (GTA)ATIA
(crediting): B:
(@ Finance costs/(income), net @ BMBEAAE (WA BEHE
2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT ARETT
Finance costs B 1 B AR
— Interest expense from — REBERAGFAEZ
financial liabilities PHAEENTERX
measured at amortised
cost 7,124 24,436
— Interest expense from — T AR BRSO
land cost instalment FEMAX 2,673 —
— Interest expense on lease — HEBEMNFEMX
liabilities 99 18
Less: Interest expenses W FEERTYERN
capitalised into MBHXEARL
property under (Bt 5E)
development for sale
(Note) 3,477) (20,436)
6,419 4,018
Finance income s A
— Interest income from — REHEKAFTEZ
financial assets measured ERMEENNEWLA
at amortised cost (6,034) (12,764)
Finance costs/(income), net BB A (WA FEE 385 (8,746)
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at Misr: BE_Z_=F=A=t+—

weighted average rate of 4.98% per annum (2022:
4.14% per annum) for the year ended 31 March

2023.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

7
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(b)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) BR Bt A1 i
Staff costs (b) BEIHAE
2023 2022
—EC-= —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET
Wages and salaries FMLIE 18,073 16,896
Contributions to defined RERTRNGE 2 HRK
contribution retirement plan 761 736
Less: staff costs capitalised into i : FEERFWEETL
property under development X A& 71t
for sales (5,091) (7,518)
13,743 10,114

The subsidiaries operated in Mainland China
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by
the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities, whereby the subsidiaries operated
in Mainland China are required to make
contribution at the rates required by different
local government authorities. The local
government authorities are responsible for
the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

7  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7

(b)

(0

Staff costs (continued)

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

B B Al g R (42)

(b) EIRAK(E)
Bk EX P RSN - AR E
I EARK & A A 57 E A
HBEBKREME -

Other items (0 HfEE
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE
Outgoings relating to HEREMERBANX G
investment properties 662 474
Depreciation of owned BEYR BMEMKETE
property, plant and (Kt 5E12)
equipment (note 12) 788 692
Depreciation of properties HEFEERNYERTE
leased for own use (note 12)  (Fff 5£12) 456 76
Auditors’ remuneration % B B 2 (4 2E ()
(note (i)) 1,133 342
Cost of properties sold EE W EBKA (M 5E15@))
(note 15(a)) 183,819 188,554
Listing expenses (note (i)) b S (R RE ) 14,339 8,233

(i) Auditor’s remuneration and listing expenses include
fees to the Company’s auditor of RMB870,000
(2022: RMB13,000) and RMB1,252,000 (2022:
RMB1,531,000) respectively.

() HEHEAHMEELETESZD 5
BEINARABZBEAAR
#870,000T (Z & = — F:
A R #13,0007T) 1 A R #&
1,252,000 (=B = =4 : A
R #1,531,0007T) °
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8 MRHGEEBZRPFEHR
OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit @ MREeEmRZBENTR:
or loss represents:
2023 2022
—_E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREKTrx
Current taxation 7 HA B 15
Taxes in Mainland China AR A b B IR
— provision for Enterprise — EEMRB/®
Income Tax (“EIT”) (BB BHE 125,249 145,459
— reversal for EIT (note (v)) — BOEMEHR
(B 5 (v)) (96,294) —
28,955 145,459
— provision for Land — T IBE
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) (T EEB ) E i 180,503 222,099
PRC Withholding Tax (note (vi)) A B 7831 %% (B =% (vi)) 6,105 —
Deferred taxation iE 7 B 18
Origination and reversal of ERMERELNED
temporary differences (F 7 22(b))
(note 22 (b)) 52,716 (53,057)
Total income tax charge PSR X #2858 268,279 314,501
(i) EIT (iy BEMRESB
The provision for EIT is calculated at 25% CRAEREERE
based on the estimated taxable income for ERBEALEERNNB
the subsidiaries operated in Mainland China A AR F A 5T EER
during the year. MU AIR25%ETH °
196 KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z &l i EZRER A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(@ Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

LAT

LAT is levied on properties developed
by the Group for sale, at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based
on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of
land use rights, property development costs
and borrowing costs.

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax
at the rate of 16.5%
assessable profit for
subsidiaries incorporated in and operated
in Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong

has been provided
on the estimated
the year for the

Profits Tax for the year as the subsidiaries
incorporated in and operated in Hong Kong
did not have any assessable profits for the
year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

8

REEBRBERPAEB(E)

(@)
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8
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

The clearance of LAT settlement of
Jiaxuntong was completed during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and tax refund
relating to the LAT deduction for EIT
purpose was received. As a result, the
deferred tax assets arising from the accrual
of LAT of RMB96,294,000 were utilised,
with a corresponding reversal of EIT
provision of the same amount was made
during the year ended 31 March 2023.
There is no net impact to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in this respect.

The withholding tax arose from the
5% of dividend paid from a subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC to its Hong Kong
holding company within the Group.

8
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)
8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8 MNEESEZRFAEHR(E)

OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b BEMIHERBEARRTE

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: MERENER:
2023 2022
—E-= —ZE_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETE
Profit before taxation B Bt Al & A 449,125 558,161
Less: LAT Rt IR A R (180,503) (222,099)
268,622 336,062

Notional tax calculated at REERIAREERERN

applicable income tax rate FEHHEFE

of the relevant jurisdictions

concerned 67,156 85,306
Income not subject to taxation & ZE ZR Bt A LA (137) (238)
EIT arising from corporate HDREENREMBR

division 3,931 —
Expenses not deductible for A1 H 8 H

taxation purposes 10,721 7,334
EIT, net of deferred tax impact ¥ P58 - MK IEE

BT E 81,671 92,402

LAT T IR E 180,503 222,099
PRC Withholding Tax rh B 78 40 6,105 —
Income tax charge 8 fFHX 268,279 314,501
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information

EEMe

BIEEBRFHER E383MNIE R
A(BBEESENEER) RHIFE2E0
BEENESMoWT:

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

200

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-B--E-f=t-HLEE

Employer’s
contributions

Discretionary to retirement

Fees Salaries Bonuses plans Total
EXmEne
Bt ¢ BERL  HHHER H)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARET:
Executive directors HITEE
Ho Wai Hon, Brian a8 7T (ii) — 772 935 16 1,723
Ho Man Chung fa] 3T (i) - 839 202 9 1,050
Yiu Yuet Fung AR (i) — 571 257 16 844
Zhu Nian Hua RE( (ii) — 445 189 16 650
Non-executive director ~ #HTEZE
Ho Cheuk Fai fi] 15 1B (i) = = = = =
Independent Non- BUFHTEE
executive directors
Ho Lai Hong MER (iii) 4 — — — 4
Lo Yung Fong BR% (i) 3 — — — 3
Choi Wai Hin 2R (i) 4 - — — 4
11 2,627 1,583 57 4,278

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9 EEME(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_#-A=f-HIEE

Employer's
contributions
Discretionary  to retirement
Fees Salaries Bonuses plans Total
EXMERE
ik ¢ BERL HEEX Bt

Notes ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
fitif ARETE ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HITEE

Ho Wai Hon, Brian T (i) = 700 802 15 1,517

Ho Man Chung EpEs! (i) — 784 201 15 1,000

Yiu Yuet Fung AR (i) — 534 261 15 810

Zhu Nian Hua REL (i) = 394 234 16 644

Non-executive director ~ #HTEE

Ho Cheuk Fai Grch: (iif) = = — — -
— 2,412 1,498 61 3,971
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9
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The directors of the Company were appointed on the

following dates.

9

ExME (=)
P 5

(i) ARREFRNTINEHEZE-

Date of appointment

EREAH

Executive directors
BITES

Ho Wai Hon, Brian
ol & 7T

Ho Man Chung

fa] 32 A&

Yiu Yuet Fung

% A Bl

Zhu Nian Hua
ME1

Non-executive director
FHITES

Ho Cheuk Fai

fa] 4 48

Independent non-executive directors
BAFHITES

Ho Lai Hong

] & BE

Lo Yung Fong

BEF

Choi Wai Hin

HRY

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. No
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERAEHEZRAERAD A

2 September 2020

—Z-_THFNHAZH
2 September 2020
—EZEFNAZH
8 March 2022
—E-ZF=HAN\H
8 March 2022
—E-=F=AN\H

8 March 2022
—E-F=AHA/N\H

21 February 2023
—F-=%-A=+—H
21 February 2023
—E-=f-HA=+—H
21 February 2023
—E-=F-"A-+—H

(i REBHR BEESREXRE
MELAMEN L - NEEL
BERATAEEFINMSERSMA
FRMAREB R RE - HER
BEEAVRR(E -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)  These directors received remuneration from the Company
and/or its subsidiaries during the year in respect of their
services to the Company and its subsidiaries (including
the Group). The amounts paid were not specifically
allocated between their services to the Group and to
the other subsidiaries under the Company as there is no
arrangement to recharge the Group for such expenses
and it is not meaningful to perform a retrospective
allocation of the services rendered by these directors to
the Group.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The number of directors and non-directors included
in the five highest paid individuals for the year are set
forth below:

9

10

EEME(E)
Mt (&)

(il BETESEREBEHRARESAEA
AREMBARBEAE B IR H#
R (RREAEE) KBME - X
HIFRIBARB FR 95 BB RE T A
SEORE  REEVYHELZER
AEBELZERIHEE - %8
REFANEERENRBETE
WEDRILETER -

REHMAL
BEAFE hERSFHMALE
HROESKIFESAZWN:

Number of individuals

ATEHE
2023 2022
—_E-= -
Directors = 4 4
Non-directors EEE 1 1

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the non-directors included in the five highest paid
individuals are as follows:

IEZEeFMALTANFEESZD
FENmEmT

2023 2022

=== SR —p—

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTTE

Salaries and other emoluments & & E & o 1,121 1,037
Discretionary bonus B 15 TE 4L 265 135

Contributions to retirement benefit iR K& F 5t 2| 4 &
scheme 16 15
1,402 1,187
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10

11

204

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emoluments of these individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

BEHMAL(E)

il

ER@FATHHFI F AT

Y

Number of individuals

AT EEB
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E=-=
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,000
7T — 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000
BT 1 _

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share has been
determined on the assumptions that the Group’s
Reorganisation as defined in note 1 and the issue
of additional 505,364,770 ordinary shares of the
Company to KIHL as detailed in note 25(b) had been
effected on 1 April 2021.

As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
amount of diluted earnings per share is equal to basic
earnings per share.

11
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R MY &

1M SRENGE)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIITR)

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE
Profit attributable to equity ZANYNCIE Xk s RSN X iR
shareholders of the Company 180,846 243,660
Weighted average number of BETERRZMETFIH
ordinary shares in issue (F %)
(in thousand shares) 505,365 505,365
Basic earnings per share BRENEN(ARE D)
(RMB cents) 35.8 48.2
Diluted earnings per share BHEERBBOEN (AR D)
(RMB cents) 35.8 48.2
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 YE- BERRXRE
Furniture,
tools and Fixturesand  Properties
computer Motor leasehold  leased for
equipment vehicles improvements own use Total
i IER EEXER HEFER
ERRE RE ES3 RIS @zt

RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

Cost: RA:
At 1 April 2021 R_E-_—FWA-H 2,036 2,146 315 — 4,497
Additions NE 114 1,460 9 2,355 3,938
Exchange adjustments I 5 38 B - (53) - — (53)
At 31 March 2022 and RZZ-Z
1 April 2022 =A=t-BR

“E--4¥NA-AH 2,150 3,553 324 2,355 8,382
Additions NE 742 — 147 — 889
Disposals & = (200) — = (200)
Exchange adjustments I 58 B - 86 - — 86
At 31 March 2023 RZFZ=F

=ZA=+-H 2,892 3,439 471 2,355 9,157
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RFH &
At 1 April 2021 AT -ENA-A 1,694 1,492 177 — 3,363
Charge for the year FRM 268 372 52 76 768
Exchange adjustments I 5 8B — (33) — — (33)
At 31 March 2022 and RZF-ZF

1 April 2022 =A=t-Bk

“E-"4¥NA-AH 1,962 1,831 229 76 4,098
Charge for the year FR 262 467 59 456 1,244
Written back on disposals HE 2 HE - (108) - — (108)
Exchange adjustments I 5 AR — 66 — — 66
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F

=R=t+-H 2,224 2,256 288 532 5,300
Net hook value REFE:
At 31 March 2022 RZF-ZF

=ZR=t+-H 188 1,722 95 2,279 4,264
At 31 March 2023 RZF-=F

ZA=+-A 668 1,183 183 1,823 3,857
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B 5 ¥ R B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 Y¥E BERREE)
(@) Right-of-use assets @ ERHEEZEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REBEESENERESR
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EREFEITEAT
2023 2022
—E-= —ZE_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETE
Properties leased for own use, T EEB AW E -
carried at depreciation cost =T &K AT AR 1,823 2,279

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

RIEZERNEHERBD
XA DT

2023 2022
—E-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥ETT
Depreciation charge of HEEBRHNYEN
properties for own use FrEXH 456 76
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEME 99 18

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Group has entered into a lease contract as a
lessee for a property unit in the PRC which was
used for sales exhibition. The lease will last for
an initial period of five years. The lease does not
include variable lease payments, option to renew
the lease nor option to purchase the properties at
the end of the lease term.

REBEE_T-__F=A=t—H1t
FEAKECAEBEAZ DA
REERENTEYEEMITLE
EaK  HENZAHESF - HE

TEEEEM

= #5h

TA &

B EHEES

A EHEPERBTBEEMED
BIERE -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

13

208

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWME

RMB’000
AREFTTT
At 1 April 2021 ATE_—FMWHA—H 76,400
Fair value adjustment N E R 900

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R-ZB__F=A=1t—HBRK
“E-_FWA—H 77,300
Fair value adjustment N AE B 550
At 31 March 2023 RZFZ=F=A=1+—H 77,850
The investment properties are located in the PRC BREMEMRHE - BN F506F

and held under lease terms of 50 years expiring in
October 2046.

Fair value measurement of properties

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the investment properties are
categorised into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
During the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.

The valuation of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 March 2023 was carried out by
an independent firm of surveyors, Cushman &
Wakefield Limited, who have among their staff
Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The Group’s
chief financial officer have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed
at reporting date.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net (losses)/
gains” on the consolidated statements of profit or
loss.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 28| EhEZERER A

WMEMEE  RZFEUAFETAE
e

MEQIFEFE

@ XFERBHK
BEEBMB®REERES
RIA-FEFFZE] REMER
EFTE"*EF%A$TEZ&E’J%
B BEZT__FR-F
__¢ A=+—HLFE -
EBHEE-_EIAZEIL
ﬁfﬂ—ﬁ%j‘% TEEFE=EL

B A EH -

AEBER_ZT-_=Z4=A
ST —HHRREMENMGKE
EE?%I?EU%G?EE%%@G%FE

RElET  ZARINEBELA
E/B/Euigﬂi E’Jﬁ /L/;/\’
;T%BZ%TEE’J%%%EW%&&
BRI AT R - R,
ERHETHER  NEEH
B TS #E B Eﬁixﬁﬂg-a_ﬁﬂﬁ*i?ﬁ%fﬁ_
A ERR RGES

BRENEN R FERHBELR
eHEARNIEM(EER) K’

HmAFRIEEPHER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(b)

The unobservable inputs are summarised as (b)

follows:

Valuation technique

fhE R

13 REWMWE(E)
MELIFEFE(E)
AR B R ZEEB T :

Unobservable input

0L 272 ¢

Input factor

BARZ

Investment properties,

Direct Comparison

Price per square meter, using market direct

31 March 2022:

Industrial land — Approach comparables and taking into account of ~ RMB1,180 per square meter
Mainland China time of transaction, location and other 31 March 2023:
individual factors RMB1,190 per square meter

RENE IXAH EREBA BYLKER FRTSERVLER S —F-_F=A=1-H
— PEAL TERIRSER HEUEREME  SFIRARKIISL
Ik “EIZEZR=T-H:
FFHKARELI907
Investment properties, Depreciated Replacement Cost — Buildings 31 March 2022:
Industrial buildings — Replacement Cost RMB889 per square meter
Mainland China Approach 31 March 2023:
RMB895 per square meter
REWZ IXET BFEBARAE BRAKA—BF “F-_F=A=1-R:
— FER FEAKARKGBIT
“E_=E-R=1-H:
¥ HKARKE95T

For the industrial land of investment properties
using the direct comparison approach, the
fair value is based on prices for recent market
transactions in similar land and adjusted to
reflect the conditions and locations of the
Group’s land. The most significant input into
this valuation approach is price per square feet
and taking into account of time of transaction,
location and other individual factors such as the
location of the land. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the price per square
meter of the land.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 F #&

B ERLBOENREY
FPWIXRAMMmE - EAF
BEBRAOCHEELHMO TSR
ZEBRSER UREAE
B R BT
B WEENEZRERNSG
ARBFIRER  LEEZ
RepEHE HWBUERAEM
BARIEER WLt E - D
FEFEEL W FHKE
REEHEA -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B AN - IAAREHIR)

13

210

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(b)

The unobservable inputs are summarised as
follows: (continued)

For the industrial buildings of investment
properties using the depreciated replacement
cost approach, the fair value is based on
estimated new replacement cost of the buildings
and other site works from which adjustments
are then made to account for age, condition,
and functional obsolescence, while taking into
account the site formation cost and those public
utilities connection charges to the properties. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the replacement cost of the buildings.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

13 REWMWE(E)

MEAFEE(E)
(b)y FTHERZHBEMAMNT :

(%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

14 KEBAT
RZE-_=F=ZA=+—H ' &R

14 SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2023 are:

FAEZENBARNFBNT:

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERRILY
Principal
activity and
Date and place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued ~ Held by the Heldbya  country of
Company name establishment ~ and paid-in capital Company subsidiary  operation Notes
ARER ERAL/RIRARAE BRORMRRARE 209%F WELARE IEED ik
Benefit Master Limited 8 September 2015, US$8 100% —  Investment -
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") holdings, the
BVI
NIA “2-RFAANR- E 100% — REABR -
RERAES ZERNES
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) 29 September 1987, Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
Limited HK$100
EREEZBREMARAA —ANCLEAAZTAR B3 100ETERR
Non-voting deferred = 100%  Investment (i)
shares of HK$10,000 holdings, the
PRC
ERZETERD — 100% REER ()
10,0007 T R
RERARHEREERAT 17 September 2013, PRC US$43,700,000 — 100% Real estate (i, (v
ongguan Karrie Properties development,
Development Company the PRC
Limited)
RERARHERZERLRY “ET-ZEAATLA 18 43,700,000% T — 100% FERERE () v
hE
RENERERXARAA 8 March 2016, PRC RMB1,000,000 — 100%  Commercial (i), (v
(Dongguan City Jiahao housing sales,
Industry Limited Co. Ltd. the PRC
REDRREXERAA “E-REZANRCHE ARM1,0000007 —~ 100% BEETHE - (i, vi)
h
BEEERARHERE 11 January 2017, PRC RMBY97,501,000 — 100%  Real estate ~ (iv), (vil
BRAA development,
(Boluo County Jiayingli Real the PRC
Estate Development Company
Limited)
BERSENGHERRAR —F-tF-At-R 08 ARE950000T - 100% FREEE-  (v), i)
A hE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S3A &AM - AARHETITR)

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

212

14 M=

Proportion of o

DA (E)

wnership interest

ERERRLH
Principal
activity and
Date and place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued ~ Held by the Heldbya country of
Company name establishment ~ and paid-in capital Company subsidiary  operation Notes
ARER MR/ RIRARAE CRORMRRARE 209%F WELARAE EED ik
RETEARERERERA 7 September 2000, PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100% Realestate (v}, (v
] (Dongguan City Jiaxuntong development,
Computer Products Limited) the PRC
REnEAAERERER “ETTEAALR A AKRHS00000007 - 00% BHERE: W), i)
2l G
FUSRERLERS 11 March 2022, PRC~ RMB100,000,000 — 100% Realestate (v, (v
BB AT (Foshan Jiahe development,
Properties Development the PRC
Company Limited)
BUSEERERSERAR  —F--F=A+-RA 08  AK¥100000000T — 100% Etﬁﬁ%@ (vl (i)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Notes:

are not entitled to dividends,

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,
and are not entitled

to distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
$200,000,000,000 has been distributed by the relevant
companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

R aalFEE AR Ads a wholly-owned foreign

enterprise established in the PRC with an operating
period of 20 years up to 17 September 2033.

iy BRxmMeEmE

EX BB AT is a wholly-owned foreign

enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term

operating period.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 28| EhEZERER A

RZZE-_=F=A=+—HEZ=
—ZH=A=+—8 " W%ﬂjﬁj
BEEITEMES °

it 3 -

(i)

(iii)

ﬁﬁ&mﬁk BT EREER
TEREE RERETTERE

B ok (BRIEMRE QA AT @R
A A DK A $£200,000,000,0007%
JL) °

RERmAFHEREBERAAT
—RPBERIEEREIELE
HEXEHBR R _+F KR-T==
FALA+EAER -

REmzBREXARAANTT RN
TEKZEERANEDLE  HE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B % R MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5H AN - IAAREHITR)

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

15

14 KBLRE(E)
sk : (&)

(ivy BEZZEMNEMEREZEFR QA a wholly-owned ivv BEEZRBMNEHERZERRA
foreign enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term AN—MHPBKZIE2EEFINE
operating period. - HEZXHRBRE -

vy REmaA@EKE®RAERZAXAIs a wholly-owned vV RETRABREMERAERAA
foreign enterprise established in the PRC with an D—RHABEXKIZERBINE
operating period of 30 years up to 18 May 2031. ¥ O HZXHBER=THF RKR=-ZF

=—FnRAtNBEW -

(vi) @811 5= fr1 5 3 EE B 8 B IR 2 Alis a wholly-owned foreign i) BlLEEEbERZEERAF )
enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term —RABKIE2EREBINERE
operating period. Hex MR BRY -

(vii) The official names of these entities are in Chinese. The (i) ZETENEAZBAEPX %%
English names of these companies are for identification RAIME XL BERBRAE -
purpose only.

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 15 FERHEMERMRE

2023 2022

—EgE=-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTE

Properties under development for & ZEEH Y 5
sale 166,207 149,650
Completed properties held for sale FARGFED KR ITYE 884,819 876,738
1,051,026 1,026,388
Other contract costs HEME R AR 4,136 3,497
1,055,162 1,029,885
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 4 $§ 213
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B 5 R R B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

15

214

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS

15 FERHEMERRAK(E)

(continued)

(a) The analysis of the amount of inventories (@ EEREHAILAEBERE
recognised as an expense and included in profit RANTFESEITAT
or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTE
Carrying amount of properties sold B &%) % &) KE & 183,819 188,554
(b) The analysis of carrying value of land held for by FEVEERIHWHEKREE
property development for sale is as follows: DT
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZT=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®ETE
In the PRC EH
— Less than 50 years — DPR504F 74,747 86,048
— More than 50 years — L5045 159,904 5,491
234,651 91,539
(c) Contract costs © BEMRAK

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 March
2023 and 2022 relate to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents
whose selling activities resulted in customers
entering into sale and purchase agreements for
the Group’s properties which are still under
construction at the reporting date. Contract costs
are recognised as part of “selling expenses” in
the statements of profit or loss in the period in
which revenue from the related property sales is
recognised.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

RZEBEZ—_FR-_ZT-_=F=
A=4+—RERHERKAR
HYNTYERENILESHE
EReEE  HEEREHEN
EPBASERREAMBNE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 15 FERHMEREAE(AE)
(continued)
(c) Contract costs (continued) 0 EBEMAE(E)
The amount of capitalised contract costs of BRELERKATBEN_-F
RMB1,990,000 (2022: RMB3,452,000) were —=F=-A=t—HLEE"
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended A K #®1,990,000(ZF ==
31 March 2023. No impairment was identified for F: AR %3,452,0007T) # 18
the contract costs as at 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). mRHER  HE_T_=F=
A=+—H ' &RIKAKRER
BB (20224 ARBZETT)
The Group applies the practical expedient in AEBRERBEEMBREE
paragraph 94 of HKFRS 15 and recognises the AIE15R 4R FIITHRE S
incremental costs of obtaining contracts relating o MASERERANE
to the sale of completed properties and services E#HEPRNET LA A
as an expense when incurred if the amortisation HR®REHA - RIPE &R
period of the assets that the Group otherwise FREERAEECXRIME
would have recognised is within the same K IR By & 40 /Y 18 8 AR N T
reporting period as the date of entering into the RRFX o
contract.
The amount of capitalised contract costs that R-ZBE_=F=H=+—8"
is expected to be recognised as expenses after FHAR -—FrEDNE
more than one year is RMB1,528,000 (2022: Nil) TMeeaRKEAeBR/RARE
as at 31 March 2023. 1,528,000 (= F = — 4 : A
REZET) -
16 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16 FANRIE - RER Hfth U R
RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—E_-= —_EF_-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥ETET
Prepayments TE 5 3R IE 10,511 54,127
Deposits A 863 31,876
Other receivables H fth & 45 BR X 747 596
12,121 86,599
All prepayment, deposits and other receivables are FBERMNRIE  Be R EAMER

expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses

within one year.

R TEHE - FARARDRER S

B3
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

16

17

216

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The balance of deposits as at 31 March 2022 included
a security deposit of RMB31,060,000 paid in respect
of the land-bidding for the land situated at Foshan
City of the PRC. The Group has successfully won
the bidding on 1 April 2022 at a consideration of
RMB155,260,000. During the year ended 31 March
2023, the remaining balance of RMB124,200,000
was paid in cash and the entire balance, including
the deposit, has been transferred to properties under
development as disclosed in note 15.

16

BARE RERHEMEKRER
(&)

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HwZk2
EHeERCAFRRBILTH L
HWHREZRBBHEIANES A
R #31,060,0007T - AEBER =
T__FNA—HBUKBARE
155,260,000 AX T 12 - RE £
—E-=F=A=1+—HItFE"
# %8 A R #124,200,0007T E AR
X mEHBEEERL)E
EAMFISMEENERPYE -

PLEDGED DEPOSITS 17 SEFFER
2023 2022
—_E-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ETT
Pledged deposits for banking RITREND ERFR
facilities — 68,731

The Group had deposits pledged to secure the
Group’s banking facilities with details of which are set
out in note 19.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the pledged
deposits were fully released after the settlements of all
outstanding bank borrowings.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

AEBFEEBIEALREBRFE TR
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18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

18 BERBITER
@ Be2MBETERBE:

2023 2022
—E2_-= =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TT
Restricted deposits (note (i)) = BR %I 17 3 (KT 5E ) 10,503 323,545
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEREFERS 257,332 185,920
Deposits with banks with less than 17 i =& A /A F| B &9 R
three months to maturity when T
placed — 14,634
267,835 524,099
() In accordance with relevant government iy BEHEBBRFEE ~5£E

requirements, certain property development
subsidiaries of the Group are required to set up
designated bank accounts with certain amount
of pre-sale proceeds for the construction of
the relevant properties. The restricted deposits
represent the pre-sale proceeds to secure the future
payments of the Group’s property development
projects. Such restricted deposits will be released
for the payments for construction costs of the

METHMERREMERREA
RERYMEEREBREE
RTARETHEEEZR
F-ZXRHIFRRBEMS
KRB AERAEEMESE
BRIEBNAREMNR  ZFEX
BR 1) 77 3R 5 1A ST A AE B 0 3
BRBENBZERARER
&R TE AR FERR o

related property development projects or upon
completion of the construction.

(i) The remittance of bank balances of (ii)
RMB252,940,000 (2022: RMB497,365,000) as at 31
March 2023 placed with banks in Mainland China
are subject to relevant rules and regulations of

R-ZE-_=%=A=+—H"
FEAFRE R EITHRIT A
FHRIEFRA R#252,940,000 (=
T =% : AR¥497,365,000

foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC TT) 78 5 Hp B B 2 47 6 4E
Government. SMEE HIR A BROERRE -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 H AN - IAAREHIR)

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 18 BERBITERGE)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRI G ELEFRFRE
generated from operations: B ¥ B
2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5% ARBTR ARBTT
Profit before taxation B 6 B & A 449,125 558,161
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7(a) 6,419 4,018
Finance income B A 7(a) (6,034) (12,764)
Depreciation e 7(c) 1,244 768
Fair value changes in REMERNTEE
investment properties 13 (550) (900)
Gain on disposal of property, HE¥ % « B 5 &
plant and equipment Bl & (8) —
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) SN & & 548
(M #=) 6 7,182 (24)
Changes in working capital: &iE& & #&):
Increase in inventories and 7 & K EME LKA
other contract costs 0 (51,402) (39,333)
Decrease/(increase) in BRNRE 2K
prepayments, deposits and  F ] F& Y BR 3K
other receivables B, (1 hn) 43,427 (34,266)
Decrease in amounts due FE U R & A R ER K
from related companies V- 7,203 293,666
(Decrease)/increase in trade & 5 & Hfth fE{FBR X
and other payables CRL ) /18 hn (57,173) 102,189
(Decrease)/increase in BHAa/FEEM
contract liabilities CR ) /180 (285,556) 47,988
Cash generated from RERERE
operations 113,877 919,503

218
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

(o)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statements as cash flows from financing
activities.

18 BE&RBITERE)

(o)

RMEZDFELENAEAD

TRHALAEEREBE D
mﬁﬁﬁ@ BRERE NMIF
HRe®® MELIPELZ
BEAERSENBEHR
REAKBEHEGRETRER
TREESBREAPMELR
EREWARE -

Amounts due

Bank to related Lease
borrowings  companies liabilities Total
- EABE
BikE RAEHR  HEAR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®ETL ARBTR ARETR ARET:R
(note 19) (note 28(d)) (note 23)
(Wi19)  (Waasa) (W)
Mldpaon RIRITEAATA SO0 WA L L
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSRENE
Proceeds from new bank borrowings MRITEE MR 9,661 — — 9,661
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFIES (139,569) = = (139,569)
Interest paid ERHNE (19,062) — — (19,062)
Decrease in amounts due to related ENBERARAD
companies = (162,487) = (162,487
i degstniieaigesiion [ ol ] 0ne dedm = sy
e R < R e R = e
Other changes: Hit 29
Interest expenses (note 7a) MER (M 57() 3,813 187 18 4,018
Capitalisation of amount due to the related &7t fE (3 BB A 7] A
companies (note 18(d)(7) & 8 (2 18(d(i) — (374,400) — (374,400)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering & A1 % ] 3778 4189
into a new lease during the year HEaEEM - — 2,355 2,355
Capitalised borrowing costs (note 7(a)) B BEER A7) 14,473 5,963 = 20,436
Total other changes B2 BEE 18,286 (368,250) 2373 (347,591)
At 31 March 2022 N-E-FZA=+-H 236,479 - 2373 238,852
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 18 RERBITERGE)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 0 METEFRELENEEASH
financing activities (continued) (4&)

Amounts due

Bank to related Lease
borrowings  companies liabilities Total
mitgE
ROE LARX  HEAE a3t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETn AR¥Tn AR%Tn AR%Txn

(note 19)  (note 28(d)) (note 23)

(Fr&E19)  (WEE28(d)) (M&E23)

t1 April 2022 W-E--EmA-A 236,479 — 2,373 238,852

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREREMNEH:

Repayment of bank borrowings EEFIEE (243,549) — — (243,549)
Interest paid BERFS (10,159) — — (10,159)
Capital element of lease rental paid ~ ENHEHEXEH - - (411) (@11)
Interest element of finance lease paid I £ #) ﬂ 5 'E‘ i) = = (99) 99)
Decrease in amounts due to related ERBELRRIAD
companies - (2,821) — (2,821)

Tolchngs fom g chfows BRFLREGRDAE Q70 e 6w 57ew)
Bchange adjustments —— BR&E e - - 7432
Other changes: EEs:
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) M 857 % (3 7(a) 6,320 = 99 6,419
Capitalised borrowing costs (note 7(a)) & AMb & & B &

(M) 3477 — — 3,477
Others At — 2,821 — 2,821
Total other changes A Rpgags 9797 281 9 12,717
At 31 March 2023 RZZZ=F=H

=+—-A — — 1,962 1,962
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(d)

Material non-cash transactions

As disclosed in note 1, the Company acquired
Jiaxuntong on 8 March 2022 as part of the
Reorganisation. Pursuant to the acquisition
agreement of Jiaxuntong, the total consideration
of the acquisition was RMB313,453,000, which
included net cash considerations paid of
RMB37,175,000 and net settlement (non-cash) of
amounts previously due from Dongguan Jiale of
RMB276,278,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2022,
the amounts due to related companies
of RMB374,400,000 was capitalised as
consideration for one share of the Company
issued. Further details of the capitalisation of the
Group are set out in note 25(b).

19 BANK BORROWINGS

ReRBITERE)

d EXERERS
O e U S NE/N]
R-E-_—_F=ANBKE
EAB-EAEAN—
Do BRIE BN KEH
FOARBENBREASA
R #313,453,0007T * B ¥
NHEBEEREFBEAARE
37,175,0007C * AR R = 5= 4%
RN FFREEGERS)
A R%276,278,0007T °

Bz —_#F#=A=+—H
IEFE BHBAEQATERZA
R #5374,400,0007C 2 & &1L, -
EBARR—REZEITIRMDH
RE - EBERSHB  FH2H
B 5E25(b) ©

19 RITEE

2023 2022
—E-= —ZT—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®TE
Total bank borrowings IRITIEE R — 236,479
Representing: Ra&k:
Secured bank borrowings BHRMRITEE — 236,479

As at 31 March 2023, all the outstanding bank
borrowings were settled and all the pledged deposits,

the share capital of the two subsidiaries, Castfast
Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited and IR 5¢ 3% 8l /5 i & 8
ZEHMRAF, and unlimited guarantees provided by
KIHL and Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (“Karrie
International BVI1”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
KIHL, were released.

BEE_ZT-_=F=ZA=+—HMAE
IRITERELER  SINMEEA
FREMENBARIEERZERZR
hFEeBBRARIRRTRZE Fi
ERZEERAFNKRNERA K
FH 55 ) B B K2 3= 1) B B ) BT 8 2 )
Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited
(“Karrie International BVI”)FT1E £
K EPRBRE RIS AR BR o
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20

222

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BESZRHEMENIRK
2023 2022
—E-= —F-C
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETTE
Trade payables g5 R BRR 106 901
Other payables and accruals HENER M ESER 83,914 164,071
84,020 164,972
Apart from the retention money of RMB1,891,000 BRARE 2 A K®1,891,000T (=ZF
(2022: RMB9,711,000) which were expected to — Z—%F: AR ¥9,711,0007T) 8 &t
be settled for more than one year, all of the other BE—F&5)N RZBE_=FK
payables and accruals as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 “E-_F=A=+—RH -mAH
were expected to be settled within one year. N ERR L BT ERAHRRN —
FREF o
Ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the RBERR BHERNEFIRER
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows: BEFTE 2 R AT T -
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®TE
Within 6 months NEAR 65 883
Over 12 months HiE+—H 41 18
106 901

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7



21

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The balance represents the receipts in advance
received by the Group from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreement. These receipts in
advance are recognised as contract liabilities (see note
2(k)) until the properties is accepted by the customer,
or deemed as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in time when
the control of the completed property is transferred to
the customer that results in recognising of revenue.

21

BHNEE
iﬁ,‘??ﬁzﬁ’%lﬁ’\*}f* EEEW
ZEREBMABEKE - ZF

%EH&Z/TAIE\EEW?%:'“’Jﬁﬁ?(ﬁﬁﬁai

k) BEEVMEEREPEMAIR
TJ%:.“WFHEEE& MABRREER
%) MERTYENZEFEEE
EEFERER W aHEE -

Movements of contract liabilities: BHNEENEF
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TE
At the beginning of the year RE 4 407,227 359,239
Decrease in contract liabilities as R FABRFTAFE I &L
a result of recognising revenue BENRAEHSNEE
during the year that was included  J& 2
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (354,836) (297,947)
Increase in contract liabilities asa A FAWIMIBEE & &5 H
result of receiving forward sales TREHAHNEEEM
deposits and instalments during
the year 69,280 345,935
At the end of the year RER 121,671 407,227

As at 31 March 2023, the amount of receipts in
advance expected to be recognised as revenue
after more than one year is RMB15,141,000 (2022:
RMB41,344,000).

RZTEZ=F=HA=+—8 " #E&
R —F 155 n/u\%q&]\m]’ﬁi\”yﬁ)\lﬁ
A AN R¥15,141,00008 ~ (ZE ==
& AR #41,344,0007T) °
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22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 22 RESHBRRRFFAEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statements @ MNEESTHBRRRPAREEH
of financial position represents: HiE:
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®BTTT

Prepaid taxes A B IR

Prepayment for LAT TE A £ IR E T — 247
Current tax payable 2 B HA B Y B IR

Provision for EIT EMESHEE 90,133 203,620
Provision for LAT 4 3% (B B 366,461 192,436

456,594 396,056
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22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
Movement of each component of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statements of

22 REEMBRRIRPAEH(E)

(b)

CRAEEHRBREERAE:
ELEBBREE (BE)SA
X &R 0 BY & B

IR B B 5 IR 0 2% T R Y R
ERBEEE(BE)ERR

financial position and the movements during the DRERNBHBHOT
year are as follows:
Revaluation Temporary
of investment  Accrual for ~ Unused tax difference for
properties LAT losses  inventories Total
THEEHR FEz
RENRER <RE  EiERE  ERER A3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT AR%ETR ARET:R
Deferred tax arising from: ~ J\F & HE£H)
EERE:
At 1 April 2021 R-Z_-F
MA—A (18,044) 97,534 804 (4,427) 75,867
(Charged)/credited to profit 182 (38) /A
or loss (note 8(a)) (Ft E8(a)) (225) 55,525 454 (2,697) 53,057
Exchange adjustments E3EER: S - - (40) 79 39
At 31 March 2022 and RZF_ZF
1 April 2022 =R=t-BEk
i St2
mA—-A (18,2609) 153,059 1,218 (7,045) 128,963
Charged to profit or loss A f8 % 32 84
(note 8(a)) (B EE8(a)) (137) (51,395) (545) (639) (52,716)
Exchange adjustments AR - — 152 (342) (190)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F
=ZR=+—H (18,406) 101,664 825 (8,026) 76,057
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22

226

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

(0

22

RESUBRRRFAEHR(E)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by ERAELEHREEERER:
(continued) (&)
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset BERETANITHERN AT -
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off BHEEMBHREEEHHER
and when the deferred income taxes determined BEx AREMSHEESR
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the BEREE IRN&EETE
consolidated statements of financial position: R RN
2023 2022
—E-= -~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE
Representing: 15
Deferred tax assets BEEMIBEE 95,670 148,235
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHIBRE (19,613) (19,272)
76,057 128,963
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (0 AERELEHEA/E

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the dividend withholding
tax relating to the distributable profits of
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC were
not recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of the subsidiaries. Based
on the assessment made by management as
at the end of each reporting period, it was
determined that the distributable profits of the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC would not
be distributed to the Hong Kong and overseas
holding companies in the foreseeable future. The
distributable profits earned by the subsidiaries in
the PRC amounted to RMB393,854,000 (2022:
RMB78,499,000) were not recognised as deferred
tax liabilities as at 31 March 2023.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

RIEZ _FRIZ-=F=
A=+—H  BRA2AZEH
B AR R AR B BR - fl &
MEBALRPEHWE AR
73 K g F B 5% A% B T8 30 51 1
RELEMIBEE RBEETE
EBREREARELDOTE -
RAB RN B AT DK
i M EE TE R TR A R AR M
BAERGINERARDIR © R
—E-=F=ZA=1+—H"' Xk
LA B B B A A BREX AV A Uk
wmAEREEETIEAE D R
A A R ¥393,854,0007T * (=
T - —F: AR %78,499,000
JT) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B % R MY A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HMEAE
The lease liabilities were repayable as follows: HEBBEROTER:
2023 2022
—_E-= =S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®TTT

Within 1 year —FR 500 514
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 482 474
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFNA 980 1,385
1,462 1,859
1,962 2,373
24 BALANCE DUE WITH THE COMPANY 24 BEXADTF ML ER
(@) Interest in a subsidiary @ RKEBATMEZR
The interest in a subsidiary of the Company is as ZN/NESI B NI O - el (8
follows: e
2023 2022
—E-= —E_—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®BTRT

Investment in a subsidiary RITE AR RE 1,215 1,215

Amount due from a subsidiary JE WS Bf &8 2 ] BR 5K
(note 24(b)) (Pf¥ 5E24(b)) 374,400 374,400
375,615 375,615
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24 BALANCE DUE WITH THE COMPANY (continued)

228

(b)

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amount due from a subsidiary was
capitalised as consideration for one share of the
Company issued at the consolidation level of the
Group. Further details of the capitalisation of the
Group are set out in note 25(b).

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free, repayable on demand and non-trade

in nature.

Further details of the subsidiaries of the Group
are set out in note 14.

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7

(b)

24 BERERANEER(E)

B, () —RHMBATHRK
B

JiE U B BB R R BR U B AR
EBARRIEAEBEEKTE
FET—BEBRONRE-FB
BAAREBERLHE— 5
18 SR BT 7 25(b) ©
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

25 K
(@

- -RHEEERRE
BEARBI 2
AEBEGRABESAKRED
F) B ) B2 B3 OR 45 R 1O 3 BR 2K
RiZERREHRK -

77 7B B4 28 48 5% 36 2 1
6 ) MK B B B 215 BB
2 -

Share Share  Accumulated Exchange
capital premium losses reserve Total
R& Ko EE ZiER HERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
(note 25(b)  (note 25(c)(i)) (note 25(c)(ii)
(Bsk2sb)  (HEEF25()0) (B & 25(0)i)
At 1 April 2021 R-E--£WA-H —* — —t —* —
Loss and total comprehensive  BABE R 2ER &
income for the period R — - (27) = (27)
Issuance of shares Bk
(note 25(b)(i) (Bt 25(b)i)) — 375,615 — — 375,615
At 31 March 2022 and R-B-ZE
1 April 2022 ZA=t+-BER
“E-CF
mA-H —* 375,615 (27) —* 375,588
Issuance of shares 21RHB
(note 25(b)(i) (B & 25(b))) 4,394 (4,394) — — -
Profit/(loss) and total BrE R
comprehensive income for 2 EMEBE
the period — — 48,048 30,858 78,906
Distribution (note 25(e)) Ak (K& 25(6) — (8,000) (57,000) — (65,000)
At 31 March 2023 R-BZZF
=A=t-H 4,394 363,221 (8,979) 30,8568 389,494
*  The balance represents an amount less than - ZAEAREL N ARES007TH)
RMB500. k- I
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 25 BAEA- - FERKRE(E)
(b) Share capital (b) BRZ
The share capital represented the amount of NN =Y NI O A Nt B
share capital of the Company. Details of the 75N T IR 2N 8 B 2 4 851 40
movement of share capital of the Company are i
set out below:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
“E--%=A=1-H “Z--%5ZA=t+-H
Number of Nominal Nominal Number of Nominal Nominal
shares Value Value shares Value Value
KB EA HE HE ki &E EfE EfE
HKS$ RMB HKS RMB
B ARY AT ARHE
Authorised: EERK:
Ordinary shares of HK1 cent ~ ERREREEE
each (2022: HK1 cent) (Z2=z%:8R
EEE) 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 N/A 38,000,000 380,000 N/A
Issued and fully paid: BRTRBHRRA:
Ordinary shares of HK1 cent ~ E@BEEREEHL
each (2022: HK1 cent) (ZZ=-F: 5k
EEIE)
Beginning of the year =30 30 —* —* 1 —* —*
Issuance of shares (note (i) BRMA (M3Ea) 505,364,770 5,053,648 4,394,477 2 = —
Subdivision of shares (note (i) B 747 48 (Fff & (i) - — — 27 = =
End of the year EX 505,364,800 5,053,648 4,394,477 30 —* —*
*  The balance represents an amount less than w Z ALV ARE5007TH)
RMB500. kM
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)
Notes:

(0

Issuance of shares and subdivision of shares

On 2 September 2020, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided
into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On the date
of incorporation, one share was issued to the initial
subscriber and such share was later transferred to
KIHL on the same day.

On 8 March 2022, the Company issued one share
to KIHL in consideration for KIHL directing Karrie
International BVI to distribute in specie of its entire
shareholding in Benefit Master Limited (“Benefit
Master”), a formerly wholly-owned subsidiary of
KIHL. Upon completion of the distribution, Karrie
International BVI ceased to be the shareholder of
Benefit Master. Accordingly, Benefit Master became
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and eventually all of the companies listed out in
note 1 that had been established on or before 8
March 2022 would became a subsidiary of the
Company.

On the same day, the amount due to related
companies of RMB374,400,000 that was owned by
the subsidiaries of the Company were capitalised as
consideration for one share of the Company issued.

On 22 March 2022, the issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
were subdivided into ten shares of HK$0.01 each,
and the authorised share capital of the Company
became HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 21 February 2023, the Company has subdivided
the authorized share capital from HK$380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an additional
962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each ranking pari
passu with the existing shares of HK$0.01 each in
all respects for the sake of the listing process of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange on
23 March 2023.

25 BA- - BERERKRE(Z)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 F #&

R (&)

Bt -

Gy BEIR®H
R-ZE-_ZTFALA=-A" 'K
AEINBSBESEMAK

SETE MR £380,00087T © 7
£3,800,000% & f%0.178 7T
B - Rz B E
ERVIIERE AT R
o ZRHEZERFRBEEE
F A B -

RZE__F=ZANH"
N7 I 1 | -
—Hxﬂxﬁ {’Ei%z‘a:ﬂl

T N

2ETSNENEB A
Karrie International BVI #
H 7 Benefit Master Limited
([Benefit Master]) ) & &
BENLNED R 5 E4H K
RAEIWMKE - DB KR -
Karrie International BVI
7= Benefit Master HJ i B o
Itk * Benefit Masterﬁfc?%ﬁix\
ANEEZEZENBA
B F EE—FRAI R _;::
F=A/\B 3z A1 B AT
/NIl = T /NI O R TS R/N
7] o

ERSREZN/NGIE Rl =N RS
BENEMNEERRZREAEAR
#374,400,0007C B B &1L A
AAR—RBETRG @ 1
BRE -

R-ZZT-_—_F=A=+=8
NN NS S s
TRO(ER0IEB TR D A
+ % - & 8R0.017E T - WA
NAEHEE IR A380,000%8
7T 3 o £38,000,0004% -
FHRO.0TETT ©

E-_=F£ =A==+ —
N7 100 /NI 7 A
T =F=ZR=-+=ZRH*%&
éﬁiﬁﬁim B2 o ;Ei@
% o 18 3£962,000,000 8%
A% ® 1E0.0178 7T &9 A% f’ﬁ(éﬁi
FREmEE THIRE K
MR BEFTBEZEERS#E
@) #5% E BRZA H380,000
7 7t (5H £38,000,000%
f% ™ 50.01% T B & 19) #F
4B /10,000,000 (D A&
1,000,000,000 % & i% E 1B &
0.0178 7t 78 T M I 15

|m%
H
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

232

(i)

Issuance of shares (continued)

On 23 March 2023, the Company issued share
capital of HK$5,053,648 divided into 505,364,770
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, all fully paid or
credited as fully paid, and distributed to the existing
subscribed shareholders of KIHL by distribution
in species following the completion of successful
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the same day.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares
of the Company and the consideration
received from the issuance of shares of the
Company. Under the Cayman Companies
Law, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
Hong Kong operations from Hong Kong
Dollars to RMB. The reserves are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(s).

25 BA- - BERKRE(Z)
(b) BA(E)
et : (&)

(i)

BTN (&)
—E-=F=A=-+=H &
AR BB 1T IR AN5,053,6487
JC * 9 A505,364,7700% & %
EE0.0E T &Mk - 13
REBERIIEHE L&
[ B AR R AR (5 A T 78 B &2
FTEmBUAEYDIKRA RS
kT 3= F B IRE RER
% o

(0 EEME

(i)

(if)
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47 0k (B 48 AN 2 B AR 1D
MEEERNRRDEITR
M/ RE 2R E
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% ARBIH IR E R
A DB TARBEBIR
HERESERERZZKE
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BRENEEREELER
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company
Law and the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC, the
Group is required to appropriate 10% of
their net profits after taxation, as determined
under the Chinese accounting standards, to
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set
out in the relevant PRC regulations and in
the articles of association of the subsidiaries,
the statutory surplus reserve may be used
either to offset losses, or to be converted
to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less
than 25% of the registered capital of the
subsidiaries. The reserve cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which it
is created and is not distributable as cash

dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the consideration paid by the
Group and the share capital of Jiaxuntong
and Kar Info International under common
control of Mr. Ho during the year.

As part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Jiaxuntong, amounts
previously due from Dongguan Jiale of
RMB276,278,000 by Jiaxuntong was net
settled in accordance with the acquisition
agreement. The amount settled was
recognised as merger reserve when the
Reorganisation was completed on 22 March
2022.

25 BA- - BERERRE(Z)
() ZEEREEE)

(iii)

(iv)
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TREDIK °

CRAE ]
EHEEEARERE
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

234

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
distribution and dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt
divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as the sum of total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities in the consolidated statements of
financial position. Total capital is calculated
as ‘total equity’ shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

25 BA- - BERRE(Z)
d) BELE®R
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Capital management (continued)

The Group’s strategy, which is unchanged
from prior years, is to maintain an acceptable
gearing ratio, calculated based on external bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. The gearing
ratios at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

25 BAE - RBRERRE(E)

d BELEBE)
REBZRIEEFTFNE
ERAERINBIRITEER
B BB CEEAE
&R BE-_ZE-_—_FK_-FT

—=F=A=t—HWEESR

B ERWAT

2023 2022

—Z=-= —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR¥ETT
Total debt BFEEE 1,962 238,852
Total equity EmEE 828,554 748,674
Gearing ratio EERBL=X 0.2% 31.9%

Dividends and distribution
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

e BERDIK

BEBNAFERENANARER

Company attributable to the year is as follows: RBEAZER
2023 2022
—E-= ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR¥ETT
Interim dividend declared and paid 4 A E 7 5 F| B B &k
to KIHL during the year (2022: KORAT 2 # B R B
nil) (ZTE==F: &) 65,000 —
Final dividend proposed after the 7 ¥ %5 Hi 5K 1% %%k K H3
end of the reporting period B B8 B B Ax4.078
of HK4.0 cents (equivalent to il (FAERIARK3.5
approximately RMB3.5 cents) per ~ 2)(ZZF = —4F : )
ordinary share (2022: nil) 17,578 —
82,578 _
The final dividend proposed after the end of the P ¥ B R 12 3k 2 R HA AR
reporting period have not been recognised as a BRMEMRAEARERLSE
liability at the end of the reporting period. & e
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26

236

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Regular review and follow-up actions are
carried out on overdue amounts of instalments
receivable from sale of properties which enable
management to assess their recoverability and to
minimise the exposure to credit risk.

The Group’s exposure to credit risks arising from
cash and cash equivalents and other financial
assets are limited because these financial assets
held by the Group are mainly deposited in
financial institutions such as commercial banks
which maintain sound reputation and financial
situation, for which the Group considered to have
low credit risk.

The Group normally receives full payment from
customers before the hand-over of the property,
and therefore there is no trade receivables as at
31 March 2023 and 2022.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of other receivables and amounts due
from related companies, the Group has assessed
that the expected credit loss is not material
under the 12 months ECL method. The expected
credit loss rates were insignificant and close to
zero. Thus, no expected credit loss for other
receivables and amounts due from related parties
was recognised during the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022.

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statements of financial position.
Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as disclosed in note 27(c), the Group does
not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long terms.

26 TREREERAFEE)

(@)

(b)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 26 2B EREERAFLE(E)

(continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual TERHFLAEBEcREBENER
maturities at the end of the reporting period of HARMBRTEHINEA - BE4AK
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based MBEBREIREBEEBEOMNEX
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including 3 (¥ 8)) IR 2 ERAIRITH
interest payments computed using contractual rates KAENMENF) RAREEF B
or, if floating, based on current rates at the end of the AXNHFEBE:

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANRTRAER
Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted Tyearor  Between1  Between2

amount cash flow ~ ondemand  and2 years  and 5 years
RORFHR 15/

REE ReREME  SEEX 1528 2555

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 31 March 2022 R-B-ZF&

=A=1-H
Bank borrowings RITEEE 236,479 253,568 253,568 — -
Trade and other payables EAREMEMNER 164,972 164,972 164,972 = =
Lease liabilities ERBELRRR 2,373 2,657 510 510 1,637
Total Bzt 403,824 421,197 419,050 510 1,637
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 26 2B EREERAFLE(E)

(continued)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHRFRRER
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted Tyearor  Between1  Between 2
amount  cashflow ondemand and2years and 5 years
ANARR
REE ReRBAT 1 FRIARER  152F 2E5%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AREBTR AR%TR ARET:R
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=%=R=1-H
Trade and other payables B 5 & H i e (R 3% 84,020 84,020 84,020 — —
Lease liabilities HERRE 1,962 2,147 510 514 1,123
Total st 85,982 86,167 84,530 514 1,123
(c) Interest rate risk () F ==k
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily AEENNXERFEEZHRE
from the bank borrowing issued at variable rates ENBAERRCHEREZE
that expose the Group to cash flow interest BHMRITEE  HSAKH
rate risk. The Group does not use financial EREREMNXER - KK
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. EYEEASRBIUTETAY
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by A ERR o AEEXEEE
management is set out in (i) below. ERNMRESHFH N TX) °
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

240

(0

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s bank borrowings at
the end of the financial year:

26

EREABEERRAFEGE)

(© FEERE)

(i)

31 March 2023

MNEHEE
TRAFMLAEBRRKRE
HRMNRITEENFE
AR

31 March 2022

R-B-ZHZA=1-H R-F--&=A=t-H
Effective Effective
interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000
BERNZE  AR®Trn ERMZE  ARETR
Borrowings with NEBNREE:
floating rate:
Bank borrowings RITEE — — 5.08% 236,479
End of the year £E - 236,479
Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDM
At 31 March 2023, it is estimated that a b‘"_v__i A=+—
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points CEEAMEERE £
in interest rates, with all other variables held /TE%SO EE - MAA

constant, would not have any impact on the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained
earnings (2022: decreased/increased by
approximately RMB929,000).

In respect of the net exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate bank borrowings held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit after taxation
and retained earnings is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on a consistent basis for the
year.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(0

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above assumes that
the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to all floating rate bank
and other borrowings, without taking into
account the impact of interest capitalisation.

Currency risk

The Group operates primarily in the PRC and
most of its business transactions,
liabilities are denominated in RMB. Currency risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised

assets and

assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. Management considers that the Group
is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to United States Dollars (“US$”) and
HK$. Management will continue to monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will take
measures to minimise the currency translation
risk. The conversion rate of RMB to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC Government.

26

EREABEERRAFEGE)

(0

(d)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

242

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the currency portfolio
of the Group’s monetary assets denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes,
expressed in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period:

the amounts of the portfolio are

26 SREMEERATEE)

(d)

SRR (E)

TRHAIAEBENRBEE
NEEEBENIINEMER R E
MHEBEEENERES -

YRR E

AN SRR

AR EHIRENAE R 40 -

ANREIR

2023 2022
—E-= —F-C
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®TE
Cash and bank deposits in US$ NETREMNEE K
#RIT1F X 1,670 65
Cash and bank deposits in HK$ ANETREBEUNEE R
RITF K 13,084 —
14,754 65

At 31 March 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% (2022: 5%) against the US$
and HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year and retained earnings
would have approximately increased/decreased
by approximately RMB1,106,000 (2022:
RMB2,000), mainly as a result of the net foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of cash and
bank deposits that are denominated in US$ and
HK$. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2022.

Fair value estimations

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair value as at 31
March 2023 and 2022. Please see note 13 for fair
value estimate on investment properties.

(e)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

27 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

Commitments outstanding not provided for in the

27 RERIAREE HMBER

@ RBERESLHBERFIRE

financial statements were as follows: BRI BRT A E -
2023 2022
—_E—-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
Contracted for S 8,964 13,366

Commitments mainly related to land and
development costs for the Group’s properties
held for sale.

The undiscounted lease payments to be received

AEFREASEGFEER
TEN T RERKAR

7 o

(b) AEBAUTAAIHHELEH

under non-cancellable operating leases by the ENARMBEEKES
Group were as follows:
2023 2022
—EC-= —E-C
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT AR¥ETT
Within one year —FR 64 64
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27 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

244

(0

Contingent liabilities/financial guarantees

(i)

(if)

The Group has issued guarantees to banks
to secure the mortgage arrangements of
certain property buyers. At 31 March
2023, the outstanding guarantees to the
banks amounted to RMB515,657,000
(2022: RMB695,820,000) which will be
released upon the completion of the transfer
procedures with the property buyers in
respect of the legal title of the properties.

The directors do not consider the Group
will sustain a loss under these guarantees as
the bank has the rights to sell the property
and recovers the outstanding loan balance
from the sale proceeds if the property
buyers have default payment. The Group
has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as its fair value
is considered to be insignificant.

During the year, the guarantees provided
by the Group to secure the bank loans
borrowed by the then related companies
under KIHL were all removed upon
successful listing of shares of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 23 March 2023. No claim has been
made against the Group under the guarantee
during the year.

27
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 FEBBARS
The Group entered into the following material related REBSTUNTEZ@B TR
party transactions. 2 °
(@ Name and relationship with related parties @ HEWRERABKLHNER

(b)

Name of the party
BHBL AR

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho.”)
fa] (e 38 58 A4 (A e &)

Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian

I & 5 &

Mr. Ho Man Chung
fa] X R AE

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
S EY g

Dongguan Castfast Door and
Window Products Co., Ltd.
REREMERBERAT

Relationship with the Group
EAKBEHNER

Ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group, and the
non-executive director of the Company

AEBNREERKRR  WERARBERITES

Son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, and the executive director of
the Company
lEEEEN R FRARAINITES

The executive director of the Company

ARARHATES

The executive director of KIHL

EMBEREORITES

A related party of the Company, which is a customer
and a lessee of the Group

ARRRNEBT  SAKENEFRAEA

Transactions with key management personnel by HXrEEERBAENRS
Remuneration for key management personnel of AEBFEZEREAENE
the Group is as follows: BT
2023 2022
—E-= ==
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR®BTTT

Short-term employee benefits
Remuneration scheme
contributions

MHEIEBEREF 2,108 1,867
ROKETE R
66 57

2,174 1,924
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 FEMBAIRB(E)
(continued)
(c) Transactions with related parties (0 HEBIHNRS
2023 2022
—_E-= —E2- =
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETT

Sales to related parties (note (i)) [r) B8 Bk 5 35 & (B 5E() 8,474 —
Rental income received from B U B B 5 & A
related parties (note (i)) (B 5 G)) 246 246
Finance costs payable to related  J&{<t B8 Bt 75 &9 BA 75 B X
parties — 6,150
Note: Bt 5T -
() These related party transactions are trade in nature. () ZEEBAIXZIBES U
2
(d) Balances with related parties (d) EBEEEBEHNEE
2023 2022
—E=-= S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRE ARETT

Amount due from Dongguan Jiale &Y R = 5 2R X

(note (i)) (B 5% (i) — 1,719
Amount due from Kar Info Property B Z & B(EB)E X

Limited (note (ii)) BRARIERRK

(B 3 Gi)) — 28,616

Amount due from related parties & U 78 5t 75 BR 3K — 30,335
Amounts due from fellow & W[5 X Bt B A A BR 3K

subsidiaries (note (iii)) (B 5 (ii)) — 5,484
Amounts due from related & Uk B8 & A B BR 3K

companies — 35,819
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d)

Balances with related parties (continued)
Notes:

(i)

The balance represented amounts previously
provided by Jiaxuntong to Dongguan Jiale prior to
the Corporate Division to support its daily business
operations.

The amount of RMB276,278,000 due from
Dongguan Jiale was net settled as part of the
consideration pursuant to the acquisition agreement
of Jiaxuntong. The amount settled was recognised
as merger reserve as set out in note 25(c)(iv).

The balance was fully recovered upon listing of
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

The balances represented amount due from Kar Info
Property Limited, the vendor for the acquisition of
Jiaxuntong that was wholly-owned by Mr. Ho.

The balance as at 31 March 2022 was related to
LAT payment by Jiaxuntong that was in excess of
the provision amount for LAT when acquisition
consideration was determined. Such excess amount
of RMB28,616,000 is borne by the vendor and
would be refunded to the Group pursuant to the
acquisition agreement of Jiaxuntong.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Jiaxuntong
received EIT refund of RMB42,858,000 that was
in excess of the net tax positions when acquisition
consideration was determined. Such excess amount
is entitled by the vendor pursuant to the acquisition
agreement of Jiaxuntong. In addition, provision
for LAT and EIT related to corporate division,
amounted to RMB11,390,000, are payable by
Jiaxutong to tax authority, while such amount is
payable by the vendor pursuant to the acquisition
agreement of Jiaxuntong, and therefore is
recoverable from the vendor as at 31 March 2023.

28 FEBBARS(E)

(d)
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

248

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Balances with related parties (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)  The balance was fully recovered upon listing of
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

(iii) The balances due from the companies under
KIHL were fully recovered upon listing of shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Except for the rental charged to related
companies as disclosed in note 28(a) that
constitute connected transactions, none of the
related party transaction mentioned above falls
under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29 AFREMEZMBEARRTE
POSITION

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

—_E_-= —E2- =
=Z=A=+—-B =ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P £ AR®TR AR®BTTT

Non-current assets IRBEE
Interest in a subsidiary KRB AR M= 24(a) 375,615 375,615
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary  F& 42 I /8 A 7] Bk 3k 24(b) 83,412 —
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A BR K 1n —
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < BfY BB 2 A BR 3K 24(b) (69,522) (27)
(69,533) (27)

NET CURRENT ASSETS/ BREBEE (AR

(LIABILITIES) 13,879 (27)
NET ASSETS REE 389,494 375,588
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE
Share capital fi% 2 4,394 —
Reserves {5 1 385,100 375,588
TOTAL EQUITY EREH 389,494 375,588
*  The balance represents an amount less than RMB500. * ZiEBE IR ARK 0T

¥
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of R-ZTE_=FR At HHE=S
directors on 21 June 2023. SHE R IRET E -
HO Wai Hon, Brian HO Man Chung
il 18 5F 1] 32 &
Director Director
0 EZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (RSB FHBIN - IAARBIIT)

30

31

250

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 March 2023, the directors regard TMF (B.V.1.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 40.45% of the
Company’s equity interests, to be the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
deemed to be interested in TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF
(B.V.l.) Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or
amended standards, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2023 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

30

31
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 H AN - AAREHIR)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31 EHEMENMARBE=-SE=-=F=
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT A=+ —BLFEEEMZIERT - #
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 HERANREUREBR 2T E(E)

MARCH 2023 (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or

after

RUFEH®H 2%

BmMEHRLER

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 April 2023
BAUBREENFI7H - REEA —E_=FmMA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS 1 April 2023

Practice Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

BEGENEIR  FEHXZZ2J/RBAVGRELVNEHRER —ZFT-_=FMA—H
F2RUERTAR)  (FEHBHEZ L ZH)E - &5t R 7K

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting 1 April 2023
estimates and errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates

ARG ERIFRUERIAN) » Bat B K ~ Bt 1Fit EERIFH —E_=FmMHA—H
B a1 B A E &

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 April 2023

Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
BB EUNF2RUERIRN) el BE—XGHELMNEEREE —_T_=FHWA—H
B 89 R

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 April 2024

BEAVBREENFIR(EARN) HE: EAXHOXRZGFHWHEERRE —T_NFMOA—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification 1 April 2024
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BAGERBIRERIAN) UBEHLZZE5  RETERRE K “E_PFEMNA—H
FERE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-Current 1 April 2024

Liabilities with Covenants

BEGREMBIUR(ERR) WHEHX 2 HWERENFRHEE _T_MFHUA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBIRENEZFER - FER
of what the impact of these developments is expected kZEBRBHERNEARENE
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has & 2% FARARRBRAZEE
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to Rl FTERIRZEAKRAGEE HAR
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial NANELTBEEREXNEKRNY
statements. g-
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Four-year Financial Summary

LS EC R

The results of the Group for the last four financial years
ended 31 March 2023 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 are as
follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AEBBE-_T-_=F=A=+—AL
MEFBRFEEEE R_E_TF
B F - _F KT =

FZA=+—BHZEERAGBWT:
REER

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLFE

2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-=F —FT—— T —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
Fr T+ Tt Tt
Revenue A 700,751 775,555 590,803 481,778
Operating profit e i A 449,510 549,415 381,063 318,137
Finance income B 7% U A 6,034 12,764 9,235 7,198
Finance costs B 75 X R (6,419) (4,018) (314) (11,021)
Profit before taxation R Bt A& F 449,125 558,161 389,984 314,314
Income tax Fr 15 75 (268,279)  (314,501)  (229,481)  (185,377)
Profit for the year FERA 180,846 243,660 160,503 128,937
Attributable to: FE 44 -
Equity shareholders of the AR TR FFH A
Company FE 1= IR = 180,846 243,660 160,503 128,937
180,846 243,660 160,503 128,937
252 KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 28 E#EZRER A 7



Four-year Financial Summary

LS B EE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES mEEERAE
At 31 March
=A=+-—H
2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-= —E=-= —ET=— —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
Fr Tt Tt Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE 177,377 229,819 171,531 134,893
Current assets MENE E 1,335,118 1,745,380 2,029,061 1,586,065
Total assets BEERE 1,512,495 1,975,199 2,200,592 1,720,958
EQUITY R =
Share capital A& A 4,394 —* 51,134 51,134
Reserves & 1 824,160 748,674 379,154 271,941
Total equity ExmEE 828,554 748,674 430,288 323,075
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 21,156 21,277 303,087 375,407
Current liabilities mEAE 662,785 1,205,248 1,467,217 1,022,476
Total liabilities BEBE 683,941 1,226,525 1,770,304 1,397,883
Total equity and liabilities ##z= Rk BE#E 1,512,495 1,975,199 2,200,592 1,720,958
*  The balance represents an amount less than RMB500. 2 ZAESRIE DN ARBS00T & -
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Properties Held by the Group
rEBEEAZUE

As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=%=F=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE FHERYE
Planned GFA Expected
for future  Completion  Percentage
Location it B development Date holding Use
RIREREH
REEHE HHRT
RER Bl ®BAEEIH ik =S
(sg.m.)
(F75%)

1 The parcel of land located Bl & 5 & # 1L 131,472 2026 100%  Residential/
at north to Fulong Bridge T = BA [& 77 3 7 Commercial/
and west to Hefu Road, BEREABIAIL Carpark
Hecheng Neighbourhood, i & AT 2 + FE/
Gaoming District, i EE
Foshan City, Guangdong FES
Province, The People’s
Republic of China

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (EREEYE S

Gross floor ~ Percentage
Location it B Unsold area area holding Use
AEEHR REER BREIH R#
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
CF75K) CFI3K)

1 Phase 4, PEERER=M 27,261 78,537 100%  Residential/
Castfast Villas, [Bl k58 m H 3 K Commercial/
Fenggang Town, EIXRFER Carpark
Dongguan City, 47551 Fx/
Guangdong Province, REZEMNH BE/
The People’s Republic of [ % | FES
China

2 Phase 5, HREERERTM 57,020 102,013 100%  Residential/
Castfast Villas, Bl SR H K Carpark
Fenggang Town, EIXERRER Ftx/
Dongguan City, 4755 -1 BES
Guangdong Province, SEFRELS
The People’s Republic of [ %]

China

254

KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Z 8| i EZR AR D 7



Properties Held by the Group

As at 31 March 2023 R-Z-_=F=F=+—H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (continued) TFHEMEE)
Gross floor  Percentage
Location i 86 Unsold area area holding Use
REAE® BEEE ®HEEIHL R
(sq.m.) (sq-m.)
(FAK) (FHK)
Louvre Mansion, Jin o R N 34,967 45,021 100%  Residential/
San Jiao Development MBESREE Commercial/
Zone, Dongping Village, R¥N&=ARE Carpark
Zhangning Town, Boluo B A ] Bk & ¥ 1 Fx/
County, Huizhou City, 3 EE
Guangdong Province, FES
The People’s Republic of
China
“Forest Town”, HEEREREM 2,417 3,685 100%  Residential
Phase 3, Castfast Villas, Bl $E )\ H #H A F=E
Fenggang Town, EIXERBER
Dongguan City, E=HTFR#E ]
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of
China
Unit 25B, Sunlight Court, HEIERERZM 165 165 100%  Residential
Castfast Villas, Fenggang Bl i #2 88 7 2 % F=x
Town, Dongguan City, EFEREER
Guangdong Province, E—HRER
The People’s Republic of 25 B}
China
Unit 16A, Twilight Court, HEBIERERZM 148 148 100%  Residential
Castfast Villas, Fenggang Bl i #2887 22 B& F=x
Town, Dongguan City, ERBERRER
Guangdong Province, E—HYER
The People’s Republic of 1612 A5E
China
Unit 25C, Skylight Court, FBIERER=M 143 143 100%  Residential
Castfast Villas, Fenggang Bl i $H 88 F 2 & (B35
Town, Dongguan City, EFEREER
Guangdong Province, E—HEERE
The People’s Republic of  25% C5f
China
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Properties Held by the Group
rEBERZUE

As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=%=F=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT MERERE
Gross floor Percentage
Location i B area holding Existing use
BEEE BEESL R
(sq.m)
(FAHK)
1 Industrial Complex, B & BR & R 52 R i £ 55,262 100% idle
Zhentiannan Road, fEREHBRIXE 2=

Yantian, Fenggang
Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of
China

Note: The above property is held on medium to long-term leases. fis: AEMERTPHERPROKE -

256 KRP DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 28 E#EZRER A 7






C

N
% Al B e 1 e A R O W)

KRP Development Holdings Limited



	封面
	封面內頁
	目錄
	公司資料
	主要股東資料
	財務概要
	主席報告
	企業管治報告書
	高級管理人員之個人資料
	董事會報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收入表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	四年財務摘要
	本集團持有之物業
	封底內頁
	封底



